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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a high investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
aisclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Silk Road Energy
Services Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge
and belief: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, (i)
there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement in this report misleading, and (ifi) all opinions expressed in
this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration
and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and
reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRS

Dear Valued Shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of
Directors of Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) to report on the activities and
progress of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2023 (the “Year”).

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$5,161.84 million
representing an increase of 632% compared with last year. The
increase in revenue was mainly due to the new business in trading of
fresh produce and agricultural products which achieved operational
maturity during the Year. The Group recorded an audited consolidated
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company amounting
to HK$1.46 million (2022: loss of HK$8.96 million) for the Year. The
turnaround was mainly due to the reversal of impairment losses
recognized in respect of loans receivables.

The core business of the Group is healthy as the Group has a good
financial position with a cash balance of HK$105.08 million. During
the year, the Group principally engaged in the provision of services
of coal mining and construction service, trading of fresh produce and
agricultural products and general trading and money lending business.
I expect the trading business will be the main driver of the growth of
the Group.

Looking ahead, the Group will maintain healthy development of
different business segments to consolidate its business portfolio and
diversify its source of income, thereby creating greater value for its
shareholders.

APPRECIATIONS

On behalf of the Board, | wish to express my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and other business
associates of the Group for their continued support; and also to
every Director, the management team and all staff for their valuable
contribution during the Year.

Cai Da
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 September 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEET R

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2023 (the “Year"), the Group recorded
a revenue of approximately HK$5,161.84 million (2022:HK$705.04
million), representing an increase of 632% as compared with that of the
corresponding year in 2022. The increase in revenue was mainly due to
the new business in trading of fresh produce and agricultural products
which achieved operational maturity during the Year. The Group’s gross
profit and its overall gross profit margin decreased from HK$13.19
million and 1.87% for the corresponding year in 2022 to HK$11.13
million and 0.22% for the Year respectively. The decrease in gross profit
and gross profit margin was mainly due to () a slight gross profit was
recorded in the segment of the provision of coal mining services and
construction services, (i) a gross loss was recorded in the segment
of the provision of heating supply services, (i) a decline in interest
incomes generated from the money lending business, and (iv) a very
low gross profit margin from trading of fresh produce and agricultural
products.

The Group recorded other income, which mainly comprised
government grants and interest income, in the amount of
approximately HK$6.66 million (2022: HK$8.33 million) for the Year.
The decrease in other income was due to the significant decrease in
handling income for packing coal during the Year. The Group recorded
a gain of HK$6.31 million (2022: HK$1.32 million) from investments in
listed securities.

The Group recorded administrative and other operating expenses in
the amount of HK$42.69 million (2022: HK$38.96 million) and finance
costs in the amount of HK$1.56 million (2022: HK$1.65 million). The
Group recorded an income tax expense of HK$2.23 million (2022: tax
credit of HK$1.65 million), with the change mainly due to the decrease
in deferred tax liabilities written back.

The Group recorded a reversal of impairment loss recognized in
respect of trade and other receivables in the amount of HK$6.51
million (2022: HK$21.94 million). The reversal was due to the aging of
the Group's account receivables having been reduced as the Group
successfully recovered certain long-term receivables from customers
during the Year. The Group recorded a reversal of impairment loss
recognized in respect of contract assets in the amount of HK$3.13
million (2022: provision of HK$0.96 million). The reversal was mainly
due to the Group having received most of the retention money
from the customers during the Year. The Group recorded a reversal
of impairment loss in respect of loan receivables in the amount of
HK$8.06 million (2022: provision of HK$11.46 million). The reversal was
mainly due to the Group having received outstanding repayments from
certain borrowers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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In conclusion, the Group's loss for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$4.68 million (2022: HK$12.52 million). The reduction in loss was
mainly due to the reversal of impairment loss recognized in respect of
loan receivables for the Year. After taking the loss share by the non-
controlling interest, the profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the Year amounted to approximately HK$1.46 million (2022: loss of
HK$8.96 million).

PROVISION OF COAL MINING SERVICES &
CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

The revenue of this segment comprises service income from provision
of excavation works and construction works. During the Year, the
Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$127.07 million (2022:
HK$77.83 million) from the provision of coal mining & construction
services to two customers which accounted for 2.46% of the Group's
total revenue. The Group entered into a new contract with a customer
in November 2022 and provided services during the second quarter
of the financial year, resulting in an increase in revenue. The segment
recorded a slight gross profit of approximately HK$1.06 million which
was mainly due to (i) additional costs incurred to relocate the labor
force for the commencement of a new project after the Group
has completed the previous project and (i) the adverse operating
environment amidst the COVID-19 pandemic in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). In addition, the provision of services under the
new contract was still in the preliminary stage in which substantial
expenses were incurred. After taking into account the relevant
administrative costs, the reversal of impairment losses recognized in
respect of the trade receivables and the contract assets, this segment
recorded a loss of approximately HK$8.14 million (2022: profit of
HK$13.66 million).

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

During the Year, the revenue from loan interest income was
approximately HK$6.05 million (2022: HK$10.24 million) which
accounted for 0.12% of the Group's total revenue. The decrease
in revenue was mainly attributable to the decline in loan balances
as the Group was more cautious in granting loans. This segment
recorded a profit of approximately HK$8.36 million (2022: loss of
HK$8.31 million) during the Year. As the economies of the PRC and
Hong Kong gradually recovered after the easing of pandemic-related
restrictions, the financial positions of certain borrowers have improved
and they have settled their outstanding loans. Subsequent to the
Year, around 39% of outstanding loans balances at 30 June 2023 have
been settled. Accordingly, the expected credit losses for the loan
receivables decreased and a reversal of HK$8.06 million impairment
loss recognized in respect of loan receivables was made.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group operates its money lending business in Hong Kong through
Great Wall Credit Limited (“HK Subsidiary”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company which is a licensed money lender under
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163 of the laws of Hong Kong),
and in the PRC through Smart City (Shenzhen) Investment Company
Limited (“SZ Subsidiary”), another indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, respectively. Loan financing is the only money lending
service provided by the Group, and the Group's customers principally
include individuals introduced to the directors of the HK Subsidiary and
the SZ Subsidiary through business or personal networks or referral
from business counterparts of the Group. The loans granted by the
Group are short-term and all of the outstanding loans originally have
a term of no more than one year but certain loans were overdue.
The Group does not have a specific target loan size but assesses
each application on the basis of its merit and will determine whether
security in the form of legal charge on property or personal guarantee
provided by independent third party would be required.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had 22 borrowers, of which 18 were
individual borrowers and 4 were corporate borrowers, and a total of
22 outstanding loans (“Outstanding Loans” and each an “Outstanding
Loan”). A breakdown of the Outstanding Loans granted by the relevant
subsidiary is as follows:

1. A total of 21 Outstanding Loans were granted by the SZ
Subsidiary to 17 individual borrowers and 4 corporate borrowers.
Amongst the 21 Outstanding Loans, 11 were respectively
secured by personal guarantees provided by third party
guarantors while the remaining 10 Outstanding Loans were
unsecured.

2. 1 Outstanding Loan was granted by the HK Subsidiary to an
individual borrower and was secured by a second charge on a
property situated in Hong Kong.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEm R

The outstanding balance (including interest receivables) of each
Outstanding Loan ranged from approximately HK$100,000 to
HK$7,000,000 with interest rate ranging from 6.0% to 18.0% per
annum. The loan portfolio of the Group fell within the following bands:

outstanding balances of Outstanding Loans

HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$0 to HK$1,500,000
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As at 30 June 2023, the top five borrowers of the Group constituted
35.26 % of the total principal amount of the Group's loan portfolio and
37.15% of the Group's loan receivables (including interest receivables).

The board of directors of the HK Subsidiary, which members include
Mr. Cai Da (“Mr. Cai"), an executive Director, is responsible for the
management and operation of the HK Subsidiary and its money
lending business, and is supported by employees who are qualified
accountants. The directors of the HK Subsidiary, who have valuable
experience in the management of money lending business, oversee
the HK Subsidiary’s money lending business and ensure that the
relevant internal control procedures are performed properly.

In particular, Mr. Cai has extensive experience in financial management
and corporate finance. He has been a director of several listed
companies in Hong Kong during the past ten years. He has also been
the vice president of the Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce
since June 2012.

The sole director of the SZ Subsidiary who is also its financial controller
is responsible for the management and operation of the Sz Subsidiary,
and together with Mr. Cai, oversee the money lending business of the
Group. Each loan granted by the SZ Subsidiary must be approved by
both the director of the Sz Subsidiary and Mr. Cai. The director of the SZ
Subsidiary has solid experience in the management of money lending
business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The director of the SZ Subsidiary and Mr. Cai are supported by the
finance department of the SZ Subsidiary and its risk management
manager. The risk management manager is responsible for conducting
preliminary assessment and creditworthiness assessment for
each loan application, drafting and preparing the relevant loan
agreement, seeking opinions from the external legal advisor of the
SZ Subsidiary, monitoring the loan repayments and taking action to
recover delinquent loans. The risk management manager undergoes
training in respect of compliance with Listing Rules and other listed
companies-related matters. She has also been assigned to other
companies to shadow the entire procedure of due diligence, loan
application assessment and monitoring process of loan repayment.
The risk management manager is experienced in each procedure of
the operation of the money lending business. The finance department
of the SZ Subsidiary is responsible for determining the appropriate
interest payment of each loan based on factors including but not
limited to the principal amount, prevailing interest rate, the term of
the loan and keeping accounting record of the repayments made in
respect of each loan. The SZ Subsidiary engages qualified PRC lawyers
as its external legal advisors and also arranges training for its staff on
the proper conduct and risk management of money lending business,
such as property valuation, client due diligence, property mortgage,
share pledge and enforcement of security.

The Group has put in place internal control procedures for its money
lending business and has tailor-made such procedures for each of
the HK Subsidiary and the Sz Subsidiary according to their business
needs, operation models and regulatory requirements in the relevant
jurisdiction.

Approval process for granting loan
HK Subsidiary

The established process of assessing loan applications of the HK
Subsidiary is as follows:

1. Document collection — Loan applicants are required to submit a
number of supporting documents and information in order for
the HK Subsidiary to assess their applications, including but not
limited to application form, identification documents, address
proof, marital status documents, business registration certificate
(for corporate applicant), income proof, employment status
proof, bank statements for the past year and a list of assets
and liabilities of the applicants. If the applicants own any real
property(ies) or have mortgage(s) on their property(ies), the HK
Subsidiary will also conduct land search and online valuation of
such property(ies).
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Assessment of repayment ability and creditworthiness — The
finance department of the HK Subsidiary will have a preliminary
assessment of the applicants” background and their repayment
ability based on the supporting documents provided and
the results of legal and financial due diligence. The finance
department and/or director(s) of the HK Subsidiary will conduct
face-to-face interviews to make further in-depth enquiries in the
applicants’ background and repayment ability.

Board discussion — If the finance department of the HK
Subsidiary and its director(s) responsible are of the view that
the relevant applicant has sufficient repayment ability and
creditworthiness, the company secretary of the HK Subsidiary
will report the assessment result of the applicant to the board
of directors of the HK Subsidiary for their internal discussion as
to the maximum allowed principal amount and interest rate for
the applicant. The board of directors will hold a board meeting
to approve the terms of the loan agreement and the loan
thereunder.

Signing of loan agreement — The terms and conditions of the
loan agreements will be prepared by the finance department
of the HK Subsidiary after the board of directors has granted
the relevant approval. Before signing the loan agreements,
the company secretary or a director of the HK Subsidiary will
explain the terms and conditions of the loan agreements and the
relevant implications to the applicants. It will be put on record
that the applicants have been properly advised of the terms and
conditions of the loan agreements.
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SZ Subsidiary FEHIHBAE

The established process of assessing loan applications of the SZ  FHIMB AR ML EREFNEREERLFNT :

Subsidiary is as follows:

1. Document collection — Loan applicants are required to submita 1.
number of supporting documents and information to facilitate
the Sz Subsidiary’'s preliminary assessment of the background
of the applicants, including but not limited to application
form, identification documents, address proof, marital status
documents, income proof, employment status proof, bank
statements for the past year, a list of assets and liabilities of
the applicants, existing loan agreement(s) (if any), business
license (for corporate applicant), memorandum and articles of
association (for corporate applicant), recent financial statements
(for corporate applicant), identification documents of the legal
representative and majority shareholder(s) (for corporate
applicant) and the corporate creditworthiness report (for
corporate client).

2. Assessment of repayment ability and creditworthiness — The 2.
risk management manager of the finance department of the
SZ Subsidiary is responsible for conducting a preliminary
assessment of the applicants’ background, their creditworthiness
and repayment ability based on the supporting documents
provided and will report to the director of the SZ Subsidiary. The
director of the SZ Subsidiary and Mr. Cai will together determine
whether to approve the loan applications, the terms of the loan
agreements (including but not limited to the principal amount,
interest rate, maturity date, whether security is needed) based on
the assessment results.

3. Signing of loan agreement — The officer of the SZ Subsidiary will 3.
explain the terms and conditions of the loan agreements and the
relevant implications to the applicants prior to the signing of the
agreements.
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Credit risk assessment policy
HK Subsidiary

As part of the approval process of loan applications, the HK Subsidiary
will carry out credit risk assessment on each applicant including but
not limited to client identification, financial and legal due diligence,
repayment ability assessment and creditworthiness assessment.
Through the above procedures, the HK Subsidiary assesses its credit
exposure and compliance risk in so far as anti-money laundering or
anti-terrorist financing laws and regulations are concerned.

SZ Subsidiary

As part of the SZ Subsidiary’s standard procedure, various credit risk
assessments, which include but are not limited to client identification,
financial and legal due diligence, repayment ability assessment and
creditworthiness assessment will be conducted on each applicant.
Through the above procedures, the SZ Subsidiary considers that its
exposure to default is minimized.

Mechanism in determining loan terms to ensure they are fair
and reasonable

HK Subsidiary

To ensure the terms of the loan agreements are fair and reasonable,
the HK Subsidiary determines the terms with regard to factors
including but not limited to the creditworthiness of the borrower, the
principal amount of the loan, the predicted recoverability of the loan
and the prevailing market interest rate. Also, the terms of the loan
agreement in each case will be fine-tuned and tailored to the specific
circumstances of the particular borrower and will be reviewed by the
board of directors of the HK Subsidiary before they approve the loan
agreement for signing with the borrower.
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SZ Subsidiary

The risk management manager of the Sz Subsidiary drafts the terms of
each loan agreement with regard to factors including but not limited to
the creditworthiness of the borrower, the principal amount of the loan,
the recoverability of the loan, the prevailing market interest rate and
whether the borrower has provided any asset as security to ensure
they are fair and reasonable. The sole director of the SZ Subsidiary
ensures that the interest rate of each loan granted is in compliance
with the loan policy of the PRC and not exceeding 400% of the PRC
one-year loan prime rate. Also, the terms of the loan agreement in
each case will be fine-tuned and tailored to the specific circumstances
of the particular borrower and will be reviewed by Mr. Cai before he
approves the signing of the loan agreement with the borrower.

Monitoring loan repayment and recovery
HK Subsidiary

Employees of the finance department of the HK Subsidiary are
responsible for monitoring the status of loan repayment and keeping
accounting records for monthly audit of the loan balance to ensure
that all borrowers have made repayment on time in accordance
with the terms of the relevant loan agreement. The employees and
directors of the HK Subsidiary are also in regular communication with
the borrowers regarding their financial positions and credit profiles
to have an up-to-date understanding of their repayment ability and
creditworthiness. The relevant employees will alert directors of the
HK Subsidiary in the event of late repayment, material changes to the
repayment ability or creditworthiness of borrowers or any other events
which indicate the recovery of the loan may be at risk. Additionally, the
management gives quarterly reports on the money lending business to
the Board, which includes a summary of overdue unsecured loans.
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SZ subsidiary

The risk management manager of the SZ Subsidiary is responsible
for the continuous monitoring of the status of loan repayment and
creditworthiness of borrowers through monthly credit check and
litigation search in respect of the borrowers. Regarding borrowers who
have history of default, such checks will be conducted more frequently.
Alerts will be sent to the finance department and the board of directors
of the SZ Subsidiary in the event of late repayment, material changes
to the repayment ability or creditworthiness of borrowers or any other
events which indicate that the borrowers may not be able to repay the
loan in accordance with the terms of the loan agreement. Additionally,
the management gives quarterly report on the money lending business
to the Board, which includes a summary of unsecured overdue loans.

As regards the Outstanding Loans, the director of the SZ Subsidiary
and Mr. Cai have been in regular communication with the borrowers
of the Qutstanding Loans regarding their latest financial positions and
continue to negotiate for a satisfactory settlement proposal of the
Outstanding Loans.

Taking actions on delinquent loans
HK Subsidiary

If a borrower does not make any repayment in accordance with the
loan agreement, the finance department will promptly report to the
board of directors of the HK Subsidiary. A director or the finance
department will make inquiry with the relevant borrower as to the
reason for the late payment and the estimated repayment schedule.
The board of directors of the HK Subsidiary will review the proposed
repayment schedule of such borrower to determine the necessary
actions to be taken to recover the outstanding loan. If the settlement
proposal of the outstanding loan of the borrower is not satisfactory to
the board, then the board may decide to commence legal proceedings
against such borrower to recover the loan principal and outstanding
interest.

Y 2 E]

FINNB AR RERKEAEABHERALE
TERERBREARFRERFEERENERNE
NRERABEBRT - BB HZHERMA
Ms > EEEEMETERRE HELTAMME
TERANERENNERBHRERBEHE
BEMEAFRTERADEEEZRBEEREN
FREZEER MEREMFHIRRYME LT
EFge EEEBEMREXBREFTTRM
FERS HPUEERFARHERME-

MEKREEERMS  RIIMBLRAEERES
F-EHRBREEZEERMEMARE M HARR
ETERBRE LHBEETERUERS AGH
PR REEERERTE -

BiEREMRNNTE
BEENE LA

i ERA L ERE R EFREREER R
HBHRERFAEEMNBARNEFTTRE -EFH
PHEEmERERATHERNREREE R
BRRER - TENBARNEZTEREREBE
RANEZERFER > UHEERWEEKEE
ERMENOLBTH - HEFEFEMERA
NWEREEEMERLE NEFERERE
FERARBERFNR UEEREE K iE R
EHEFN R -

Annual Report 2023 15
2023F £



16

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEET R

SZ Subsidiary

If a borrower does not make any repayment in accordance with the
loan agreement, the risk management manager will make inquiry with
the relevant borrower as to the reason for the late payment and the
estimated repayment schedule and will report the same to the sole
director of the SZ Subsidiary and Mr. Cai. They will review the proposed
repayment schedule of such borrower and the proposed treatment
of the delinquent loan as recommended by the risk management
manager and discuss the necessary actions to be taken to recover the
outstanding loan. If the settlement proposal of the outstanding loan of
the borrower is not satisfactory to the sole director of the SZ Subsidiary
and Mr. Cai, they may decide to commence legal proceedings against
such borrower to recover the loan principal and outstanding interest.

The adverse financial and economic conditions caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic have affected the financial position and
repayment ability of the Group’s customers. The Group expects that
such a challenging situation may affect the repayment of loans and
increase credit risks which were not apparent at the time when the
loans were granted. The Group continues to monitor the recoverability
of its loans through regular communication with borrowers regarding
their latest financial positions and review of borrowers’ credit profiles
and will take any necessary follow-up action on borrowers' repayment.
In the event of failure to repay interest and/or the principal amount
by the due date, the Group will issue overdue payment reminders
to the relevant borrowers; and negotiate with the borrowers for
the repayment of the loans. Where settlement proposals cannot be
agreed upon, the Group may commence legal proceedings against the
borrowers to recover the loan principal and outstanding interest.

Determine impairment loss

The management of the Company will make quarterly reports to
the Board to inform them of the figures of overdue loans for the
relevant quarter. As at the relevant balance sheet date, the Board will
assess whether there are any indications of impairment on the loan
receivables, and if so, perform an impairment test and determine the
amount of impairment 0ss to be recognised.
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In determining the expected credit loss (“ECL") for loan receivables,
historical data are assessed together with other external information
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors. To ensure the adequacy of allowance
for ECL on loan receivables, the Group engaged an independent firm
of professional valuers to conduct a valuation on the allowance for
ECL on loan receivables recognised for each financial year, and this
impairment allowance was also cross-examined by auditors of the
Company.

The Group applies the general approach under Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standard 9 (HKFRS 9), which is often referred to as the
“three-stage model”, under which ECL of loan receivables are
determined based on (a) the changes in credit quality of the loan
receivables since initial recognition, and (b) the estimated expectation
of economic loss of the loan receivable under consideration. Under the
general approach, there are two measurement bases for allowance of
ECL: (a) 12-month ECL, which is the ECL as a result of default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date and is
calculated as the allowance for ECL on a loan receivable weighted by
the probability of default events accumulated over the 12 months after
the reporting date; (b) lifetime ECL, which is the ECL as a result of all
possible default events over the expected life of a loan receivable and
is calculated as the allowance for ECL on a loan receivable weighted by
the probability of default event accumulated over the entire life of the
loan receivable. The allowance for ECL on loan receivables is derived
from gross credit exposure, recovery rate and probability of default.

The Group'’s loan receivables are classified as follows:

(i) Stage 1 (performing) includes loan receivables which have a low
risk of default or have not had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition and are not credit-impaired. 12-month
ECL is recognised for these loan receivables.

(i) Stage 2 (doubtful) includes loan receivables which have had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit-impaired. Lifetime ECL is recognised for these loan
receivables.
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(i) Stage 3 (default) includes loan receivables that are assessed
as credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
asset have occurred. For these loan receivables, lifetime ECL is
recognised.

(iv)  Write-off, where there is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect
of recovery.

As at 30 June 2023, Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 ECL of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$0.09 million (2022: HK$0.05 million),
HK$4.84 million (2022: HK$11.11 million) and HK$10.99 million (2022:
HK$14.02 million) respectively. In summary, aggregate ECL impairment
of the Group as at 30 June 2023 was approximately HK$15.92 million
while aggregate ECL impairment of the Group as at 30 June 2022
was approximately HK$25.18 million, resulting in net reversal of ECL
impairment loss (after taking exchange alignment adjustment of
approximately HK$1.20 million) of approximately HK$8.06 million during
the year ended 30 June 2023.

PROVISION FOR HEATING SUPPLY

The Group provides heating supply services to customers in Tianjin, the
PRC. During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$6.08 million (2022: HK$6.39 million), which accounted for 0.12% of
the Group's total revenue, and a gross 10ss of approximately HK$8.21
million (2022: HK$4.59 million) from the provision of heating supply
services. Notwithstanding that the provision of heating supply services
recorded a high gross loss margin due to the high price of gas, the
Group has received a subsidy of approximately HK$4.40 million as
other income from the local government of the PRC. After taking into
account the relevant administrative costs, this segment recorded a loss
of approximately HK$3.65 million (2022:HK$10.01 million) during the
Year.
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As affected by the rising international commodity and energy prices
and the high volatility in the prices of gas, the operations in Tianjin had
recorded continuous losses in recent years. The Group considered
that the inherent uncertainties of the industry cast doubt on the
profitability of the provision of heating supply services and accordingly
decided to temporarily suspend its heating supply services and
terminate the services in Tianjin in the coming session. In May 2023,
the Group has reached agreement with the relevant parties including
the local government to terminate the services without payment.
The aforementioned decision did not have any material effect on the
Group's operation. Since the operations in Tianjin is the sole project of
the Group’s provision of heating supply segment, the operations of this
segment had been suspended. The Company will continue to monitor
and assess market condition to consider if it would be appropriate to
resume operation of the segment.

TRADING OF FRESH PRODUCE AND
AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS AND GENERAL
TRADING

The Group has diversified its business into the trading of fresh produce
products in the year ended 30 June 2022. The Group imported fruits,
mainly durians from Thailand and Vietnam to the PRC. The Group
also purchased fruits from a local supplier and distributed them to
the market. Besides, the Group sourced quality live pigs and cattle
from renowned suppliers and farms in Guangxi, Jiangxi and Hunan,
and sold them to cities in Guangdong Province such as Shenzhen,
Huizhou, Dongguan. During the Year, the Group expanded the scope
of the trading business to agriculture products such as sugar and
eggs. During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$5,016.38 million, which accounted for 97.18% of the Group's
total revenue from the trading of fresh produce and agricultural
products. The business of trading fresh produce and agricultural
products had a short sales cycle that allowed the Group to make a
large volume of sales, resulting in a high revenue. The low gross profit
margin was because the trading of fresh produce and agricultural
business operated in highly competitive markets and there was a
high food loss rate as a portion of fruits had decayed due to customs
clearance problems. During the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$6.25 million of general trading, which accounted for
0.12% of the Group's total revenue.
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INVESTMENT IN LISTED SECURITIES
(INCLUDING FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS)

As at 30 June 2023, the Group invested in securities listed in Hong
Kong and the PRC markets (i.e. financial assets at fair value through
profit and loss (“FVTPL")), which amounted to approximately HK$34.33
million (2022: HK$30.52 million). During the Year, the Group recorded a
gain of fair value change on financial assets at FVTPL of approximately
HK$6.31 million (2022: HK$1.32 million).

The details of financial assets at FVTPL are as follows:
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Investee REHS Stock code  Notes  01/07/2022 the Year the Year the Year  30/06/2023
KIEZZHE FEERZ RIBZ=

fRp L3 Mk

tB—B #FEERZ FEERZ ATE ABR=tH
ZIREE  WEEE HEMSTRE KE/ (58 ZmE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TAT TET TERT TAT

Best Food Holding Company BRERBRAR (M58 1488 1 15,795 2524 - 8,628 26,947
Limited ("Best Food")
Binhai Investment Company EEREERARD (T8E) 2886 2 414 2,398 16) 554 2,950
Limited (“Binhai")
UTS Marketing Solutions Holdings ~ UTS Marketing Solutions 6113 3 1,086 1,204 - (586) 1,704
Limited ("UTS") Holdings Limited (TUTS )
China Wantian Holdings Limited ~ EIEXZRAERAT 1854 4 2,038 216 (3,029) 995 220
("Wantian") (r&x))
Shenzhen Aisidi Co. Ltd (‘Aisidi")  FINTEHERHERLE 002416 5 3216 1,852 (4,188) (246) 634
(i)
JLOGO Holdings Limited ("JLOGO") EFIZEEREBR AT 8527 6 2,304 3,185 (2,401 (2,201) 887
(TR
Baidu Inc BEEERMERRAT BIDU 4,901 - (4,230) (671) -
China Hongbao Holdings Limited  FEIABERARAT 8316 406 478 (973) 89 -
(formerly known as "Quantong (FIFBI @R
Holdings Ltd.") BRAEN)
Others Hith 358 2,471 (1,584) (256) 989
Total &t 30,518 14,328 (16,821) 6,306 34,331
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Notes:

The Group held 21,908,000 shares which represented approximately 1.39% of the
total issued shares of Best Food as at 30 June 2023. Best Food are engaged in the
operation of, and investment in, food and beverage business under more than
10 brands, including “Xinladao” fish hot pot, “HHG" Chinese fast food, Sichuan
and Chongging style fast food “Yujian Xiaomian”, “King of Clay Pot” claypot rice,
“Seesaw coffee”, "West Master” Chinese bun, “Yuepin” Vietnamese cuisine,
“Foook” malatang, “Dafulan” Hunan rice noodles and snacks, and “Panda Hot Pot”
small hot pot. Pursuant to Best Food's interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2023, the unaudited loss attributable to shareholders of Best Food for
the six months ended 30 June 2023 was approximately RMB8.56 million and the
unaudited net assets attributable to shareholders of Best Food as at 30 June
2023 was approximately RMB196.33 million. For the first half of 2023, Best Food’s
total system sales, including sales of all restaurants, both owned and franchised
under the brands of the Best Food and its associates, amounted to RMB1,770
million, representing an increase of 44% over the corresponding period of 2022.
As at 30 June 2023, the number of stores under all the brands of the Best Food
and its associates was 967, with a net increase in newly opened direct-sale
stores and franchised stores of nearly 100 stores as compared with that as at 31
December 2022. For the first half of 2023, the revenue of the Best Food amounted
to RMB305 million, representing an increase of 13.8% over the corresponding
period of 2022. Best Food continued to accelerate the expansion of scale of
enterprises on Best Food's platform through the development of cross-region
and cross-brand franchisors. In the first half of 2023, the Best Food expanded its
network of franchisors in new regions such as Shandong, lJiangsu, Zhejiang and
Fujian Provinces, etc. It also increased the sales volume and improved the results
performance through multiple modes, including direct sales, franchise, as well as
partnerships with third parties. In the first half of 2023, the digital team of Best Food
continued to make strenuous efforts in upgrading certain self-developed systems
and applications with a focus on assisting the implementation of the Best Food's
principal businesses and realizing the synergy between customers, traffic flows
and cooperative resources of various brands at group-level, thereby improving the
operation efficiency of the Group. In the first half of 2023, Best Food focused on the
provision of various value-added services for the brands operated by its associates
with a view to increasing the values of each of the brands. During the first half
of 2023, some of the brands operated by the Best Food's associates achieved
satisfactory operating results and made positive contribution to the Group's
financial performance.

B -

AEEFFA21,908,0000 K%M HERBRR -2 =4
NAZHHZBEITRNMERNI 9% BRIBEER
BEBI0ERENERES > HPaiE e AAis-
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SIRFER TS ~ TR PRE TR 8
FTREIMEZ  TRFBE AR KMz K TBRF 2 1/
Wi R EEREE S =F&AB=1+HIANEEZ
RS BE_S=FA=THLENEA BEK
REMGRE BB A ARES,560,0007T MK ZE
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A AR196,330,000c c B/ -TZ=F E ¥ F R M
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F+ZA=+—BFHMAEEFIE NI EEPIER100
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18 & I8k o

Annual Report 2023 21
20235 3R



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEET R

In the first half of 2023, as the COVID-19 pandemic came to an end, the
consumption market recovered to a certain extent and industry competition
gradually intensified. However, the potentials of the food and beverage industry
remained unchanged in the long run, and leading brands and companies with
sound fundamentals enjoying more competitive advantages. The Best Food will
remain committed to the implementation of its strategic deployment, so as to
continuously develop its core capabilities for value creation and bring rewards to
the shareholders, including:

(i) increasing the values of each brand and enterprise, so as to contribute
profits to the Best Food;

(ii) expanding its franchise network and better serve the franchisors, and
(ifi) enhancing its digital development and operation capabilities.

The Group held 1,746,000 shares which represented approximately 0.13% of the
total issued shares of Binhai as at 30 June 2023. Binhai is principally engaged in the
sales of piped natural gas, construction and gas pipeline installation service and gas
passing through service. Pursuant to Binhai interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2023, the unaudited profit attributable to shareholders for the period ended
30 June 2023 was approximately HK$166.44 million and the equity attributable to
owners of Baihai as at 30 June 2023 was approximately HK$2,121.57 million.

Subsequent to the Year, the Group disposed of 1,746,000 shares of Binhai on the
market through the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of approximately
HK$2,919,520 representing an average price of approximately HK$1.67 per share.

The Group held 2,130,000 shares which represented approximately 0.53% of the
total issued shares of UTS as at 30 June 2023. UTS is principally engaged in the
provision of outbound telemarketing services and contact center facilities for
promotion of financial products and its related activities issued by authorized
financial institutions, card companies or organizations worldwide. Pursuant to UTS's
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2023, the unaudited profit and total
comprehensive income for the six months ended 30 June 2023 was approximately
RMB2.18 million and the net assets attributable to shareholders of UTS as at 30
June 2023 was approximately RMB52.83 million. As at 30 June 2023, the UTS was
operating eight contact centers situated within the central business district of
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia and one new branch contact center outside the central
business district of Kuala Lumpur was set up in the state of Melaka, Malaysia. The
new Melaka contact center was officially launched in early March 2023.The UTS's
strategic objective remains unchanged, i.e. to continue focusing on the business
strategies according to the details as disclosed in the section headed “Business
- Business Strategies” of the prospectus of the Company dated 22 June 2017.The
UTS continues to remain cautious and maintain its efforts to improve productivity
and expects the overall outlook for the second half of 2023 to remain stable
and resilient without material deviation from its existing outbound telemarketing
workstations ordered from its existing clients. In addition, the UTS had also been
constantly reviewing potential opportunities to increase its number of workstations
ordered beyond its existing customer base by either working with new database
owners, new insurers or takaful operators in order to improve the Group's financial
performance.
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The group held 400,000 shares which represented approximately 0.02% of the
total issued shares of Wantian as at 30 June 2023. Wantian engages principally in
sourcing, processing and supplying food ingredients, with a focus on providing fruit
and vegetables to food service operators in Hong Kong.

Subsequent to the Year, the Group disposed of 400,000 shares of Wantian on the
market through the Stock Exchange at a total consideration of approximately
HK$268,000 representing an average price of approximately HK$0.67 per share.

The Group held 77,000 shares which represented approximately 0.01% of the total
issued shares of Aisidi as at 30 June 2023. Aisidi provides supply chain services
in China and internationally. It engages in smartphone, 3C digital, and FMCG
distribution, as well as integrated supply chain service; and electronic atomizer
and apple retail, e-commerce and localization service, and communication and
value-added service. Pursuant to Aisidi's interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2023, the unaudited profit attributable to shareholders for the period was
approximately RMB319 million and the equity attributable to owners of Aisidi as at
30 June 2023 was approximately RMBS5,638 million.

Subsequent to the Year, the Group disposed of 77,000 shares of Aisidi on the market
at a total consideration of approximately HK$629,853 representing an average price
of approximately HK$8.18 per share.

The group held 1,430,000 shares which represented approximately 0.29% of the
total issued shares of JLOGO as at 30 June 2023. Pursuant to JLOGO's interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2023, the unaudited loss attributable
to shareholders for the period was approximately S$1.16 million and the equity
attributable to owners of JLOGO as at 30 June 2023 was approximately S$0.32
million.

JLOGO is principally engaged in the business of Asian full services restaurant
operations in Singapore; and artisanal bakery chain in Malaysia.

JLOGO is a food and beverage (“F&B") group which owns and operates award-
winning restaurants in Singapore under different brands and owns one of the
largest artisanal bakery chains in Malaysia in terms of revenue and the number of
bakery retail outlets in Malaysia. We operate our dining operations in Singapore
under two self-owned brands and one franchised brand. Its “Central Hong Kong
CaféJ brand is primarily focused on offering a casual and authentic Cha Chaan
Teng experience in a full service environment while our “Black Society” brand offers
Chinese cuisines with a contemporary twist in a full service environment. The
franchised “Greyhound Café J brand provides stylish and trendy ambience which
serves a specialised Thai menu with creative twists. Its artisanal bakery chain in
Malaysia offers a wide selection of artisan breads, pastries and cakes under our
“Bread Story” brand. The franchise of “Greyhound Cafe” was discontinued at the
end of April 2023. The restaurant’s premises were subsequently transformed and
rebranded into our self-owned “Crazy Rich Thai” brand. This new brand offers a
unique selection of specialised Thai dishes with innovative and creative twists.
The directors of JLOGO believe that JLOGO is competitively positioned based
on our operating history of more than ten years, its strong brand recognition
and reputation, diversified customer base, innovative product offerings, unique
dining experience and experienced management. In addition, the locations of our
restaurants in Singapore and its bakery retail outlets in Malaysia are vital to our
Group's strategy of targeting areas which are high in customer traffic and easily
accessible by our target customers that will help in promoting its brands image and
awareness.
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If the global economy continues to recover from the impact of Covid-19, it is likely
that Singapore will continue to experience growth across the services sector
especially in F&B which contributes significantly to the Singapore economy.

However, JLOGO is facing the challenges brought about by inflation staying at an
elevated level of 4.7% in May 2023.F&B businesses have to deal with higher costs of
across almost every expense component from raw materials to running expenses
like electricity and labour costs. Exacerbated by the prolonged war between Russia
and Ukraine which has disrupted supply chains around the world with an increase
in the prices of commodities including fertilisers, food products, and oil & gas. This
has led to food inflation rising to 6.8% year-on-year. Despite the higher operating
costs, JLOGO has been extremely cautious in adjusting our selling price while it
may assume a price increase is justified. Unfortunately in its highly competitive F&B
sector, it may not be straightforward. JLOGO has to weigh for fear that any price
increase may alienate customers or push consumers to competitors.

The industry as a whole has a high job vacancy rate of 7%, based on the Q12023
Labour Report. The manpower crunch was further exacerbated by the lowering
of the foreign worker quota to 35% or less for the services sector in 2021.
Furthermore, a minimum wage was also set for local employees under the
progressive wage model (PWM) in May 2023, adding to the cost pressures faced
by all food service businesses. As all companies begin paying at least the minimum
wage, those with urgent manpower needs would need to pay higher to attract and
retain local workers amid the tight labour market. This puts further cost pressure on
operators like us. We have seen at least a 10% increase in labour costs during the
past one year.

While it is interesting to observe that since the start of the year to May 2023, there
has been a net increase of 500 new F&B businesses, with the highest number of
new businesses formed in May at 370 and 222 businesses ceasing operations.
While it remains encouraging to note that more F&B businesses spring up to take
the spot of those that leave, we should not discount or ignore the challenges faced
by the industry and its high failure rate. Despite the encouraging turnover numbers
and signs of recovery, many global and local issues continue to plague our F&B
sector, affecting some more than others. Challenging manpower issues and cost
inflation remains the biggest ever challenges and this structural problem has no
easy fixes. We are not looking to expand any further this year and will adopt cost
cutting measures to ease and better manage our cash flow.

Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited
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OUTLOOK

The Board expects the revenue from the provision of coal mining and
construction services to remain stable notwithstanding the challenges
of increasing production costs and intense market competition.
Given the income from the provision of coal mining services and
construction services is charged on a project basis and is non-
recurrent in nature, the Group may achieve lower-than-expected
revenue if it fails to maintain continuity of the Group’s order book with
new projects. Accordingly, the Group has been actively pursuing new
customers so as to enlarge its customer base.

As for the heating supply business, the high volatility in the prices
of gas and the uncertainty from future subsidies from the PRC
government continue to cast doubt on the profitability of the provision
of heating supply services. In view of such the Company decided
to terminate the services provided in Tianjin, thereby temporarily
suspending the segment of provision of heating supply services. The
Group will resume this service if good investment opportunities in this

industry are identified.

The Group will continue to exercise significant control over the granting
of loans as well as monitor its outstanding loans receivables to
minimise credit risk with respect to its money lending business.

The Directors considered that the growing purchasing power and rising
living standard of the population of the PRC are expected to drive up
the demand for imported fruits and quality agricultural products bred
in renowned farms in the PRC, and are therefore optimistic about
the business prospect of trading of fresh produce and agricultural
products. The Directors are of the view that such business is the main
driver for the growth of the Group and are also confident that this will
help diversify the Group's business and generate more income and
increase the profit margin of the Group in the long run.

As it is expected that the trading business will have a good business
prospect and it is suitable for the development of the Group, the
Group will expand the trading business to supply and trade other
commodities so as to broaden its revenue source and expand its
business portfolio.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2023, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$105.08 million (2022: HK$156.49 million). Net current
assets amounted to approximately HK$332.45 million (2022: HK$338.59
million). As at 30 June 2023, the current ratio (defined as total current
assets divided by total current liabilities) was approximately 3.62 (2022:
4.33 times). The gearing ratio, being the ratio of total liabilities to total
assets, was approximately 0.27 (2022: 0.22). The Group did not have
bank borrowing as at 30 June 2023 (2022: Nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM 2016 PLACING

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 8 April and
21 April 2016, the Company completed the placing of an aggregate
of 1,046,260,000 new shares in the Company on 21 April 2016 (“2016
Placing”), from which net proceeds of HK$201.2 million was raised.
The Group intended to use 80% (approximately HK$160 million) of the
proceeds for the development of the business of provision of services
related to clean energy and the remaining 20% (approximately HK$41
million) for working capital purpose (“Original Purposes”).
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The breakdown of the usage of the proceeds up to 15 November 2022 #HE_ZE__S+—HBt+HH FIEFEAGRA

is as follows: A
The
cumulative
usage of the For the Unutilised
2016 Placing period from Proceeds
Actual net proceeds up to 1Jul 2022 to asat
proceeds 30 Jun 2022 15 Nov 2022 15 Nov 2022
S
—gZC BIZ2ZZ
~B=+HBH tA—HBE
—E-RERE ZEIZHF HEZT-C
BRFmRT  FAEXERSt  +-A+EH  +—-BA+&H
AR FERER \HHB REVBFRERIE
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BIT BT BT
Provision of heat supply services by clean LB ZSERMERT &
energy including: &
() investment in the joint ventures for the () 1R BREMERFEHN S 35 million il
provision of heat supply services EhE REL =
(i) capital expenditure such as purchasing (i) BABEX  NEBEEHER 34 million Nil
heat supply equipment and carrying out ERERER IR UEE i
construction works and
(i)) operation costs of the jointventures (i) HECEEBERES 11 million Nil
1188 ="
Sub-total INE 160 million 80 million Nil 80 million
16068 0EE i 80EE
General working capital —REEES 41 million 41 million Nil Nil
LEE LEE i i
Total At 201 million 121 million il 80 million
0158 188 i 80E S
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The remaining balance of unutilised proceeds (‘Remaining Proceeds”)
was approximately HK$80 million. On 15 November 2022, the Board
proposed to reallocate the use of the Remaining Proceeds (for details,
refer to the Company’s announcement dated 15 November 2022) as
follows:

(i) approximately HK$38 million of the Remaining Proceeds will be
used for general working capital purpose,

(i) approximately HK$22 million of the Remaining Proceeds will be
applied towards paying up the registered share capital of two
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC which
are principally engaged in conducting trading of high-quality
agricultural products such as sugar, and fresh produce products
such as living pigs and cattle; and

(i) approximately HK$20 million of the Remaining Proceeds will be
applied towards the operation of the Company’s fruit trading
business. (collectively the “Revised Allocation”)

The breakdown of the usage of the Remaining Proceeds up to 30 June
2023 is as follows:
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In view of the above, the Directors consider that the usage of proceeds
from 2016 Placing are consistent with the Original Purposes and the
Revised Allocation.

Note 1:the proceeds are mainly used for purchasing fruits from Thailand and Vietnam.

Note 2:Of the proceeds used for general working capital, HK$30 million has been used to
settle a debt due to a former note holder.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 1 July 2022, the authorized share capital of the Company was
HK$1,500,000,000 divided into 150,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01
each, and the issued share capital of the Company was approximately
HK$74,925,634 divided into 7,492,562,338 shares of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the resolutions of the shareholders passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company on 26 April 2023,
every twenty issued and unissued ordinary shares with a par value of
HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one ordinary share with a par value of HK$0.20 each (“Share
Consolidation”), such that the authorised share capital of the Company
became HK$1,500,000,000 divided into 7,500,000,000 shares with
a par value of HK$0.20 each effective 28 April 2023. As at 30 June
2023, the issued share capital of the Company was approximately
HK$74,925,624 divided into 374,628,116 shares of HK$0.20 each.

Details of the Share Consolidation are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 8 March 2023 and 26 April 2023 and the
Company’s circular dated 24 March 2023.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the trading transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group
were denominated either in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi or United
States dollars. It is the Group's policy for its operating entities to utilise
their corresponding local currencies to minimise currency risks.

ERNEXFt EFERB_E—NEFEREMSN
BRBRNEREREREET DA -

W51 PAGRETEZEANBREKREREREKR

M2 . HFBFE—REELESMERBECSARNECTERONR
#5575 A#930,000,0007 7T ©

B& 7

RZIEZZ_FtHE—H ARBZEERES
1,500,000,00078 7t » 93 23150,000,000,000/& & &
EE0.0OTEB T Z R > MARBA ZBEETRAL
#74,925,63478 70 0 3 #7,492,562,3388 E IR E E
0.01B Tz KRG o

RIERER _E_ZFENB_+HREAT
BREFIARE LBAENRER ) AR R AT
E_+REREENIIBTHBEBET R KL
ZEREHA—REREMEI20BTHIETER
(TRMmEH) Bt KRB ZEEREES
1,500,000,00078 7t » 43 %7,500,000,0008% & A B &
KREEC20B TR B2 _=ZFWA -+ N\
HEEM N _E_=ZFEA=+H ' &xQFZE
BITIRASE 274,925,624 70 9 73374,628,116 %
SRR EE0.20B T2 REMH ©

BHhEaHEBEN AT HEASE _=ZF=1
NAEZE_=FN8 -+, "BNAEKREAE
HEHA_Z _=4=B_+VHMEX -

5 B L B
AEBEABLEERZ BEELABRUET A

RENETFHE-cEBZHRABHEEER
ARt E 2 S E A IREEE R -

Annual Report 2023 929
2023F £



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEET R

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and
associates of the Group during the Year.

LITIGATIONS

The Group was not involved in any material litigations during the Year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had no significant capital commitment
(2022: nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2023, a bank deposit of RMB5,000,000 (2022: nil) was
pledged to a bank to secure general banking facilities granted to the
Group. The pledged bank deposit will be released upon settlement of
relevant bills payables. Another bank deposit of RMB500,000 (30 June
2022: nil) was restricted by a bank in respect of the issue of customs
guarantee to the PRC customs department. The restricted bank deposit
will be released upon the completion of the respective transactions.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30 June 2023, there were 546 (2022: 321) staff members
employed by the Group. The Group remunerates its employees mainly
based on industry practices and the employees’ respective educational
background, experience and performance. On top of the regular
remuneration and discretionary bonus, share options may be granted
to selected employees by reference to the Group's performance as
well as individuals” performance. In addition, each employee enjoys
mandatory provident fund, medical allowance and other fringe
benefits.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-
managed retirement benefits schemes (“Schemes”) operated by the
PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the Schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the Schemes is to make
the required contributions under the Schemes.
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The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee-
administered funds.

During the Year, there was no forfeited contribution under the
abovementioned MPF Scheme available for the Group to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 30 June 2023, the Group had no significant contingent liabilities.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the Year, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the Year (2022: nil).

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events have occurred after the Year.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial conditions, results of operations, businesses and
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. Key
risks and uncertainties affecting the Group are set out below:

The Group'’s provision of coal mining services and
construction services business has a concentrated clientele
base

The Group's provision of coal mining services and construction
services derived its revenue from less than five customers. The
concentration of revenue from one customer exposes the Group to
various risks that could have a material adverse impact on its revenue.
In the event that the customer experiences any adverse business
conditions or terminates its business relationship with the Group
and should the management fail to timely identify and engage new
customers, there may be a material adverse impact on the Group’s
profitability, results of operations and financial condition. To minimize
the above risks, the Group is actively seeking to expand its customer
base.
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No long-term contracts with the Group’s customers

The Group provides coal mining operation and construction services
to its customers pursuant to management contracts which normally
carry a term of one to two years. There may be a risk that the Group’s
customers will not renew the management contracts with the Group
or the Group failed to engage new customers. If such events occur,
the Group's future revenue and profitability will be adversely affected.
Further, the Group's past revenue and profit margin may not be an
accurate indicator for the Group’s future revenue and profit margin. In
particular, the Group's revenue is mainly project-based which is non-
recurrent in nature. Accordingly, the Group may achieve lower-than-
expected revenue if it fails to maintain continuity of its order book for
new projects. To minimize the above risk, the Group has developed a
significant know-how and expertise with respect of the operation of
the mines that were being serviced and have a deep understanding of
the needs and requirements of the customers to meet the expectation
of the customers, which is expected to enhance the customers’ loyalty
and willingness to continue to engage the Group for mining operation
and construction services.

Mining and construction service operations are subject to
operating risks, hazards and unexpected disruptions

Mining and construction service operations are subject to a number
of operating risks and hazards, some of which are beyond the Group’s
control. These operating risks and hazards include: (i) unexpected
maintenance or technical problems; (i) interruptions to the mining
operations due to unfavourable weather conditions and natural
disasters (such as earthquakes, floods and landslides); (iii) accidents;
(iv) electricity or water supplies interruptions; (v) critical equipment
failures in the mining operations; and (vi) unusual or unexpected
variations in the mine and geological or mining conditions, such
as instability of the slopes and subsidence of the working areas.
These risks and hazards may result in personal injury, damage to,
or destruction of production facilities, environmental damages and
could temporarily disrupt the Group’s operations and damage the
Group’s business reputation. To minimize the above risks, the Group
will continuously enhance corporate management and has adopted
disaster recovery policy with the aim to minimise the impact of
such unexpected disruptions on its mining and construction service
operation.

32 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited
M SERIRBEERRAE

BEAKERERIIIIRAEYN

FEEREESGHNRAETREHIEBERRXEER
BERD  2E60—RAP—EMF -AIELFE
AERNERIAGEFAERBEREESNULE
B RAEEEBGHTE P BVER - HIFRRFR R &
Bz R W m R B BE DG EAFF & b 5h
AEBBENRGE KA BFRRG R EBRKK
HRMERNEEER CHERESEBN NG

EUNEERER BIFEEE It HEAEEF
FERFENEBSTENERN  ~*EEHN KA
FERMN TR - HAE LR > AEEERIKFIR
HIERFHRBE: EELERHEENEMRAEKRE
FEDDERATRERNBERER LURER
P RHAREAZRANESHET #EZE AR
EEREXRFEEENERRFHEM-

REREZRBEEDHREERR £ERES
R B

KEREERGEZERRZSREEARKES
HPff o BEAEBVERSLE 2FEERR
REEEE ()VEINVHEEIRMEE (NBHX
R TR BAKE G0 E KK FBW) &Y
REEEEDE S (INEINFEH (VB KHED
B (VRIEZEPRRRFHHE ; KR(ViiELL Rt
HRBIRFER R IILE AR KRB R T
F&IF -ZERABREENGTERAZTBE £
EXRMZENER REES U EERAEH
EERBRTEHNESAEENEBEE - HEE
Lt RS AEEREEIL R DEEIR ) I ERM
KBEMERE SESERBEINPEHERER
BRERBEZOTE-



Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEm R

The Group's business faces increasing competition from
competitors

The Group faces increasing competition from other mining extraction
and related service providers, particularly in view of the current
unfavourable condition of coal mining market. The Group’s major
competitors are PRC based mining service providers in Inner Mongolia.
With fierce market competition, the Group may have to lower the fee
charged for mining related services to increase its competitiveness,
leading to a decrease in the Group'’s profit margin and ultimately may
have an adverse effect on its business, financial position and results
of operations. To minimize the above risks, the Group will continuously
enhance corporate management and keep improving quality of its
services to remain competitive and maintaining good customers
relationship.

PRC laws, regulation and governmental policies changes for
the mining industry and provision of heating industries could
adversely affect the Group's business

A significant degree of control over the mining industry is exercised
by the PRC local, provincial and central authorities. The Group's
operations are governed by a wide range of PRC laws, regulations,
policies, standards and requirements in relation to, among other
things, mine exploration and exploitation, production safety,
environmental protection, taxation, labour, foreign investment and
operation management. Any change to these laws, regulations,
policies, standards and requirements or to the interpretation or
implementation or establishment of any local practice in enforcing
such laws, regulations, policies such as limited capacity and de-
capacity, standards and requirements may incur additional compliance
efforts and increase the Group's operating costs and thus adversely
affect its mining business, financial condition and results of operations.
To minimize the above risks, the Group will closely liaise with the
mine owners to keep track of the national regulatory policy for the
coal industry and change of policy in mineral resources management
so that the Group could respond to any change in regulations in a
timely manner and comprehensively understand policies to ensure the
Group's normal operations.
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Credit risks on the Group’s loan portfolio

The Group's money lending business is exposed to credit risks from
our customers. There is no assurance that the financial positions of
the Group's customers will remain healthy in the future and as most of
the loans provided by the Group are unsecured loans, the Group may
not able to recover the outstanding payments from our customers on
time. If the Group is unable to effectively maintain the quality of its loan
portfolio, it will be exposed to risks of unrecoverable loans. To minimize
the above risks, the Group has imposed credit control measures and
conducts due diligence in order to have a good understanding on the
background and financial strength of the customers before approving
the grant of loans.

Fluctuations in prices of fresh produce products could materially and
adversely affect the Group's profitability and the results of operations.

The Group controls its costs depending on its ability to secure fresh
produce products that meet the Group's quality standards from the
suppliers at reasonable prices. The directors expect the costs of fresh
produce products to account for substantially all its cost of sales. The
procurement price of fresh produce products, particularly fruits could
be volatile due to a variety of factors beyond the Group's control. The
price of fresh produce products may be affected by factors such as
global and domestic economic conditions, relevant regulations and
policies, and changes in supply and demand in the market.

Sales of perishable fresh produce products, and product supply
disruptions or disruptions to the Group's logistics network may have an
adverse impact on the profitability and operating results.

The Group relied on third-party logistics service providers to import the
fruits and delivered fresh produce products to customers. The Group's
logistics service providers may be interrupted, suspended or cancelled
due to unforeseen events such as COVID-19, which could cause the
decay of the fruit products and increase our loss rate. The customs
clearance procedures for importing fruits could be lengthy and could
adversely affect the timely supply of such fruits.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cai Da, aged 48, joined the Company as an executive Director
on 16 May 2013. Mr. Cai was re-designated from the chairman
(“Chairman”) to the co-chairman of the Company on 20 August
2018 and re-designated to Chairman on 1 January 2023. He is the
chairman of nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”) and
the member of remuneration committee (‘Remuneration Committee”)
of the Company. Mr. Cai holds a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering
from Hunan University of Science and Technology in the PRC. Mr.
Cai then obtained a master's degree in business administration from
Bangor University in Wales, the United Kingdom in January 2016. In
June 2017, Mr. Cai obtained a doctorate of business administration
in Management from the INSEEC Group in Paris, France, which is a
programme jointly organised with the Research Institute of Tsinghua
University in Shenzhen, PRC. Mr. Cai has also been the vice president
of the Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce since June 2012.
He is currently a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Cai
had extensive working experience in various private companies from
different business sectors in Hong Kong and PRC, including among
others, mining and energy, real estate and tourism.

Mr. Li Wai Hung, aged 61, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 30 September 2009. Mr. Li acted as Chairman during the
period from 22 November 2011 to 9 January 2015. He has accumulated
over 30 years of experience in sales related business and held senior
positions in various companies.

Mr. Wang Tong Tong, aged 34, joined the Company as an executive
Director on 12 February 2018. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Food
Science and Engineering from Inner Mongolia Agricultural University.
Mr. Wang has over five years' experience in finance and projects
management.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Na Na, aged 50, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 September 2015. She is the chairman
of the audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”) and
Remuneration Committee. She holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce
in Accountancy and Management Studies from University of
Wollongong in Australia. She is also an associate member of Certified
Practising Accountant Australia and an associate member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Wong has
accumulated over 10 years of working experience.

Mr. Chen Xier, aged 57, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 August 2018. He is the member of Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee. He holds a Bachelor Degree
of Law from East China University of Political Science and Law. Mr.
Chen is currently a senior partner of a well-known legal firm in the PRC.
He is also a committee member of Shenzhen Lawyers Associate in
Construction Engineering Law Service Committee. Mr. Chen has been a
practicing solicitor in the PRC for over 30 years.

Ms. Lei Ming, aged 42, graduated from Tongji University with a
bachelor’s degree in business administration. She obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Xiangtan University in 2016.
Ms. Lei has over 14 years of experience in the IT industry. She is
the founder and the chairman of a company incorporated in the
PRC which is principally engaged in researching, developing, and
manufacturing intelligent robots.

Mr. Huang Tianhua, aged 57, is an engineer and graduated from
Southwest University of Science and Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in mining engineering. Mr. Huang has extensive experience
in the trading of mineral products and corporate management. He
currently holds a senior position in an investment company. Mr. Huang
sold 40% of the total equity interest in Sino-Mongolia Fluorspar Mining
Co., Ltd., to the Company. For further information, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2012. Subsequently, the
Company'’s interest in Sino-Mongolia Fluorspar Mining Co., Ltd. was
disposed of to an independent third party in 2017.
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Corporate Governance Report
EERERRS

The Board is committed to maintaining a good corporate governance
standard. The Board believes that a good corporate governance
standard will provide a framework for the Group to formulate the
business strategies and policies, and manage the associated risks
through effective internal control procedures. It will also enhance the
transparency of the Group and strengthen the accountability to the
shareholders and creditors of the Company.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company endeavors in maintaining high standards of corporate
governance for the enhancement of shareholders’ value. Save as
disclosed in the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer section of this
corporate governance report, the Company has applied the principles
of and complied with all the applicable code provisions and, where
appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code") as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules throughout the year ended 30
June 2023 (the "Year”).

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct
of the Company regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
The Company has made specific enquiry of all the Directors, and the
Directors have complied with the required standard of dealings and the
Company's code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has overall responsibility for the management of the
Company which includes, inter alia, the Group’s corporate policy
formulation, business strategies planning, business development, risk
management, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and other significant operational and financial matters.

The Board currently has seven Directors, among them, three are
executive Directors and four are independent non-executive Directors.
Members of the Board have different professional and relevant
industry experiences and background so as to bring in valuable
contributions and advice for the development of the Group’s business.
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The Board holds meetings on a regular basis and will meet on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter is
required. The Board held 10 meetings during the Year. Directors
are aware that they should give sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company. The attendance of each Director for the Board
meeting is set out below:

EFEEHBRTER TENAHESEEEF

HRENFHEFRNREMKERTER - EFS

REFERTIOREZ - ZEFHNTHEHE

AANEHBRTRERERARTI REFHEE
CERMREUT :

Board meeting

Name of Directors EEHY EETEE
Executive Directors: WITESE:

Mr. Cai Da — Chairman gBESRE—FF 10/10
Mr. Li Wai Hung FRBEE 10/10
Mr. Wong Tong Tong B G has 10/10
Mr. Li Xiang Hong (resigned on 1 January 2023) TEREE (R ZEZ=F—F—HFF) a/4
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIEHITES -

Ms. Wong Na Na SRR £+ 10/10
Mr. Chen Xier FRAR 52 10/10
Mr. Huang Tianhua @ppointed on 11 November 2022) & REEHE (R - &E - —F+—H+—HEZSF) 7/7
Ms. Lei Ming (@ppointed on 11 November 2022) ERYt (R ZEZ —F+—F+—HEZSE) 7/7
Mr. Wang Zhixiang (resigned on 11 November 2022) ~ EER&E (R ZE - —F+—F+—HEHE) 3/3
Ms. Feng libei (resigned on 11 November 2022) BRELT (W ZE - —F+—H+—HF T 3/3

The biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profiles of Directors” on pages 35 to 36 of this annual report.
The updated list of Directors and their role and function are published
at the GEM website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website.

During the Year, the Directors have been supplied with adequate and
relevant information in a timely manner. They may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the expense
of the Company. The Company will, upon request, provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company. The Company has arranged
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against
the Directors. The Board delegates the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group’s business to the
management of the relevant segments and divisions. The management
is responsible for the implementation and adoption of the Company’s
strategies and policies. The delegated functions and tasks are
periodically reviewed by the Board.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The newly
appointed Directors were provided with an induction and information
to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities under relevant
statue, laws, rules and regulations. Up to the date of this report, all
Directors have participated in continuous professional development
by attending training course, or relating materials/in house briefing
on the topics related to corporate governance and regulations. All
Directors had confirmed their participating in continuous professional
development for the year ended 30 June 2023.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Cai Da, the chairman of the Company,
who is responsible for providing leadership to and ensuring the
effectiveness of the Board, and performing the roles of the chairman
for the purposes of the articles of association of the Company, the
Corporate Governance Code and the GEM Listing Rules, for overall
leadership in the strategic development of the business of the Group.
Following the resignation of the chief executive officer of the Company
in January 2021, the Board has not yet appointed a new chief executive
of the Company. Currently, the duties of the chief executive have since
then been undertaken by the executive directors of the Company
collectively. The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the
Board and the need of appointment of a suitable candidate to perform
the role of chief executive. Appointment will be made to fill the post if
a suitable candidate is selected to meet the expansion of the Group
and so comply with code provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

As at 30 June 2023, pursuant to Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has four independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board, and one of them
has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The independent non-executive
Directors ensure the Board prepares its financial and other mandatory
reports in strict compliance with required standards, and ensure the
Company maintains an appropriate system to protect the interests and
shareholders of the Company. The Company has received from each
of the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation in
respect of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Company considers that all of
the independent non-executive Directors are independent. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has entered into an appointment
letter with the Company. for a specific term of one year, which is
renewable automatically for successive terms of one year. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meeting of the Company (the "AGM”) at least once every three years in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ngai Man Wo (“Mr. Ngai”), a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, was appointed as company
secretary of the Company in November 2015. According to the
requirements of Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Ngai has taken
not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the Year.

THE BOARD COMMITTEES

In accordance with the CG Code, the Board established three board
committees, namely the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the board committees are posted on the GEM website
of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s website. The board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

40 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited
M SERIRBEERRAE

BIUFRTESE

S TEC=ZFRXA=+TH BECGEMLHRAE
5.05(% AARANLBUFATES HEFT
ANBBB=02Z2— MEFT—LEEGEZEX
ERN S NERYHEEREEN - BIIFHR
NTEERFEFIRRERRERNRREYH
REMBHIERS REFREADEFEENGE
WREFRATARERRNAGE - A RBDERES
BIFAITESRIBEGEM LM ARAIFES.09% 2 KR
EMEBUMMEHZ FERIE - BENZRES
2R AERRMEBILIFRITESTARBIL &
BUFATEFHEARATITUEZRER BEE
Hn—F UESEN—F -REARELALTZ
HBERBELE=FREARARREERE
(TRREBFREG)) tREREREESEE—R-

NEME

BMXMEE (BREE) REBEHMATEER
REFHF ARG AEEREE N _F—0
F+—PBEZERETRBZATWE - RIBFGEM
EHRRIESIMFEZRE  MALENRETFEEER
ORI NEF Z AEREF 55l o

EFXZET

BECXEATA EFENY-—BEEEET"
B#MEE S RLEEERERZES  UE
REARBDEBZHERB -ARTAMBEEFEE
EHEREEARERE EFEZEGZER
5B 12 0[] 1) 0 7 Bt AT PR GEM AR I e 2 /1 B) 4 it o
EFLEeEREMHREERUBTREZHE
TAFHEEEREBERR TSRBIEER
R BERBRAATKE-



Corporate Governance Report
EERERRS

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at
the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Na Na
(committee chairman), Mr. Huang Tianhua and Ms. Lei Ming and one
executive Director, namely. Mr. Cai Da.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (i) making
recommendations to the Board on policies and structure for all
remuneration of Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
policy on such remuneration; (ii) determining the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management;
and (iii) making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meeting during the Year and
reviewed the remuneration policy of the Company, assessed the
performance of the executive Directors and senior management and
recommended specific remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management to the Board. The attendance of each member
during the Year is set out below:

HMEEE

AABERIFMEE S BLRFEEEEGTH
SIEEERELE -RNARSE FTMEEEH
“RBUFRTEFINHE (ZEEERE) »
BEREREREBUTIUR—BATESEES
EHERL -
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5%t ©

REFE #FNEETERTINERLBRSAT LA
BZHMBR B ATEShSREEBZR
R URRESEkeREEBZREHMNTER
EFORHEBEZ AFEEMBEZHERH
ER TR

Number of
meetings
attended

Members [54=1 HEFERH
Ms. Wong Na Na — Chairman IR - 3/3
Mr. Cai Da BELt 3/3
Mr. Huang Tianhua (@ppointed on 11 November 2022) & REEHE (R -&E - —F+—H+—HEZE) 2/2
Ms. Lei Ming (@ppointed on 11 November 2022) BBt (W E - —F+—H+—HESE) 2/2
Mr. Wang Zhixiang (resigned on 11 November 2022) — E&wtdett (F ZF - —F+—F+—HEFE) 11
Ms. Feng libei (resigned on 11 November 2022) BlET+ (R _E - —F+—H+—HEHT) 11
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. During
the Year, the Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board and determined the policy for
the nomination of Directors.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chen Xier, Mr.
Huang Tianhua and Ms. Lei Ming and one executive Director, Mr. Cai Da
(Committee Chairman).

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
(i) formulating nomination policy, (i) making recommendations
to the Board on nomination and appointment of Directors and
Board succession, developing selection procedures for nomination
candidates, (iii) reviewing the size, structure, composition and diversity
of the Board, (iv) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors and (v) review the board diversity policy of the
Company (the “Board Diversity Policy”) and the measurable objectives
that the Board has set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the Year and
made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors
and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board. The
attendance of each member during the Year is set out below:
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Number of
meetings
attended

Members [54=1 HEEERY
Mr. Cai Da — Chairman RERE—FFE 2/2
Mr. Chen Xier P4 52 5o 2/2
Mr. Huang Tianhua (@ppointed on 11 November 2022) & XKENRE K —F - —F+—FH+—HEZT) 1/1
Ms. Lei Ming (@ppointed on 11 November 2022) BRGT (R _E-—F+—H+—HEZE) 11

Mr. Wang Zhixiang (resigned on 11 November 2022)
Ms. Feng Jibei (resigned on 11 November 2022)

42 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited
MHIEAERIRE EEARAR

FEHEE (W ZEZZF+— A+ —HFF)
BB (R FE-—F+—F+—HFT

11
11



Corporate Governance Report

EEXRERERS

Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at the date
of this report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Na Na (committee chairman),
Mr. Chen Xier, Mr. Huang Tianhua and Ms. Lei Ming. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the Company’s annual report
and accounts, interim reports and quarterly reports, (i) provide advice
and comments thereon to the Board and (iii) review and supervise
the Group’s financial reporting, internal control procedures and risk
management systems. The Audit Committee held five meetings during
the Year. Two of the meetings was attended by the Company’s external
auditors so that the members of the Audit Committee could exchange
their views and concerns with the auditors.

The Audit Committee reviewed the Group's quarterly reports for
the three months and nine months ended 30 September 2022
and 31 March 2023 respectively, interim report for the six months
ended 31 December 2022 and the Group's audited annual results
for the year ended 30 June 2023. The Audit Committee also made
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recommendations to the Board and the management in respect of the BZEE SN AEE ZHEERLANILEITRE
Group's financial reporting and internal control procedures. FREEeAEEBIREEERS-
The attendance of each member during the Year is set out below: KEEEREZHEBEREHIWOT :

Number of
meetings
attended

Members K8 HEEERH
Ms. Wong Na Na — Chairman IR - 5/5
Mr. Chen Xier FRAM 52 S 5/5
Mr. Huang Tianhua (@appointed on 11 November 2022) &REf E (R - E - —F+—F+—HEZ(F) 2/2
Ms. Lei Ming (@ppointed on 11 November 2022) BB (W _E__—F+—H+—HEZT) 2/2
Mr. Wang Zhixiang (resigned on 11 November 2022) ~ EE#&E (R - FE - —F+—F+—HET) 3/3
Ms. Feng libei (resigned on 11 November 2022) EBlET+ (R E - —F+—H+—HEHT) 3/3
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DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Any nomination of Directors will be reviewed and assessed by
Nomination Committee for his suitability according to the nomination
policy of the Company and the Board Diversity Policy. Suitable
candidates will be recommended by Nomination Committee to the
Board for consideration of appointment. Pursuant to the bye-laws of
the Company, any Director appointed to fill vacancy shall hold office
until the next following general meeting or AGM of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting, and every Director
is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
shall be eligible for re-election at such AGM.

Any further re-appointment of an independent non-executive director,
who has served the Board for more than nine years, will be subject
to a separate resolution to be approved by the Shareholders. Up to
the report date, no independent non-executive Director had been
appointed by the Company for over nine years.

In order to enable the shareholders making an informed decision on
the re-election of Directors, the biographical details demonstrating
qualifications, experience, expertise, leadership and other directorships
held in listed companies of the retiring Directors were set out in the
circular which will be dispatched to the Shareholders.

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

The auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, provide both statutory audit
and non-audit services to the Group. For the Year, fee for statutory
audit for the Group amounts to HK$1,430,000. Non-audit services
include tax review during the Year. The total fee paid by the Group for
non-audit services was approximately HK$42,000.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the profit and
cash flows for the Year. The Directors have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis, and have selected
appropriate accounting policies and applied them consistently, with
applicable disclosures required under the GEM Listing Rules and
pursuant to the relevant statutory requirements.

The statement issued by the auditor of the Company, SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited, regarding their reporting responsibilities is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 95 to 101 of
this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
risk management and internal control systems for the Group to
safeguard its assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for
reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on an on-going basis.
Such risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in achieving
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatements or loss. The
Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of
risk management and internal control to the Audit Committee and
the management would assist the Audit Committee to carry out the
risk management procedures. The Audit Committee (on behalf of the
Board) oversees the management in the design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems for
the year ended 30 June 2023.

A Risk Management Policy has been established for formalizing the
risk management system of the Group, so as to ensure the Group
is operating in a safety and steady environment and the Group's
operational strategy and target could be achieved. The current
practices will be reviewed and updated regularly to follow the latest
practices in corporate governance.

The risk management process of the Group will involve, among others,
(i) a periodical risk identification and analysis exercise which involves
assessment of the consequence and likelihood of identified risks and
the development of risk management plans for mitigating such risks;
and (i) an annual risk management meeting for the review of the
identified risks, the implementation of the risk management plans and
enhancing the implementation plan when necessary.
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Process Used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant
Risks

As a routine procedure and part of the risk management and internal
control systems, Executive Directors and the senior management
would meet continuously to review the financial and operating
performance of each segment. The senior management of the key
operating subsidiaries is also required to keep Executive Directors
informed of material developments of the department’s business and
implementation of the strategies and policies set by the Board on a
regular basis. The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks by the Group are summarized as follows:

Risk Identification

o Identifies risks that may potentially affect the Group’s business
and operations.

Risk Assessment

o Assesses the risks identified by using the assessment criteria

developed by the management; and

o Considers the impact on the business and the likelihood of their
occurrence.

Risk Response

o Prioritises the risks by comparing the results of the risk

assessment; and

. Determines the risk management strategies and internal control
processes to prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

o Performs ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and

ensures that appropriate internal control processes are in place;

o Revises the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation; and

o Reports the results of risk monitoring to the management and
the Board regularly.
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The Group has engaged an independent professional adviser (the
“Internal Control Adviser”) to conduct the annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 30 June 2023. The scope of the review included
the revenue cycle and expenditure cycle for the four of our operating
subsidiaries in Shenzhen. Internal Control Adviser has reported major
findings and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee. All
recommendations from Internal Control Adviser would be followed
up closely to ensure that they are implemented. The Group therefore
considered that the Group's risk management and internal control
processes are adequate to meet the needs of the Company in its
current business environment and that nothing has come to its
attention to cause the Board to believe the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are inadequate.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
basis to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. Pursuant to the policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and education
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. As at the date of this report, the Board comprises
ten Directors, amongst them, four are independent non-executive
Directors, thereby promoting critical review and control of the
management process. The Board is also characterised by significant
diversity, regardless in terms of age, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The nomination committee will review the policy from time
to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted a nomination policy setting out the
nomination procedures and criteria for selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship. Nomination Committee would make
recommendations to the Board regarding the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors, with reference to the skills, knowledge,
experiences education background, professional knowledge, personal
integrity of the proposed candidates, and also the Company’s needs
and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations required for
the positions. A candidate who is to be appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director should also meet the independence criteria
as set out in the Listing Rules. Qualified candidates will then be
recommended to the Board for approval.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) on 8
May 2019. The Dividend Policy aims to set out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to
the shareholders of the Company. The key term of the Dividend Policy
are as follow:

= The Board adopts the policy that, in recommending or declaring
dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves
for meeting its working capital requirements and future growth
as well as its shareholder value.

- The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
payout ratio.

- The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company, subject to the articles
of association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations and other factors.

- The Board shall also take into account the following factors of
the Group when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

(i) the financial condition of the Group;

(i) the Group's actual and future operations and liquidity
position;

(i) the Group's expected working capital requirements and
future expansion plans;

(iv)  the Group's debt to equity ratios and the debt level;

(v) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

(vi) the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

(vii) the shareholders’ and investors” expectation and industry’s
norm;

(viii) the general market conditions; and

(ix) any other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE POLICY

To ensure timely, fair, accurate and complete disclosure of inside
information and for compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations, the Group has in place, as an internal control element,
a serious of disclosure procedures of price sensitive information on
reporting and dissemination of inside information and preservation
of confidentiality. Under the current practice, the directors aware any
potential/suspected inside information event as soon as practicable
when it materializes for determining the nature of developments, and
if required, making disclosure. All staff are also required to observe the
code of ethical standards to keep non-public information confidential.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company provides shareholders with high standards of
disclosure and financial transparency in a timely manner through the
publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports, announcements
and circulars on the GEM website of the Stock Exchange. Such
published documents together with the corporate information
of the Company are also available on the Company’s website
(http://www.silkroadenergy.com.hk).

During the Year, separate resolutions were proposed at the general
meetings of the Company for each substantial issue, including the
re-election of Directors. The chairman of the meeting explained the
procedures for conducting a poll at the beginning of each general
meeting of the Company held during the Year. The results of the
poll were published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year.
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INTRODUCTION
Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”, “we” or “us”) are
pleased to present to the stakeholders the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “Report”) for the year 2023, focusing on the
Group’s sustainable development initiatives in various areas, which
will enable stakeholders to understand our strategy, management
approach and performance related to sustainability. We also aim
to collect opinions from our stakeholders to further enhance our
sustainability management system, and promote our environmental,

social and governance (“ESG”) efforts.

Reporting Year and Scope

The reporting period for this Report is from 1 July 2022 to 30 June 2023
(the "Reporting Period” or the “Year").

Unless otherwise stated, the scope of this Report covers the money
lending business in Hong Kong, the fruits importing business of
Zhongtai Hongzhi Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited* (fhZ
EERE CRYI) BRRAE) (“Zhongtai Hongzhi”) and the agricultural
trading business of live pigs, live cattle, eggs and sugar in Shenzhen.
The scope of reporting for the current year is broadly the same as
for the previous year, except that the number of companies engaged
in agricultural trading business has increased compared to previous
years.
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Reporting Standard

To ensure this Report clearly presents the ESG issues of concern to
our stakeholders, we have prepared the Report in compliance with the
following 4 reporting principles and the latest disclosure requirements
of the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” as set
out in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”). The corporate governance section has been stated
separately under the “Corporate Governance Report” section in this
annual report. The last section of the Report contains the index as
per the “Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” for
reference.
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Through assessing the materiality based on the views
of our stakeholders, we determine the material issues
of ESG of the Group and the focus of this Report.
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Balance

&

Consistency

—HtE

In order to maintain a balanced
performance profile, we continue to
review the areas where the report can

be improved and do everything possible to
provide unbiased information.
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Materiality

Quantitative

We adopted an electronic data collection system to
improve the accuracy of data, so as to disclose the
performance of our key performance indicators about
the ESG to stakeholders in a quantitative manner.
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We adopt a consistent report

E1t framework and methodology

to disclose the performance of

our key performance indicators in

different areas, and provide existing

and historical data for stakeholders’
comparison.
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The information disclosed in this Report includes ESG issues of
greatest concern to our key stakeholders. We are committed to
following the reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance
and consistency as the basic principles hereof in preparing this Report.
In the long run, We are committed to enhance the transparency of the
Group's sustainability performance and disclose more comprehensive
ESG information.

Your Feedback

The Group places great emphasis on the views of all stakeholders.
We hope to further improve the Group's performance in business
sustainability in the future through collecting stakeholders’ opinions.
Therefore, we welcome your valuable feedback on the sustainable
development policies and performance of the Group. In case of any
suggestions, please contact the Group by the following way:

E-mail :info@silkroadenergy.com.hk

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT POLICIES

We strongly promote an environmentally friendly and resource-saving
working environment. We try to minimize our adverse impact on the
environment by reducing waste and saving energy in the course of
business. We also aim to promote green production by providing
environmental training and raising the environmental awareness of our
employees. In addition, we consider the occupational health and safety
of our employees to be an important part of our business operations.
We will continue to review and improve our existing safety measures
with our best effort to minimize the risk of occupational injuries to our
employees.
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ONGOING AND EFFECTIVE INTERNAL CONTROL
AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The board of directors is solely responsible for the strategy and report
of the ESG issues of the Group and delegates responsibility for the
preparation of the Report to the management and the relevant teams.

The Group understands the importance of internal control and risk
management, and a well internal control and risk management system
is closely related to the sustainable development of an enterprise.
The Board of the Group is responsible for leading the sustainable
development of the Group and continues to monitor our internal
control and risk management system so as to identify risk factors
that may endanger the Group’s development, including operational,
financial, compliance and environmental protection risks. Meanwhile,
corresponding risk control measures will be adopted. In addition, our
Audit Committee will continue to monitor the Group's work for internal
control and risk management maintain effectiveness of the internal
control mechanism.

During the Year, we engaged an independent consultancy firm to
review our risk management and internal control systems. We will
take corresponding rectification measures based on the suggestions
the consultancy firm made for us, so as to further enhance the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. Meanwhile, the opinions of stakeholders can enhance the
Group's ESG-related risk management. Therefore, we wish to collect
opinions from various stakeholder groups, through actively developing
different communication channels to conduct materiality analysis, so
that our sustainable development plans and goals can fully reflect their
concerns. Lastly, we hope the supervision and improvement of the
internal control and risk management system will be complemented
by the sustainable development policies, internal control and risk
management policies of the Group, and in turn achieve sustainable
development vision of the Group.
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Stakeholder engagement is of utmost importance in formulating
the Group's ESG strategies, defining goals, assessing materiality and
determining policies. The Group has identified principal stakeholders
including customers, suppliers, employees, shareholders and investors,

FHRENSHR

RHENSEEAEBRNESGRE -BRATE &
EUFERBRFIEEFER -AEEHA T E
ENRFMHE AEER HEB BT -RRHER
BEE BASPNEERERLE - TRIIALRE

government departments and regulatory agencies and communities.

The following table illustrates the principal channels which the Group
communicates with stakeholders and their issues of concern:

Stakeholders
FinE

phannels of Communication
BEAR

Issues of Concern
RAEEE

EEZRFNEBBNIBREKREEIZHRE !

Customers e Communications on Daily Operations e Product and Service Quality
=R BHEEE LM EmkBRHoE
e Customer Feedback Investigation e Customer Privacy Protection
BERRERAD B RATABRRE
Suppliers e Supplier Performance Review e Fair and Open Competition
HEER HEmRIRTE REREHRE
e Meetings and Interviews e Supply Chain Management
R E HEEEIE
e Site Visits
BRE
Employees e Performance Appraisals e QOccupational Health and Safety
BT RFBEREZ BEZEKERE
e Internal Department Meetings e Equal Opportunities
ERPIER & TEHSE
e Trainings and Workshops e Employee Benefits
Bl R TEYS BTRF
e |eisure and Entertainment e Career Development
Competition BEERE
KRR S L
e Team Building Activity
ElEs-Et
e Questionnaire
BERE
Shareholders and Investors | e Annual General Meeting e Investment Return
R EE REBFERY b= Ik
e Announcement and Circular ¢ Information Disclosure and
NE B R Transparency
e Company Website BIRERSEAE
NE) B e Protection of Shareholders’ Rights

and Interests and Fair Treatment of
Shareholders
RERRERD R ATLHERE
Corporate Sustainable Development
TEOFELER

Government Departments

Written or Electronic Correspondence

Compliance with Country

and Regulators ERMJEFERRMF Policies and Laws
B F 36 P AN 85 B 1 48 e Publishment of Business Results BT B R K
HEBEBM e Timely Tax Payment
e Questionnaire R EF AR AR
BEREE e Promoting Regional Economic
Development and Employment
REREKBERERME
communities e Meetings and Communications e Contribution to the Society
& BEM Bl g
e Environmental Protection
IRIGIRE
e Ethical Operation
BERE

54 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited

SRR ERBRAE




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIB-HEREGRS

MATERIALITY ANALYSIS EEMI

When preparing the materiality analysis, in addition to the constant EHRBEEEEDTE > ZATBR T ESERE
communication channels, the Company also conducted online surveys B4 IRET TR LELBEAET  BHEIFMET
and invited stakeholders to score the materiality of the 25 identified BEAIM25EE AT ITEERZEETEEMLT
material sustainability issues, to help the Group confirm the issues 3 URESRH AEEM S BAZEANZE > (EME
that are significant for us and improve our sustainable development 1ERPIKEOAIIFE L EN AR - BEEHE D
approach and strategies. The steps of materiality analysis include the — #TRYF EREI3E LU T PEES ©

following stages:

Identifying Collecting Assessment
Material Issues Stakeholders Scoring Results

HAUEEES WERHRETD AR
In our materiality Various stakeholders were Materiality analysis is
assessment process, we invited to participate in the & carried out after collecting
mainly referred to the “ESG online feedback survey the scores by stakeholders
Reporting Guide” of the and score various issues and taking into account
Stock Exchange to identify through questionnaire. the opinions of the
material issues related to management of the Group.
the Group. BraS N B UE LS

FERETRRAT mME WERH BT E

EMEEEENTEN THsR AT 7 © TEEEEENERET

BFEH TEZSEMIR
(ESG#R 51551 ) Al 24
EEEMNEZEE

BEEMDHMH-
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Materiality Assessment Analysis Chart

Based on the results of the questionnaire survey, the Group has
identified the material sustainable development issues associated with
our business and formed the following materiality matrix. The upper
right corner of the materiality matrix sets out the most critical issues
derived from this analysis. We will manage the issues through standard
system and sound policies and make key disclosures in the Report.
In terms of the lower-scored issues, the Group will continue to keep
an eye on them. In the future, the Group will continue to understand
the feedbacks and suggestions of stakeholders through diversified,
transparent, credible and accurate communication channels, thereby
improving our sustainable development strategy.
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Sustainability Development Issues

AIFERREE
Diversity and Anti-discrimination 14. Supply Chain Management
2tk RIER HERSE
Employment Relations 15. Supplier Environment and Social Performance
B (BRI AR Evaluation
HEEIRIE Rt 8 RITTH
Occupational Safety and Health 16. Anti-corruption
HEZERIER RERER
“ Training and Development 17. contingency Plans for Disasters
BEillkEE KERZTAE
Child Labour and Forced Labour 18. Product and Service Quality
BT RARES EnkRBRE
- Employee Benefits 19. Product Safety
BIER ERZ:
Greenhouse Gas Emission 20. Complaint Handling
AE RSB KRR
- Exhaust Gas Emission 21. Intellectual Property
EE R BEK e ERE
- Sewage Discharge 22. Customer Privacy Protection
75 IKBER EREIERE
Waste Disposal 23. Customer Satisfaction
EEZ YRR IE BEEREE
Energy and Water Conservation 24. Participation in Public Welfare Activities
B 49 AE R s A 7K s YNl
Green Procurement 25. Charitable Donation
AR IR BERE
Climate Change
RIEEAME
Disclosure of Material Issues
EERBZEE
EERZERE TR E &
Employee Benefits Employment Policies
BIEH EEBUER
Occupational Safety and Health Occupational Safety and Health
BEZETRER HERERAZSE
Supply Chain Management Supply Chain Management
HEEEIE HEEEIE
Product and Service Quality Product Responsibility
EmkBRHRE mEaF
Product Safety Product Responsibility
EmZd EmafE
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ANTI-CORRUPTION AND INTEGRITY

The Group advocates integrity and rigorously enforce anti-corruption
and anti-bribery management. All directors, senior staff and employees
are required to behave as per high standards of occupational conduct
and to ensure that they will not damage the interests of shareholders,
investors, customers and the public, thereby maintaining the interests
and image of the Group.

The Group has set up anti-fraud management and whistle-blowing
policies with a whistle-blowing mechanism to investigate any
corruption, bribery and fraud and other suspicious cases. In case
of any misconduct, employee can report through the anonymous
channels. The Group guarantees non-disclosure of whistle-blowers'’
identity and report related content, the investigation personnel shall
not disclose any unverified or unauthorized information. In addition,
we have setup a series of evaluation standards to determine if further
investigation is needed when a report is received. The Group upholds
zero-tolerance for any form of corruption including bribery, fraud and
money laundering, and will report it to the relevant judicial authorities.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has not received any complaint
about corruption, bribery or other misconduct.
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Emphasising Anti-Money Laundering and Countering-
Financing of Terrorism

The Group abides by the business principle of integrity in operation,
and commits to comply with the anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws
and regulations of the place where it operates and the requirement
of regulatory agencies, including but not limited to the “Criminal Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, “Criminal Procedure Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, and the “Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, the “Supervision Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” (Cap. 201
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and others related to the prevention of
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. The Group has zero-
tolerance for any form of corruption including bribery, fraud and
money laundering, and will report immediately to the relevant judicial
authorities once discovered. Meanwhile, we have complied with all
laws and regulations on combating money laundering and terrorist
financing in Hong Kong. The Group has put in place specialized rules
and regulations, workflow control, competent personnel and systems
in accordance with Hong Kong laws, guidelines from regulatory
agencies, and recommendations of relevant international organisations
(such as the Financial Action Task Force Against Money Laundering)
to advocate the work of AML/CFT and anti-crime efforts. We have
also appointed senior management personnel of the Group as the
compliance officer and money laundering report officer, responsible
for establishing and maintaining AML/CFT mechanism, inspecting all
internal reports of suspicious transactions, and also acting as a major
point of contact for joint financial intelligence team and other law
enforcement agencies. The Group will also implement more efficient
and targeted workflows, monitoring systems and structures through
regular review of the control measures.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged professional
training institutions to provide anti-corruption related training,
including “Anti-money laundering webinars” for directors and senior
management personnel of the money lending business to improve
their understanding of the responsibilities of licensed money lenders
in AML/CFT. At the same time, the Group'’s Directors and management
will also monitor the internal control of relevant parties for any
suspicious corruption situations and strictly abide by all laws and
regulations on AML/CFT in Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, as far as the directors know, the Group
did not receive any complaints about corruption, bribery or other
misconduct during the Reporting Period.

PROTECTION OF PERSONAL DATA PRIVACY

We prioritize the privacy and confidentiality of employees, customers,
suppliers, business partners and other stakeholders. We strictly
comply with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), and adopted relevant confidentiality system.
In accordance with the “Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money
Laundering and Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed
Money Lenders”, we may collect personal data of customers in the
course of our lending business and other service operated in Hong
Kong, and the Group stipulates that personal privacy information
can be collected and processed by authorized persons only. The
Group requires all staff to strictly observe the relevant confidentiality
obligations, including but not limited to customer information, business
and technical secrets. The information collected will only be used for
the specified purpose and will not be used for any other beneficial
pUrposes.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group did not receive any
complaints regarding violations of the privacy regulations or other
related improper conduct during the Reporting Period.
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IRIE-HERELRHRS

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group places great importance on the occupational safety and
health of its employees and is committed to providing a safe working
environment. We hope to establish “safety first” as the Group's
operation concept, continuously improve the employees’ emergency
handling skills and safety awareness, and shape and promote
corporate safety culture to achieve the goal of ensuring the safety of all
of our employees.

The Group is committed to strictly complying with the relevant laws
and regulations including Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
(Cap. 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases ({HZE
AR HFEE %A% )), Measures on the Administration and
Supervision on Occupational Hygiene of Workplace (Decree No. 47
of State Administration of Work Safety (the “SAWS")) (( T{E3ZFris 2t
BEEBEERATE) ERLZ2EEHRELHE4750)), Measures for
the Declaration of Projects with Occupational Hazards (SAWS Decree
No. 48) ((BERBETEERRINZ) BRLL2EEEFESHEL8
%)), Measures for the Supervision and Administration of Employers’
Occupational Health Surveillance (SAWS Decree No. 49) ({BBAE
X RREEREEENZE) ERZL2EEERELHION)),
Interim Measures for Supervision and Administration of the “Three
Simultaneities” for Occupational Health at Construction Projects (SAWS
Decree No. 51) (EREEBE®EE AR EEEEETINE)
(ARLZEEEMFSE5158)) and the national standard Technical
Specifications for Occupational Health Surveillance (GBZ188-2007)
(B R ER MRS ) (GBZ188-2007)). With regard to the
money lending business operated by the Group in Hong Kong, the
principal place of working is the office, which does not involve major
risks in occupational health and safety, but we continue to commit
to attach great importance to the occupational health and safety
of our employees to provide them with an ideal and safe working
environment.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group was not subject to
any significant administrative sanctions or penalties for any breach of
regulations on safety during the Reporting Period. In addition, we have
not received any reports of work-related injuries or deaths due to work
in the past three years.
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PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group recognises the provision of products and services to high
quality standards is critical to our long-term business success and
is committed to continuously improving customer experience and
satisfaction. The core products of our agricultural trading business
are live pigs, live cattle, eggs and sugar. All trades are strictly in
accordance with relevant national regulations, and we work with
partners to supervise the relevant regulations of livestock and poultry
epidemic prevention. The live pigs transported in live pig trading are
standard outer ternary hybrid pigs, and the volume and weight of the
live pigs are clearly indicated in the contract. In the process of trade,
all industrial regulations and requirements specified in contracts are
strictly followed, and there are strict regulations on the health of
livestock and epidemic prevention certificates. In case of customer
complaints, we will follow up with our partners immediately to avoid
repeated disputes.

In addition, the core product of our fruits importing business is durian
sales. In order to ensure high-quality service, we strictly follow the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China and formulate an
after-sales processing system for price difference compensation,
exchange and return arrangements to effectively handle customer
complaints. We also welcome customer feedback on product quality,
so that we can keep abreast of the situation and follow up. During the
Reporting Period, our after-sales service ratio was controlled within 1%.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group did not recall
products or terminate services due to safety and health reasons during
the Reporting Period. In addition, during the Reporting Period, we have
not received any major complaints with regards to our products or
services.

RESPONSE TO CLIMATE CHANGE

Climate change has become a global concern in recent years.
Human Industrial activities has accelerated climate change, and
industrialization activities, including fossil fuel burning, deforestation
and land use change, have increased greenhouse gas emissions,
leading to a significant increase in atmospheric greenhouse gas
concentrations and enhancing the greenhouse effect, thereby causing
global warming.
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As the accelerated urbanization in PRC has worsened the global
warning and environmental pollution, the management of the Group
understands that climate change risks would have a direct and indirect
impact on the Group’s operation. Accordingly, we will step up climate
change risk management to mitigate the impact of climate change
and smoothly transfer to a low carbon economy. We will regularly
review local government policies, regulatory updates and market

BEPEMHCERMR 2XEERRIT SR
BEHBRE A&EEEEERAREEERR
HAERKEeELERKBEELE AL M
RELZ MR EEENRRER LUREREE
EARAFRBTE  IEFBE MRS - 7
SEMERM S BFER  RIERKRTHIHBE
LRI A SER B PIM X EB BN E B VR ER

trends to identify climate risks that may impose threats to our business B e BRI BN RIESCHBREG T EASER
operations. The risks related to climate change we identified are mainly &~ BRI R g KB EE > 32 5HF 2 T & ¢
physical risk, transition risk and market risk, details are as set out in the

following table:

Climate Change Risks

RIFE(CE

Physical risk — extreme weather brings typhoon, high
temperature, rainstorm and drought, which may lead to
the temporary closure of the office.

BERRR - BERXRBREE SR BRR LR A
SERM QMM TR TR

Counter Measures
P& 5 it

When the government departments issues relevant
extreme weather, the Group will implement safety
measures to ensure the safety of employees according
to the actual situation, such as leaving work early and
working from home.

Regularly review the Group's environmental protection
initiatives and strive to ensure their effectiveness.

EHBUFEFIZEMAERBERRAR  ~2EEERBEERE
MBIz 2R AR T IEARERPAT BEET
LR EIRE

TR AEENIRFERE LAY -

Transition risk — If emission reduction regulatory
measures are released in the operating areas, the Group
will have the chance to arrange additional resources to
deal with the regulations.

BHEARR - MEEMEHASEEER ~EBERT
LHFRRINE RIEE AR

Closely monitor the development of environmental
protection related laws and regulations that may affect
the Group's business, supply chain and customers.

PURRAIREAEEET HERELE R IRFRER
ERBEERRE

Market risk —in the context of low-carbon economy,
consumers and investors reduce their demand for
products and services that do not meet the low-carbon
life, and companies that fail to achieve low-carbon
transformation may be abandoned by consumers and
investors.

mERER - BREESR T O HEERREERBEHT
FFEEREDNEDRMRBHFER EREE DRI
NEFRERHEERKREEME -

Give priority to the purchase of environmentally friendly
products to support the move towards a more inclusive
low-carbon economy.

BAREZRERBRFER UXFHREASEENEREH
RIGEE-
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ENVIRONMENTAL GOALS

RIGETR

The Group understands that corporates need to shoulder the social FTEBE RN EXFTEFEERERRENHLESR
responsibility of protecting the environment. We are committed to 1> FRFIB D TESETRE A W e ~ A K ~ B BE
setting preliminary directional goals on energy use efficiency, water E¥MKAEREHFBRAIEETF SJUNTHNAEH
efficiency, waste reduction and greenhouse gas emission. Meanwhile, BB -BF > AEBETETRESBRFERRE
the Group will also follow up on the progress and effectiveness of — Hfi BY%E & ke B 30 > 1R BY & HIR R B 1R R B T A
various environmental protection goals and measures, inspect the TR > W ERZEHFHUR > 555 B 2 A F &SR
implementation progress of various environmental protection goals — BFBVI & o

and measures, monitor various emission sources and identify more

opportunities for energy conservation and emission reduction.

Environmental Areas

IRIGEES
Energy Use Efficiency and Greenhouse Gas Emission

FER B AR SR E R AR HE

our Environmental Goals
EMMIREBE

Actively implement and maintain or gradually reduce
power consumption according to the power saving
measures of the Group

REAEENHOBERE RBEENT ERFAZD
B R H A

Water Efficiency

=R 6

Actively implement and maintain or gradually reduce
water consumption according to the water conservation
measures of the Group

BEAEENBNRKER BREBNT FRED
B KCH FE

Waste Management

Actively implement and maintain or gradually reduce
waste generation according to the Group’s measures of
paper use reduction, reuse and recycling

EEEYE IR BEEENR AR - MEERRBEIRBEET BiR'E
BT HERFNELT R OBEENEL
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE DATA OVERVIEW"? IRIFREHHZE—8"?

Key Environmental Indicators

RARIRIRIGIE
Greenhouse Gas
BERE
Total Emission 17.29 12.23 | Tonnes of CO2 Equivalent (“tCO2-e")
PEiE 2 WSt EE
Direct Emission (Scope 1) 9.29 3.53 | tCOz-e
HiZgm EE) MGt EE
Indirect Emission (Scope 2) 8.00 8.70 | tCOz-e
BEHE (EBE2) mMm_E Rk EE
Greenhouse Gas Emission Intensity 105.16 74.37 | Kilogram of CO2¢e Per Square Meter of Floor

of Hong Kong Ofﬂce

Area of Office Buildings

BENMERNRERBHREE AF_EIERESE ST HRPAERER
HEE
Exhaust Gas
Nitrogen Oxide (NOx) 2.29 0.83 | Kilogram
R[AEYIINOY) N
Sulfur Oxide (SOx) 0.05 0.02 | Kilogram
BRE1E¥1(SOx) Nas
Particulate Matter (PM) 0.17 0.06 | Kilogram
FERLA(PM) NS
Energy
FII:./
Total Energy Consumption 43.58 24.35 | MWh
HWEERFEE K ELEF
Unleaded Petrol 31.81 12.10 | MWh
E D KRB
Electr|C|ty Purchased 11.77 12.25 | MWh
BEEE JEELBF
Energy Intensity of Hong Kong 0.26 0.15 | MWh Per Square Meter of Floor Area of
Office Office Buildings

EAMERNEREE

KEE " SFAHAMAZERIEEREE

Water Consumption

FAX

Total Water Consumption?® - 6 | Cubic Meter

HFEKES 75K

Water Consumption Intensity of - 0.036 | Cubic Meter Per Square Meter of Floor Area

Hong Kong Office
*%#H#EEE FEkBE

of Office Buildings
MK/ BEARRAERFEEERA

U Given that no significant non-hazardous waste was generated during the Group's
operations for the time being, relevant data will not be disclosed for the Year. In
the future, we will continue to review the materiality of the non-hazardous waste
generated and will make relevant disclosures as appropriate.

2 The Group’s fruits importing and agricultural trading business in the PRC mainly 2
involved power consumption and water consumption during operation, and both
power and water supply of the business were managed and undertaken by third
parties. Therefore, the environmental data in this report does not include the fruits
importing and live pig trading business, but only the money lending business in
Hong Kong.

§ As the Group’s money lending business in Hong Kong did not consume large
amount of water this Year, therefore there is no water consumption data this Year.

ERINAEHEELERARAELEERNEEEREY
FEEGTREABEE IR RO FEERTE
EEEERVNEEN LR EERFHAARKE-
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Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction

Electricity, natural gas and vehicle fuel consumption are the main
sources of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions. The usage of
electricity is for maintaining daily operations of the Group's office, and
vehicle fuel is used for daily administrative purposes. To protect the
environment, the Group actively advocates the low-carbon concept,
reduces the use of natural energy and encourages its staff to develop
low-carbon living habits and conserve natural resources. Set out below
are the environmental protection and emission reduction measures
adopted by us in our routine operation:

B BE iR
FEENTERERBEHIREREBN - XRAR
RAEMREBVEE AEBNB/IHEETEER
MEHERAZEEHET MAEMHEERE
HETHAR FEBRRERET BHEEMEK
B BOERBEARER GBS TEBEEHKES
BIE BINRABER - UTH/HEMARABLEE LA
BREBIRRR B

Reducing Electricity

Consumption
L AE

e Set the air-conditioning
temperature at 25°C in
summer, and ensure the air-
conditioners are turned off
after work
B TRREHSINE
K25 > MR B ZEA M T EE
BrRARA

e Adjust the computer’s
screen brightness at 50%—
75%, and preset the monitor
to turn off automatically
when it is left idle for ten
minutes
B R E AR S0E
JSEZE BEKERSEH
EEE10D % B8R

e Switch off unnecessary
electronic devices or lamps
while not in use
AR AN ENE
&5

e Use sensor-controlled lights
in some office areas
REBIRH A = HE B &)
RFEC R PR

e Make full use of natural
light and wind to reduce
the usage of lights and air-
conditioners
BEARERABEAXNBEAR
& > DA/ B8 W A 22 5 9 5B
H

BERE

Reducing Paper
Consumption
B AR

Strive to be a paperless
office to avoid wastage of
office consumables
SERTERALCH LD XU
BRREMAEMBIRE
&£

Provide recycling bins to
collect paper for reusing
MU EFE U LI BT A
BEAR

Employees bring their
own cups to avoid using
disposable items

BT BHEERANKIE B#R
FERA—RERNEY S
Encourage employees
to dry hands with
handkerchief to reduce
paper consumption
HEETIFERFMEF
A AR

Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited

SRR ERBRAE

Reducing Water

Consumption
A 7K

Remind employees to
make sure to turn off the
relevant water equipment
after using to avoid
wastage of water
REETIHRERRAKIKE
BEHAZE BRREK
BIR

Check the water
equipment regularly to
avoid water dripping
or leakage, and repair
immediately once any
abnormality is found, to
reduce wastage of water

TEHRE R KERE B LE
BE BRRET R R
ETHEE BARERK

Reuse and

Recycling
MEHRARBRBE

Reuse office supplies such
as envelopes, file folders,
paper bags and choose
replaceable stationeries
EEFHANRAERR &
EE R AL R E
BRI A

Entrust a professional
environmental protection
company to recycle scrap
paper regularly
HEEXEIRR A EHE
U B 4
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Use of Water and Management of Sewage Discharge

The money lending business operated by the Group in Hong Kong,
Zhongtai Hongzhi and the agricultural trading business in Shenzhen
mainly involve domestic water in their routine operations. In addition,
the sewage generated in daily life is also one of the Group’s main
sources of sewage. Our domestic sewage is treated as required by
local governments.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group was not ware of any
issues relating to water sources during the Reporting Period.

Waste Treatment

No hazardous waste is generated and no packaging material for
finished products is used during the routine operations at the Group’s
Hong Kong office. Fruits importing business of Zhongtai Hongzhi and
agricultural trading business in Shenzhen are mainly office operation,
therefore the non-hazardous wastes we generated are mainly
domestic wastes and office papers. Such wastes are sent to the city
environmental and hygienic department for unified treatment. Given
that no significant non-hazardous waste has been generated in the
business operations of the subsidiaries of the Group, the relevant data
will not be disclosed for the Year. In the future, we will continue to
review the importance of non-hazardous waste generated and review
whether there is a need for relevant disclosure.

In terms of impact on the environment and natural resources, we will
continue to keep pace with the national policy and actively advocate
an environmentally friendly development strategy. At present, our
money lending business in Hong Kong, the fruits import business of
Zhongtai Hongzhi and agricultural trading business in Shenzhen will not
have any material impact on the environment and natural resources.

A7k K5 K HER E 18
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group strictly abides by the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China ((FR#E A REMBEIRIZREEE)), Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Appraisal of Environmental Impacts
(PEANEENRHIRIEF ZTE L)), Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution ((FRZEAR
FHR KT ZREA%)), Law of the People’'s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution ({(FF & A\ B H B AR5 Z8H
J&7%)) and other relevant laws and regulations enacted by the PRC
in respect of environmental protection. Although the money lending
business of the Group in Hong Kong, fruits import business of Zhongtai
Hongzhi and agricultural trading business in Shenzhen do not involve
significant emissions, we will also endeavor to comply with relevant
environmental regulations.

To the best knowledge of our Directors, the Group was not subject to
any significant administrative sanctions or penalties for any breach of
environmental laws or regulations during the Reporting Period.

TREATING EMPLOYEES WITH KINDNESS AND
EQUALITY

The Group believes that our competitive advantage is attributable
to our staff. Therefore, we have great emphasis on the principle of
“people-oriented’ and treating our employees with an attitude of
benevolence and generosity. We will continue to improve the working
environment and human resource policies for our employees. We
strive for perfection and hope to let our staff fully utilize their strengths
in work and life.
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Employment Policy

The Group has been advocating equality and highly values fair
treatment of employees, teamwork and talent development. We
have adopted a fair and open recruitment policy, through external
recruitment, we promote diversity and inclusiveness, and guarantee
employment opportunities for all kinds of people. All employees,
regardless of age (not recruiting those under the age of 16), nationality,
race, religion, sexual orientation, marital status, pregnancy and
disability and other factors, all candidates should be given an equal
opportunity for employment and treated with respect and equality. The
Group does not tolerate any form of discrimination. In the process of
recruitment and promotion, our consideration will be solely based on
the abilities and performance of the employees. In addition, we will
recruit residents from the place where we operate whenever possible
to enhance our competitiveness and understanding of the needs of
our local customers, and also hope to boost the local employment rate
and return to the local society.

OVERVIEW OF THE NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
FOR THE YEAR

Total workforce by Gender in 2023
2023 FEETRMEMNITNEEAR

12 18 B 2R

FEBARREEAANTS ERATFHEIFE
B s R AT E - HFAEHRELF AR
BEBHR BB/ EEE REZTHE RES
BATHMEKE -FREBINHER (FBAX
mTRERBIARKEEN) B BR - RBUE
MEEERRAR BRERBXRES  BEED
ERENEEKE SIEERTEEF A5H
RBEFEAERN LR -BE - EAETEGERE
FORMRAGEEBETINITIERIREMAES o L5
RPEEERACEMTHNER  HERAR
FOMEMTREMBRNEER > THEREL
ERREMBER  WEMT EAPRER-

TFEEETA#MA—E

Total workforce by gender in 2022
2022FEETRMENSTHEEAR

@ Vale 8 @ Female &

Total workforce by Employment Type in 2023
2023 FEETRERERSSNESAH

Total workforce by Employment Type in 2022

2022FEETHERBERIDHESARK

@ Full-time 28 @ Part-time F5
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Total workforce by Age Group in 2023 Total workforce by Age Group in 2022
2023 EETHEHRMANIDHNEEAH 2022 EETHRERMENIDHNES A

o
>

Aged 20 or below 208l T @ Aged between 21-30 21-30%%
@ Aged between 31-40  31-40%% Aged between 41-50  41-5073%
@ Aged between 51-60  51-60%% Aged 61 or above 61EE T L

Total workforce by Employee Category in 2023 Total workforce by Employee Category in 2022
2023 FEETREERKISNEEAH 20225 EETREEBAISNEEAH

@ General and Technical Staff —f8 M A B
® Vviddle Management 4k &I fE

Top Management or Managerial Grade Employees
EEAKCEREEAER

Total workforce by Geographical Region in 2023 Total workforce by Geographical Region in 2022
2023 FEETRIMHES HHEEAH 2022FEETRIFMES DHIREAH

O
G

@ Hong Kong &35 Mainland China Pyt
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Employee Turnover Rate
BIMKEEER

Description

Fej e
Total Employee Turnover Rate 26% -
WETRALLE
By Gender

el Eba

Male 50% -
3

Female 8% -
Z

By Age Group

B E AR BB
Aged 20 or Below - S
206 AT
Aged Between 21-30 - -
21-30%%
Aged Between 31-40 43% -
31-40%%
Aged Between 41-50 = =
41-50%%
Aged Between 51-60 20% =
51-605%
Aged 60 or Above 200% -
60BR T L

By Geographical Region

i & & o
Hong Kong = =
B5E
Mainland China 40% =
pau

5 Note: The employee turnover rate was 0 as the Group did not lose any employeesin =~ 5 HIBERAERLFERAEMRAED  AILB T RALE
the pervious year. #00
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The Group adheres to the practice of signing labour contracts with
employees within the time prescribed by laws. When an employee
resigns or is dismissed, the Group will comply with local regulations,
and also arrange employees from the human resource department
to conduct interviews with resigned employees to understand the
reasons for the resignation and for improving the treatment of future
employees, also to ensure that their resignation are not affected by
unfairness in the workplace. The Group’s practices on employment,
resignation and dismissal of employees are all carried out in
accordance with the provisions of the Labour Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FRZEAERHMESEEN%)), the Labour Contract
Law of the People's Republic of China (FZEARANEELEEHEE
7&)), the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), and the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) as well as the employee handbook.

In addition, the Group has established the “Employee Handbook”
and other related human resources systems to specify the relevant
requirements such as remuneration and dismissal, working hours,
employee benefits and leave benefits for the sake of protecting the
rights and interests of both parties. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Group has not received any material administrative
sanction or penalty for any violation of employment laws or regulations
during the Reporting Period.

Employee Remuneration and Benefits

We attach great importance to the well-being of employees, and
we hope to create a healthy and positive working environment. We
are fully aware that employee benefits can attract and retain talent.
Hence, we will adjust salaries, bonuses and promotions based on the
performance, qualification, performance evaluation of the employee
and the situation of salary and benefits in the market. The Group's
employees in Hong Kong are entitled to group medical insurance, while
employees in Mainland China are entitled to five social insurances
and one housing fund. In addition, following the further relaxation of
pandemic preventative measures in Hong Kong in the first quarter
of 2023, we will actively organize employee activities, with a view
to enriching employees’ life in spare time, releasing their stress and
building up their bodies.
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LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group will never hire any child labor under the age limit of
local regulations. When recruiting employees, the human resources
management department will verify the applicant’s age certification
documents to ensure their legal working age. Meanwhile, forced labour
is strictly prohibited by the Group. We clearly specify the working
hours for each employee when hiring as well as the management
of overtime and leave, with a view to safeguarding their rights
and interests. In the event that any child labour or forced labour
is identified, we will immediately arrange the human resources
management department and related departments to investigate the
incident.

Furthermore, we will also regularly review the human resources
management policy and take remediation measures to reduce
potential risks. For operations in Hong Kong, the Group ensures full
compliance to relevant regulations and refers to the Employment
of Children Regulations (Chapter 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong).
Furthermore, the Group ensures its operations in Mainland China are
fully complied with the relevant laws and regulations in the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, and the Labour Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China which stipulate the prevention of
the employment of child labour under age 16 and the prohibition of all
unlawful use of forced labour.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has not received
any material administrative sanction or penalty for the violation of the
regulations regarding child labour or forced labour during the Reporting
Period.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

To advocate the growth of our employees and their ability, the Group is
committed to providing employees with an ideal career development
platform, as well as necessary support and resources to enrich their
knowledge and ability. The Group values the needs of our employees
and tries to develop a positive learning environment, therefore we
have provided our employees with internal training programmes and
hope that they can understand each working procedure, system and
related knowledge of the Company. In addition, the Group encourage
our employees to pursue diversified development to continuously
improve their level of skills and knowledge.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group organized external training
on anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing for senior
management and Directors who are in charge of the Group’s money
lending business to improve their understanding of relevant laws
and raise their anti-corruption awareness, thus reducing the Group’s
risk of money laundering and terrorist financing activities. In addition,
we encourage employees to participate in different seminars and
other external trainings to broaden their horizons and enhance their
personal development

During the Reporting Period, the total percentage of employees
trained was 43% and the percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee rank is as follows:

Percentage of Employees Trained
by Gender in 2023
2023 FEHMENBANZIETE S

REIEHE ZEBBMTITRABZREHD F
BT EENNBEI - EMEEBEEERAK
BEBHNRREEBEABRESEE THRARE
- HEEBEIERStMANREEH R
ERERFLERBRIBHOFESZETHNE
o ltsh > HFIRBE T2 AT ENM N RHEM
ShEREEE . ETIE ER EAM R EBAERE -

RAEREHRE > BRNE T HDEEH43% MRE
AMESRASONIINETHOLEAT -

Percentage of Employees Trained
by Gender in 2022
2022 EHEMNBSNZIETESL

@ Vvale & @ Female &

Percentage of Employees Trained
by Employee Category in 2023

2023 FEREERBRBONZININETEDLE

G

Percentage of Employees Trained
by Employee Category in 2022

20225 EREERBKBONZININETEDL

@ General and Technical Staff —fig R A B

@ WViddle Management F 4k E IR fE

Top Management or Managerial Grade Employees

SENKBREEAR
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During the Reporting Period, the total average number of training hours
of employees was 1.74 hours and the average number of training
hours of employees by gender and employee category are as follows:

Average Number of Training Hours of
Employees by Gender in 2023

2023F B2 14 5 8 53 B9 F 19 35 5| B 24

AR EHARE 88 T FatE el R 81,7406 »
Mm% 1% B A0 S Ak 0 S84 5T Y 8 T P 19156l B
QI

Average Number of Training Hours of

Employees by Gender in 2022
2022F E #1458 5 B9 T 39 15 )| B 8K

@ Vale 8 @ Female &

Average Number of Training Hours of
Employees by Employee Category in 2023

2023%F EF#% B B R AR 7 89 F 3915 5)I B 8L

G

Average Number of Training Hours of
Employees by Employee Category in 2022

2022 E#%{E SR AR E 2 89 F 19155 B 8L

C

@ General and Technical Staff —fg Rt A S

® Viddle Management 4R & IR fE

Top Management or Managerial Grade Employees
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The effective supply chain management is of great significance to
maintain the quality and reputation of our products. Therefore, we
attach great importance to the quality of our suppliers. Due to our
nature of our business, our main procurement items can be basically
divided into professional services (such as legal and audit), office
procurement (office equipment, electrical appliances, stationery,
etc) and procurement of agricultural trading business, and do not
involve complex and diverse products. However, we still pay attention
to whether the products are environmentally friendly and tend to
purchase environmentally friendly products. In order to reduce
emissions and energy consumption during transportation, if the
conditions are met, we encourage prioritize the products from local
suppliers so as to reduce the distance of goods transportation and
reduce exhaust gas and greenhouse gas emissions.

Number of Suppliers by Geographical Region
in 2023
2023 FEHMMEE SN EEREE

Mainland China p3ith

The Group is committed to operating in strict compliance with the laws
and regulations in the PRC regarding the society and environment.
We adhere to our procurement principles of: product quality, product
certification, delivery speed, after-sales service, feedbacks from users,
non-compliance, etc., to examine whether the existing suppliers meet
the Company’s requirements. In order to ensure the quality of the
supply chain, the Group will exclude any unqualified suppliers and
terminate the cooperation with them.
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Besides, the Group has developed a complete set of acceptance
procedure for checking purchased items to ensure that their quality
meets the prescribed standards. For unqualified products, we will
immediately contact the suppliers and arrange for returns. After
that, we will also continue to monitor the quality of products of our
suppliers through continuous improvement and better management
models and methods in supply chain management, in order to reduce
the potential adverse effects of the Group’s supply chain on the society
and the environment.

COMMUNITY CARE

As a company with social responsibility, the Group is committed to
understanding the needs of the communities in which we operate. The
Group strives to develop long-term relationship with our stakeholders
and participate in local economic development to return to the society.
In face of the challenges of the pandemic, we were still committed
to doing our utmost to protect the health and livelihoods of the local
communities during the Reporting Period. Due to the epidemic, the
Group did not participate in any public welfare and donation activities
during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to perform its social
responsibilities, remain dedicated to providing outstanding products
and services and actively participate in community development.
Looking ahead, we will spare no effort to help disadvantaged
communities, provide more room for occupational development and
create a harmonious and comfortable working environment for our
employees. Lastly, we also hope to reduce the environmental impact
of our business processes. We will continue to take advice from all
stakeholders, in order to improve our policies and implement the
concept of sustainable development.
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HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX
BEAR IR B RERERSIESIRS

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHER EE- —RRBERAREAER

A. Environmental
A RIS

Aspect A1: Emissions
BEA1 : Hi

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse

A1 General gas emissions, discharges into water and
Disclosure land, and generation of hazardous and

A1— I B non-hazardous waste.

EREBERRRAEREIR @K K&k MBI B

GOBEAEEEEYNELEN

(a) B%R 5 &

b) BFTHETABEAZENHEBEERE
B E RS o

Section/Statement
=1 1

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
BARSFE

The types of emissions and respective
A1 emissions data.
B TE 5 R A R BE U B o

Environmental Performance Data Overview
RERFREE—E

Direct (scope 1) and/or energy indirect (scope
2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes)
and, intensity, if applicable (e.g. per unit of
A1.2 production volume, per facility).

Bz @EE) RERER (BE2) RER BN
2 UMEEHE) kK (WER) BE NUSESE
i~ BIERMETH)

Environmental Performance Data Overview
RIERFHE—F

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit
A1.3 of production volume, per facility).
FREXBEEEYES UEEE8) & (WER)
BE MUSESEMN BEXREE) o

Not applicable. No hazardous waste is
generated in the operation of the Group.
TER ~EENEEERIRELERS
BEEEY) ©
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TERR B —MRBERARERER

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.

Section/Statement

=1

Considering that no significant non-
hazardous waste is generated in the
business operations of the Group's
subsidiaries, relevant data will not be
disclosed for the time being this Year. In
the future, we will continue to review the
importance of the non-hazardous waste

Al1.4 per unit of production volume, per facility). : :
A A S (LR E) B (1) generated and rev.lew whether there is a
B (LS EE B SER ) o need for relevant disclosure. \
ERINAEENBABDEFEE LI EE
YEANBREEEY AFEGTRES
RAEIB - NRF HMBFFESRELR
EEEYNEEY IR T EEER
TERER I o
Description of emissions target(s) set and
A15 steps taken to achieve them Environmental Goals
’ HIMFTET I MBI EE R RAEIEEERAF | REER
RELHY 2 5 o
Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps
Al1.6 taken to achieve them. Waste Treatment

Rt ERIEAEREEERYOG L R
SIUMBERRKRAERELEERMRBRNT

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2 . BRER

Policies on the efficient use of resources

Ety/)

Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction

A2 ngeral mcludmg energy, water and other raw Use.of WWateTianaaMaa s e e
Disclosure materials. DiselheTe
A2—fig iR B2 BRERER (BEER  KEREMEME) B9 "
Fepe & /P

e kRS kR R

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption

by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total

(kwh m. 000) and mtensny (S IPE LIS o Environmental Performance Data Overview
A21 production volume, per facility).

RENONERER REZEERWE -|KX
o) BFEE UTETRRSE RBE WMMNE
EBB -BEXRMAE) -

BEERYE—E
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

Section/Statement

IEHRE -EE - —HRERBERARERER =30 1
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g.
A2D per unit of production volume, per facility). Environmental Performance Data Overview
' MFEKEREE MUSEEEN SERMT  RERRHE—8
8o
Description of energy use efficiency target(s)
A23 set and steps taken to achieve them. Environmental Goals
' HMFTET IR RERAN G B R R AETELE | RIFEER
B2 PTEREN Ay 27 §% o
Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to & Use of Water and Management of Sewage
A2.4 achieve them. Discharge
I SKEVE A AR ER B EAREE > URPrE] | KRS KEERER
T HAKN T B R KR AETIELEB RN
i
Total pack@gmg material gsed fpr f|n|sh§d Not applicable. No packaging materials are
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with . .
A2S reference to per unit produced produced in the operations of the Group.
’ N P i & = 4E g P B
MR B BEH NS E Gl & | 0P FRENEEETERELE
BR) 8EEBAGE-

Aspect A3 :The Enwronment and Natural Resources

[BEA3 : IRIFKR X!

A3 General
Disclosure
A3— I 55

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant
impact on the environment and natural
resources.
BEZETAHRERRARERENEATEN
B o

Energy Conservation and Emission
Reduction
Use of Water and Management of Sewage

Discharge
B 5E R BE
Bk ESKEERER

A3.1

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

WM ER T HRERANBERNEATER
ERNEEGEEENTEH

Waste Management
BRYER
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
FEHE -EE - —RERBERARERER

Aspect A4 :Climate Change
BHEA4 . mIREE

Section/Statement
=1 L

Identification and response to significant

A4 General climate-related issues that had or might have .
) ) Response to Climate Change
Disclosure impact on the Group. FE o (2 B
A—BIRE MY REHDERASEHFEREETEN |
BEARMEFEHEBASEENERE -
Description of significant climate-related
issues that had or might have impact on the .
& P Response to Climate Change
A4.1 Group, and response.

B. Social
B.itE

BHEEE RSN EAERELERENERR
BEREE REHTTH

Aspect B1 :Employment
[BEB1 : E{E

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion,

FEH R IRE1E

B1 General working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, | Treating Employees with Kindness and
Disclosure diversity, anti-discrimination, and other | Equality

B1—fR ik B8 benefits and welfare. =Ee T —8ET

BRFNEEE -BEREA LR R

- FERE -2t - RERUREMFER

mAe

(a) B ; &

b) BFHETABEAZENEREERR

CENEGEE

Total workforce by gender, employment type

(e.g. full-time or part-time), age group and | Overview of the Number of Employees for
B1.1 geographical region. the Year

B EEEE (2B ER  FHR4E5N AEEBT AR —E

K& & 58 B B AR R o

E?dpg)eyc?geratgr:?;ﬁer;gria;i by gender, age group Overview of the Number of Employees for
B1.2 the Year

RUERN FRAEANRMEE DHNEERKLLL

%o
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section/Statement
IEHRE -EE - —HRERBERARERER =81

Key Performance Indicators

R AR

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EEB2 : BRELZE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe

B2 (;iesnc?gilure working environment and protecting | Occupational Health and Safety
BB employees from occupational hazards. BEREERLTS
BHRHZE2TERIERRERER R EN
BEM
(a) B%R 5 &
b) BEFTHETABEEAFENERERERSR
BRI E K o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities in

each of the past three years, including the Occupational Health and Safety

B2.1 Reporting Year. \ .
BESE (EERED SEATCHNAY | T ERRER
KetbZE o
522 Lost days due to work injury. Occupational Health and Safety
' AITEEATIEHE- BERERLSE

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they are
B2.3 implemented and monitored.

it PRER AN RO B ZE (R R B 2 2 4 il » WA 4B R
MITRERG Fo

Occupational Health and Safety
HWERERLS
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs Section/Statement
FEHE -EE - —RERBERARERER 8- {

Key Performance Indicators
oAl $R 4R 3

Aspect B3: Development and Training
[EEB3 : 2 & K igil

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge

B3 General and skills for discharging duties at work. o
) o o 2 Development and Training
Disclosure Description of training activities. R sy

B3—fR iK% EE ERREARERT TERENNBRZENER |

o fMIZ s ES

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category (e.g. senior
B3.1 management, middle management).

U REEHER MeREERE - PREEE
%) BT IlEEB DL

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category. Development and Training
BENKREELRERE D SREETATINN | & REAE

Development and Training
g3l

B3.2

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EmEB4 . ¥ T %8

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
B4 General regulathns that haye a S|gmf|can.t |mpqct
) on the issuer relating to preventing child | Labour Standards
Disclosure o —— 5
BI— i and forced labour. 2T A
BRABH L& T oaafmlss T .
(a) B ; &
b) BFHETABEARENEREERR
CENEGEE
Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
Labour Standards
B4.1 forced labour 5T )
ot A 5 1A BE B B BV 8 A LA SR B T Ko s 1l 85 e
To
Description of steps taken to eliminate such
B4.2 practices when discovered. Labour Standards
’ Ham T IR E RIS REOHBR B BIF NI | 55 TR
FBRo
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Aspect B5 :Supply Chain Management
[E@EB5 : HAEHEEE

Section/Statement
= L

B5 General Policies on managing environmental and social .
) . : Supply Chain Management
Disclosure risks of the supply chain. ot g8 o 7
B5—fR i B8 BIEHEHENIRE Rt &R iy
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management
’ i & D HEREE o HEHEEE
Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
- Er:actlceg are being |mplemef1ted, and how Supply Chain Management
. ey are implemented and monitored 4t 78 8 B
Bl AR REEENIES nERTERE | T
BINHEREE UREEEANHITRER
ke
Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the
B5.3 supply chain, and how they are implemented | Supply Chain Management
' and monitored. e E IR
mit A RAAM N HEESERONREERETR
BHEG) > URAERNITRER S A
Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and
B5.4 services when selecting suppliers, and how | Supply Chain Management
' they are implemented and monitored. e s
WM EREHERRECLSHRRERKRE
BER > U BRIT REER G E
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[BmB6 : EREE

Section/Statement
=1 L

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to health and safety,

B6 ngeral adve-rtlsmg, labelling and prlyacy ma‘;ters e e eI
Disclosure relating to products and services provided EoEg
B6—MRINE and methods of redress. =
BRFMREEERNRBNERAELE2  BES -
BERAEET AR @RS AN
(@) BIR ; &
b) BTHETABEATENHRERRR
BRI E L o
Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health Product Responsibility
B6.1 reasons. o
DERDEXEREU TR ARESAT |
AR B DL
Number of products and service-related
cqmplamts received and how they are dealt Product Responsibility
B6.2 with. EoEg
BERRESRRENBHBEURESS |
o
Not applicable. The money lending, fruits
Description of practices relating to observing mporting, agncultura! tradmg business
o ) of the Group do not involve intellectual
B6.3 and protecting intellectual property rights. ST
il LM R RIE R S EE B R RVIE B - ; ' TN s
ot £ A 2B R (R B 0 o8 2 R R RO 1B B A A EE A RO KRR
H(EREB NI R ERE-
Description of quality assurance process and el Fespmmesig
B6.4 recall procedures. EoEg
W E B REBERERR IR - i
Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, and how they are ' s
B6.5 TSl e i e, Protection of Personal Data Privacy

HAUH B E B RMRERAAREER » LKA
TRERA %

RIEBABEHLE
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Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
B7 General regulations that have a significant impact
) on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, | Anti-Corruption and Integrity
Disclosure - ==
B7— 5 fraud and money Iaunden\ng. ‘ FEBE
BRABH LR - B R  BGFRIERERN ¢
(a) B ; &
b) BFHFETABEAFZENHEBEERE
B E RS o
Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or
B7.1 its employees during the Reporting Period and | Anti-Corruption and Integrity
' the outcomes of the cases. mEEER
RBESHBEETANERERETEEEN
BT EHNEE KRG R
Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are . . .
) . Anti-Corruption and Integrity
B7.2 implemented and monitored. B
i fr FE T R R AR 0 MR IT &5 -
Bk
Des§r|pt|on of anti-corruption training provided Anti-Corruption and Integrity
B7.3 to directors and staff. == (E
HmEERETRENRETE- =
86 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIB-HERERRS

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
IEHRE -EE - —HRERBERARERER

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
[EEB7 : R&ES

Section/Statement
= L

MERRERIRE ER AR AR



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIB-HEREGRS

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
FEHE -EE - —RERBERARERER

Aspect B8: Community Investment
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Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities” interests.
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Community Care
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company is an investment holding Company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. An analysis of the Group'’s operations for the Year
by business activities is set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages
102 to 103 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
Year (2022: nil).
FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 212 of this annual
report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of change in ownership interest in a subsidiary during the
Year are set out in notes 38 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2023 are
set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWING

Particulars of the Group’s borrowing as at 30 June 2023 are set out in
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 106 to 107 of this annual report and in note 32 to the
financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2023, the Company's reserves available for distribution to
its shareholders amount to HK$275.43 million (2022:279.82 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Cai Da
(Re-designated from Co-Chairman to Chairman on 1 January 2023)
Mr. Li Wai Hung
Mr. Wang Tong Tong
Mr. Li Xianghong (Resigned on 1 January 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Wong Na Na

Mr. Chen Xier

Mr. Huang Tianhua (@ppointed on 11 November 2022)
Ms. Lei Ming (appointed on 11 November 2022)

Mr. Wang Zhixiang (resigned on 11 November 2022)
Ms. Feng Jibei (resigned on 11 November 2022)

The biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report are set out in the section headed “Profiles of Directors” on
pages 35 to 36 of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

No Director has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2023, none of the Directors and the Chief Executives had
any other interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or which were required, pursuant
to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by the Directors, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

To the best knowledge of the Directors, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporation.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2023, so far as is known to the Directors and the
Chief Executives, the interests and short positions of the persons or
corporations in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO; or who was directly or indirectly, to be
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings
of the Company as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each of the
Company

Name of Shareholders Nature of interests
RERBE 1M gt E

XU, Gongming Beneficial owner

SFINER Bam#EBA A

XU, Gongming (Note 1) Held by controlled entity
FFIThER (1) miEkRERER

Redwood Bay Investment Group International Beneficial owner
Company Limited (Note 1)
ARELEEEBERERAS M) Bm#EA A

YAN, Weiwei Beneficial owner

BRI BmEAA

YAN, Weiwei (Note 2) Held by controlled entity
&I (fisE2) RERBERA

Star Link Technology Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner
EMBRARAE (H:E2) BmEAA

Note 1: XU, Gongming is deemed to be interested in 102,719,000 shares held by Redwood
Bay Investment Group International Company Limited, the company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, which is wholly and beneficially owned by XU,
Gongming.

Note 2:  YAN, Weiwei is deemed to be interested in 44,241,000 shares held by Star Link
Technology Limited, the company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which
is wholly and beneficially owned by YAN, Weiwei.

FERRINRG KA Z 5 m K%

RIEBEZ=ZFRB=1tH MEZFRSRITEA
SRRl A AT EOEBE R AR E AR K AR BE AR
PHRBEEELARERST KRG RAE3361F 2
ARAFEZECHRZEm AR ; NEEK
BREEENERENIRMMAEBR TERARTEZR
RAEEREBZEMERNRAEES%II U L2

R
<

fm -

REATSREE20BTZEBRZFE

Approximate

Number of  percentage of
shares held shareholding
HERMEE #BOFKRESE

600,000 0.16%
102,719,000 27.42%
102,719,000 27.42%

12,505,000 3.34%
44,241,000 11.81%
44,241,000 11.81%

MEE1: MR EANAEEREEEBRRERABDFKAN
102,719,00082 B 17 A 5 > R AT BN EBMER R
BHEAMRILZAR HFNBREERBDES-

MIsE2 @ BRIMMARAR B EBE KA R A B A 8944,241,0008%
RPFEEED ZARRNEBEE B SR
ZAF HBRMMEERBmER -
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ESEHS

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, no other person or
corporation has interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO; or, who was
directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of
any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of the Company:.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business, to which the Company or any of the Company'’s subsidiaries
was a party, subsisting at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year, and in which a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a
material interest, nor there were any other contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business between the Company or any of
the Company’s subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share options scheme as approved by
the shareholders of the Company (the “Share Options Scheme”) at
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 12 December
2014 (the “2014 AGM"), pursuant to which the Company may grant
options to subscribe for up to a total of 26,662,511 shares of the
Company, after the share consolidation effective 28 April 2023, at the
date of this report, representing approximately 7.12% of the issued
shares of the Company at the date of this report. The Share Options
Scheme will enable the Company to reward and provide incentives
to, and strengthen the Group's business relationship with, the eligible
participants who may contribute to the growth and development of the
Group.

Details of the Share Options Scheme are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

No options have been granted under the Share Options Scheme since
its adoption.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers combined
accounted for 64.02% of the total revenue of the Group and sales to
the largest customer included therein accounted for 27.99% of the
total revenue of the Group. Purchases from the Group's five largest
suppliers combined accounted for 64.94% of the total purchases for
the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
accounted for 40.98% of the total purchases for the Year.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their associates, or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest
in the top five customers and suppliers of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors, substantial shareholders, and
their respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had
any interest in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group or any conflicts of interest which had or might
have with the Group.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
UNDER RULE 17.50A (1) OF THE GEM LISTING
RULES

Pursuant to Rule 17.50A (1) of the GEM Listing Rules, there are no
changes in information of the Directors since the date of interim report
of the Company for the six months ended 31 December 2022. There is
no other information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A
(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 37 to 49 of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the senior management of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee with reference to their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the Directors
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to Directors, employees and other eligible participants. Details of the
scheme are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue
of this report as required under the GEM Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited. The consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year have been audited by SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited. A resolution for their reappointment as auditor of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Cai Da
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 September 2023
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.'..... SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
0.0.0 17/F, Chubb Tower, Windsor House,

311 Gloucester Road,

BEXPH(ER)SAMEHERERAT
FEMEESE LT E3115%
EFREREAZAEITHE

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

TO THE MEMBERS OF

SILK ROAD ENERGY SERVICES GROUP LIMITED
HMEBRERIRBEERRAR

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Silk Road
Energy Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
102 to 211, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
30 June 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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B Z MR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

FEE%ER

REESHNERAE AREZSFESHESE
ZARBGREMBREAEMEBNETR-EFE
EREZGOMBEREAMLEERSRFREIERZ
FEE MASMLESFFEERERER -

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of trade receivables
B2 ERHIENGE

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 134 to 139.

ARG EMBRRME2RFBIMAE190EMN G TR

The key audit matter
RREBEZEE

As at 30 June 2023, the carrying amount of trade receivables was
approximately HK$138,959,000, net of accumulated impairment
loss of approximately HK$1,673,000. During the year ended
30 June 2023, reversal of impairment loss of approximately
HK$6,628,000 was recognised.

N _E_ZFRA=TH BESRURENKEENS
138,959,000/ 7t ($Br RetR(ER18491,673,000/87T) B EZ
ZC=FRAZTHLESFE BRBAEEIEREE496,628000
BITe

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables is based on
expected credit losses (“ECL"), which is estimated by taking
into account the credit loss experience and forward-looking
information including both current and forecast general economic
conditions.

B RERIEREREENREEREERE (BHREESIE)
B MEREEEREINEETEEEEELRLBERERTE
B — R B AR R NI RTBE M E R T E R (5t o

We have identified valuation of trade receivables as a key audit
matter because the impairment assessment of trade receivables
involved a significant degree of management judgement and may
be subject to management bias.
EECREZREAIEN(GEH#H ABREZEE BERNE
SEBRIENRETE I RBEAEEEAE TAIESEIRE
FTHEEMEE

Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited
MERBERIRBEEBR AR

How the matter was addressed in our audit
ELEEBZPEEZFENS X

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and judgements of the Group’s ECL model on
impairment assessment of trade receivables.
EENEREFERME BERBEAGEEHEEREN
B 55 18 WG IR (B 5T B9 (R 38 B 1) i o

We have assessed the reasonableness of management's
estimates for impairment allowance by examining
the information used by management to form such
judgements, including testing accuracy of the historical
default data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information.
EERRETEERERNEMIEN BN ERN T EEIE
B REREBFEENGHZGEN SEREREY
HIERER M FMEEFIBRAXZSRBRE LR R
KAIEMERETEE AR

We have also inspected cash received from debtors after
year end relating to trade receivables balance as at 30
June 2023 on a sample basis.

BT ERBEEZE - =F"A=1+HBNEZEWRIE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV e

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continueq)

Valuation of loan receivables
R ERE & (E

FMEEZEER @

Refer to note 23 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 134 to 139.

F2RGEMBRRWE2BKREI1ME19ENGSTER

The key audit matter
FAREZEE

As at 30 June 2023, the carrying amount of loan receivables was
approximately HK$74,788,000, net of accumulated impairment
losses of approximately HK$15,922,000. During the year ended
30 June 2023, reversal of impairment loss of approximately
HK$8,062,000 was recognised.

N2 =FA=1+H > EWERNREELN 474,788,000
7T (F0BR &R 5TRERS1E4915,922,00087T) - HE T~ =4 H
—THIEFE > SRNIRERER[EI48,062,000/ 7T

We have identified the valuation of loan receivables as a key
audit matter in view of the significance of the carrying amount
of loan receivables to the consolidated financial statements and
there is significant degree of management judgement involved in
assessing the ECL, based on the historical credit loss experience,
changes in credit risk of the counterparties and forward-looking
information including both current and forecast general economic
conditions.

ERENEFRAEN RV BERENEZS BEEHEW
ERNHEH#HNAMBEEZEER ERELEEHBELER -
ZEFEERBES KEIERF RTE— MBI RERNBA
EEER ML TERREEBER I REREIEEH o

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EFEERTREZFENSZ

Our audit procedures were designed to assess the
assumptions and judgements of the Group’s ECL model on
impairment assessment of loan receivables.
EENEREFERME BSEBBRHAGEEBEEEN
HEWE R E T AV RS R FIE o

We have obtained an understanding of methodology
for ECL through discussion with management and the
Valuer. We have also assessed the reasonableness of
assumptions made by the management and the key data
inputs to the ECL by reference to the historical information
together with other external available information.
EEHEEHNEEERGEMNSR BT HBHEERH
BHAZE - RMTAEEEE2ERLER UKRAEMS
BRI AERPTELR N RR RMTERESHE AR A
HIENEE -

We have also inspected cash received from borrowers
after year end relating to loan receivables balance as at 30
June 2023 on a sample basis.
EMTERBE T _=F,"A=+tHNRNENEH
HNFEREBERAWNRNREELMRESE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Z MR S

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and the Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors of the Company determine
iS necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV e

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

REMMBERGEMBRRAKENEE

ESNERA G ERELERSMBRRERM
ENEFERNRINFFRERMERNERERR
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EoHENNBETESERRABERTIZERER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Z MR S

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV e

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Shun Ming.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Shun Ming

Practising Certificate Number: P07068

Hong Kong
20 September 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

o A 2L
EaEmR

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

2023 2022
—E-= > ot
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M sE FAT FHET
Revenue e & 6 5,161,841 705,041
Cost of goods sold and services rendered  $5E & @RI HIRFE A 2 5,150,709 (691,852)
Gross profit EF 11,132 13,189
Other income Hg A 8 6,659 8,333
Other gains Hihl s 9 6,306 1,322
Administrative and other operating THREMEEER
expenses (42,689) (38,960)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of T B KRB EET
property, plant and equipment BERIE 17 - (5,918)
Impairment loss reversed in respect of TE 5 R E AR RIE
trade and other receivables BEol 2 RERE 22 6,506 21,936
Impairment loss reversed (recognised) in -~ FHIEW E N BEE () =
respect of loan receivables BERIR 23 8,062 (11,461)
Impairment loss reversed (recognised) in -~ FEENB E&E ) =2
respect of contract assets BERIE 24 3,134 (957)
Finance costs B A 10 (1,560) (1,649)
Loss before taxation BRIR A BB (2,450) (14,165)
Income tax (expense) credit Frisie (I K% 1 (2,229) 1,650
Loss for the year REERE 12 (4,679) (12,515)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: MR AT EERFERF]
(E518) -
- Owners of the Company R VNEIEZZ= DN 1,459 (8,963)
- Non-controlling interests —FEERE S 39 (6,138) (3,552)
(4,679) (12,515)
(Restated)
FE==pdl
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE SRR (i)
Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) BEA K88 (BAEW) 16 0.39 (2.39)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ralEamkEMEERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

2023 2022
—E-= TECHF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
b5 FAT FHET
Loss for the year RFEERIE (4,679) (12,515)
Other comprehensive expense FEEHMEEAS
for the year
ltems that may be reclassified HEAJEENMDHBEEEEY
subsequently to profit or l0ss: EH
Exchange differences on translating MEBINERSE S
foreign operations fERZERR (19,847) (282)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ZEEZ2EARMRY (24,526) (12,797)
Total comprehensive expense for the year LR A TE(EREE
attributable to: SEERE .
- Owners of the Company S VNEIEZZ= DN (18,404) (9,108)
— Non-controlling interests —FEER S 39 (6,122) (3,689)
(24,526) (12,797)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBIRR

As at 30 June 2023
RIEZ=FA=+H

2023 2022
== o S+
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M 5E FHET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BE R E 17 14,447 6,795
Right-of-use assets FREEE 18 2,916 2,263
Goodwill mE 19 - =
Customer contracts BEREH 20 - -
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIEE = 30 3,782 6,108
21,145 15,166
Current assets TRENE E
Inventories 75 21 2,330 6,128
Trade, bills and other receivables B RIREIE ERERK
H U IE 22 222,513 136,482
Loan receivables ERE™R 23 74,788 82,980
Contract assets BREE 24 14,010 27,684
Financial assets at fair value through KIBHIREATFTEAKRZ
profit or 10ss SRIEE 25 34,331 30,518
Pledged bank deposits BIRIRIRITER 26 5,540 -
Restricted bank deposits ZREIRITER 26 554 -
Bank balances and cash IRITERFRKRIRE 26 105,081 156,490
459,147 440,282
Current liabilities EAI=RE
Trade, bills and other payables B 5 ENEIE B ER K
HAE WIS 27 103,708 46,875
Lease liabilities HEaRE 18 1,601 5,096
Amount due to a former noteholder ER—UR RiEFE ARIE 28 - 41,206
Other borrowing Hanfgsx 29 13,296 -
Income tax payables FETFRSHR 8,096 8,512
126,701 101,689
Net current assets BN EFE 332,446 338,593
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRIER 353,591 353,759
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SEMBIRR

As at 30 June 2023
RIZ—=F,A=1+H

2023 2022
—E-= B CHF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
b5 FAT FHET
Non-current liability EREEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 18 1,342 725
Net assets BEFE 352,249 353,034
Capital and reserves BAR
Share capital % 31 74,926 74,926
Reserves B4 271,159 281,731
Equity attributable to owners of the NABVEB AEL#EDR
Company 346,085 356,657
Non-controlling interests JEPERG 39 6,164 (3,623)
Total equity W ABER 352,249 353,034

The consolidated financial statements on pages 102 to 211 were BEEWR _E_="FNAB_+HZAEREES
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 102E2IMB 2z &M HBRER 2T > WHIMUL T A

September 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: THREREES
Mr. Cai Da Mr. Li Wai Hung
giESRYE FEBEE
Director Director
2= 2=
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FaEmEER

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

LYNIE 2N
Foreign
currency
translation Other Non-
Share  Distributable reserve reserve Retained controlling
capital reserve (note i) (note ii eanings Total interests Total
shi
BEkE Hitnffe
A o iEE (Miz) (HiHi) REBRA a5t R ast
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TiEn TER TR TER TER TER TER
At 1 July 2021 RZB--£tB-A 74,926 288,469 (19,969) 2,882 19,457 365,765 66 365,831
Loss for the year rEERE S o = (8,963 (8,963 (3,552) (12,515)
Other comprehensive income (expense)  AEEEMAENRA (%)
for the year
Bxchange differences on translating HERNEBEEZERESR
foreign operations - - (145) - - (145) (137) (282)
Total comprehensive income (expense)  AEERENA B2 £8
for the year - - (145) - (8963) (9,108) (3,689) (12,797)
At 30 June 2022 RIBZ"&/A=1+H 74,926 288,469 (20,114) 2,882 10,494 356,657 (3,623) 353,034
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

& A JaE L a2

IFE L EER
For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FARRA NEER
Foreign
currency Retained
Distributable translation Other earnings Non-
Share reserve reserve reserve  (Accumulated controlling
capital (note iii) (note i) (note ii) loss) Total interests Total
ARkGEE  MERERE Hiftfit REER
fR%& (B (M=) (Rt zEii) (BatEH) Eh El3edit 4o &%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TEn TEn T TEn AT TAn TEn

At1uly 2022 RZEZ"#tR-H 74,926 288,469 (20,114) 2,882 10,494 356,657 (3,623) 353,034

Loss for the year TEERR - - - 1,459 1,459 (6,138) (4,679)
Other comprehensive expense for the year  AEEEM2EES

Exchange differences on translating

foreign operations BERNEREEZERER - - (19,863) - - (19,863) 16 (19,847)
Total comprehensive expense for the year ~ AEEZHER XA - - (19,863) - 1,459 (18,404) (6,122) (24,526)
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ FEEREZHE
interests - - - - - - 5,920 5,920
Deemed capital contribution arising from non- JEERERELMBIELE
controlling interests - - - 9,089 - 9,089 8,732 17,821
Transfer g5 - - - 6,084 (6,084) - - -
Acquisition of additional interestin annon- WL EMBATN
wholly-owned subsidiary (note 38) BIMER (H5E38) - - - (1,257) - (1,257) 1,257 =
At 30 June 2023 RIZZ=%F/:B=1H 74,926 288,469 (39,977) 16,798 5,869 346,085 6,164 352,249
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EEmEHR

For the year ended 30 June 2023

BE

Notes:

iii)

B CHFASHHIESFE

Exchange differences relating to the translation of the net assets or liabilities of
the Group's foreign operations from their functional currencies to the Group's
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve. Such exchange difference accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss upon the disposal of the respective
foreign operations.

Other reserve includes (a) the investments revaluation reserve; (b) the safety
fund. Pursuant to certain regulations issued by the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Work Safety of the People’s Republic of China, the Group's
subsidiary, SBHELHHHREBETIRBRETELE ("HZEMWEETRE"), which is
engaged in provision of coal mining services is required to set aside certain amount,
which calculated based on certain percentage of revenue, to a safety fund. The
safety fund can be used for safety facilities and environment improvement, and
is not available for distribution to shareholders. Upon incurring qualifying safety
expenditure, an equivalent amount should be transferred from the safety fund
to retained earnings/accumulated loss; and (c) capital reserve which represents
change in the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries without losing control; and
(d) deemed capital contribution arisen from compensation from non-controlling
interests to the non-wholly owned subsidiary.

The Group completed the following capital reorganisation which involves the
credit arising from the capital reduction and share premium cancellation has been
applied towards offsetting the accumulated losses of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$663,130,000 as at the effective date of the capital reduction,
thereby reducing the accumulated losses of the Company. The balance of credit
of approximately HK$288,469,000 has been transferred to a distributable reserve
account of the Company.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FARERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

2023 2022
== TEC
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRS
Loss before taxation PRI ATES B (2,450) (14,165)
Adjustments for: FHE
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZF) B WA (973) (257)
Finance costs FE A 1,560 1,649
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BERREITE
equipment 3,085 4,331
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREEEITE 1,609 1,733
Dividend income g B UA (449) (639)
Gain on termination of lease #IEROW s (41) -
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—BE#ZEAB 2 Wam - (1,007)
Fair value changes on financial assets at REmMRZEAFEARZ
fair value through profit or loss EMBEZ AT EES (6,306) (321
Government grants received BT Bl (4,517) (3,856)
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, plant HE MBI B E AR E
and equipment Z &8 1,705 4
Impairment loss (reversed) recognised in TEENEE (B0 Bl
respect of contract assets BEEIE (3,134) 957
Impairment loss reversed in respect of ME 5 M EMEWRFIEEE
trade and other receivables AEREE (6,506) (21,936)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of MYE BB MR EER
property, plant and equipment AEETE = 5918
Impairment loss (reversed) recognised in B E R (BE) 32
respect of loan receivables REETR (8,062) 11,461
Operating cash flows before movements in SEESEPN I KERERE
working capital (24,479) (16,122)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FaERD (gm 3,392 (6,324)
Increase in trade, bills and other B ENFIE BN EERE
receivables R USRRIE IS N (71,317) (16,973)
Decrease in loan receivables EWEFUR L 11,516 53,786
Decrease (increase) in contract assets SHEERLD (g 15,242 (16,479)
Decrease (increase) in financial assets at KIERREATEARZ SR
fair value through profit or loss BEERD (G0 2,493 (2,868)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R EMENRRIEE 59,128 5,436
Cash (used in) generated from operations KEEE) (TR M8RE (4,025) 456
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

SaRERER

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

2023 2022
—E-= —ER— T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KRS
Cash (used in) generated from operations KEEE (FTA) 8RS (4,025) 456
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENEBFER - (243)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid BB EMER (162) (622)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES KEEPTAIREFEE (4,187) (409)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES S EEE)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEVE -BMERZE (14,024) (2,744)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FEBIRIFEITEXR (5,617) -
Placement of restricted bank deposits FEXREHIEITFER (562) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE BEKREMERIE
plant and equipment 431 499
Bank interest received BUIRTTH]E 973 257
Dividend received BKRE 449 639
Proceeds from disposal of an associate HE—B¥MZE QB ZFAERIE = 1,001
Repayment from deposit for fund investment ESRERETER - 9,713
Repayment from an associate & NBIER - 18,380
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING WEES (A PRSREF8
ACTIVITIES (18,350) 27,745
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREaR (4,956) (2,493)
Interest paid [=ENENSS (1,560) (1,808)
Government grants received BEUE T 48D 4,517 3,856
Repayment of amount due to a former BREEN— R RERFE ARIE
noteholder (41,206) (36,021)
Capital contribution by non-controlling JEERER N E
interests 5,920 -
New other borrowings raised WS HMER 35,946 -
Repayment of other borrowings EIREMER (22,466) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES B SEEFTAIR S 5 (23,805) (36,466)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERIREEEYRL FEE
EQUIVALENTS (46,342) (9,130)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE FYNIRERIREEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 156,490 167,149
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES [EZR s & (5,067) (1,529)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNRERIREEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR, represented by DURTTHE R RIRE R
bank balances and cash 105,081 156,490
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

1. GENERAL

Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, and its shares are listed on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"). Other than those subsidiaries established
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") whose functional
currencies are Renminbi (“RMB”), the functional currency of the
Company and other subsidiaries is HK$.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)")

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first time, the
following new and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
which are effective for the Group's financial year beginning 1 July
2022.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRSS Annual Improvements to IFRSS
2018-2020 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSS in the current year
has had no material effect on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRS(S)") (continuea)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

HKFRS 17 (including
the October 2020
and February 2022
amendments to HKFRS 17)

Insurance Contracts’

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-Current and
the related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause?

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of Accounting Estimates!
Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction’
International Tax Return-Pillar Two
Model Rules!

Amendments to HKAS 12

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Details of fair value measurement are explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. If a subsidiary prepares its financial
statements using accounting policies other than those adopted
in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and
events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are
made to that subsidiary’s financial statements in preparing the
consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group's accounting policies.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Control is achieved where the Group has: (i) the power over
the investee; (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (iii) the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.

The Group reassess whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (the “CGU") (or groups
of CGU) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or
loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first
out method. Net realisable value of inventories represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less all
COSts necessary to make the sale.
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HE_Z—

3.

—FRAZTHLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those services. Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation.

The Group recognised revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the services
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
customers.

A performance obligation represents a service (or a bundle of
services) that is distinct or a series of distinct services that are
substantially same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation if one of the following
criteria is met:

o The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as the
Group performs;

. The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

. The Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct service.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer, excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties and sales related taxes.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature of its
promise is a performance obligation to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange
for those goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e.
the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or service
before that good or service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange
for the provision of the specified good or service by another
party. In this case, the Group does not control the specified good
or service provided by another party before that good or service
is transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as an agent,
it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or commission to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by the other party.

Contract assets

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred
to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for
impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9.

The Group recognised revenue from the following major sources:
° Provision of excavation works

. Provision of heating supply services

° Provision of construction works

° Trading of fresh produce and agriculture products and
general trading
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Provision of excavation works

Revenue from provision of excavation works is recognised when
the Group renders the services and the benefits are received
and consumed simultaneously by the customer throughout
the contract period. Thus, the Group satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time. Contracts for
rendering of excavation works are typically in 1-year term in
which the Group billed on a monthly basis based on the value of
services rendered at an agreed rate.

Provision of heating supply services

Heating supply services is provision of heating to the customers.
Supply of heat is recognised at the time when the heat is
transmitted.

Provision of construction works

A contract with a customer is classified by the Group as a
construction contract when the contract relates to work on
an asset under the control of the customer and therefore the
Group's construction activities create or enhance an asset under
the customer’s control.

Trading of fresh produce and agricultural products and
general trading

Revenue from sale of fresh produce and agricultural products
and general trading is recognised at the point when the control
of the goods is transferred to the customers.

For general trading, based on the terms of the agreements
entered into between the customers, vendors and the Group,
the Group does not obtain control of goods before the goods are
sold to the customers. As such, the Group recognises revenue
from general trading on a net basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition. measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation (output method)

Revenue from provision of construction works is recognised
over time. The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output method.
Output method recognises revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the goods or services transferred
to the customer to date relative to the remaining goods or
services promised under the contract, that best depict the
Group's performance in transferring control of goods or services.

When the outcome of the contract cannot be reasonably
measured, revenue is recognised only to the extent of contract
costs incurred that are expected to be recovered.

Contract costs

The Group incurs costs (including labour costs, consumables
and others) to fulfill a contract relating to its construction
contracts. The Group first assesses whether these costs qualify
for recognition as an asset in terms of other relevant standards,
failing which it recognises an asset for these costs only if they
meet all of the following criteria:

° the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the Group can specifically identify;

. the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

. the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the assets relate.

The Group renders handling services on packing coal for its
customers. Service income is recognised when services are
rendered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or 10ss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Leasing
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract or
modification date. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less).
For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
assets are consumed.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continueqd)
Definition of a lease (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group recognises and
measures lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments
are discounted by using the interest rate implicit in the lease.
If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

° fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

° the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees,

° the exercise price of purchase options if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising an option to terminate
the lease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount
to reflect the lease payments made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continuea)

Leasing (Continueqd)

Definition of a lease (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continuead)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

Lease liability is remeasured (and with a corresponding
adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

the lease term has changed or there is a significant event
or change in circumstances resulting in a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case
the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using revised discount rate.

the lease payments change due to changes in an index
or rate or a change in expected payment under a
guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments
change is due to a change in a floating interest rate, in
which case a revised discount rate is used).

a lease contract is modified and the lease modification is
not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continueqd)
Definition of a lease (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the
corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before
the commencement date and any initial direct costs, less lease
incentives received.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted
for any remeasurement and lease liabilities. They are depreciated
over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement
date of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group applies HKAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use
asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment
loss.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative standalone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

As a practical expedient, HKFRS 16 permits a lessee not to
separate non-lease components, and instead account for
any lease and associated non-lease components as a single
arrangement. The Group has used this practical expedient for all
leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

HE_Z—

3.

—FRAZTHLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign currency
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
service.

Retirement benefits costs and termination benefits

Payments to defined contribution plans including state-managed
retirement benefit schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

HE_Z—

3.

—FRAZTHLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from loss before taxation as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines
whether the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use
assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation
on right-of-use assets over the lease payments for the principal
portion of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or l0ss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
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3.

“=HFRA=tHLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as
their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on non-financial assets
below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of
financial position of the Company at cost less accumulated
impairment 10ss.

Bank balances and cash

In the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and
bank balances comprise cash (i.e. cash on hand and demand
deposits) and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are short-
term (generally with original maturity of three months or less),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather for investment or
other purposes.

Bank balances for which use by the Group is subject to third
party contractual restrictions are included as part of cash unless
the restrictions result in a bank balance no longer meeting the
definition of cash. Contractual restrictions affecting use of bank
balances are disclosed in note 27.

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, bank
balances and cash consist of cash at banks and on hand as
defined above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

HE_Z—

3.

—FRAZTHLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value, except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL") are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income
("“FVTOCI") and FVTPL. The classification of financial assets at
initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets subsequently at amortised
cost if both of the following conditions are met:

° the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) excluding expected credit losses (“ECL"), through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt
instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the
amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest method (Continued)

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost.
For financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If, in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk
on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
“Revenue” (note 6) and “Other income” (note 8).

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable
election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to designate
investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation
at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment is held for
trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently,
they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the other reserve. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred to
accumulated losses/retained earnings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL. Specifically,
investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL,
unless the Group designates an equity investment that is neither
held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a
business combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term; or

. on initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument).

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a
designated hedging relationship. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “Other gains” line item. Fair
value is determined in the manner described in note 35.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continueq)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on investments in
debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost, contract
assets and lease receivables. The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction
of conditions at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there has
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increase in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both guantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
as well as consideration of various external sources of actual
and forecast economic information that relate to the Group’'s
operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’'s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

. significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have low
credit risk at the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if (i) the debt instrument has a low risk
of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability
of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
The Group considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when the asset has external credit rating of ‘investment grade’
in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an
external rating is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
‘performing’.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk
before the amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable:

° when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 365
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
iS more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

o the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

° it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over 365 days past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or l0ss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of
the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. As for
the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date and
other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or 10ss in profit or 10ss
for all financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

All the Group's financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an
acquirer in a business combination, (i) held-for-trading, or (iii)
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the
amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed,
is recognised in profit or l0ss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and customer contracts (other than
goodwill set out in the accounting policy of goodwill
above)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and customer contracts to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and customer contracts (other than
goodwill set out in the accounting policy of goodwill
above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit (“CGU") is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of cash-generating units, including the
carrying amounts of the corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating units. In
allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The
amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets
of the unit or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the CGU) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately in profit
or loss.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for net realisable value
of inventories, and the value in use of the Group's goodwiill,
leasing transactions, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets, and customer contracts for the purpose of impairment
assessment, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at
the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
Specifically, the Group categorised the fair value measurements
into three levels, based on the characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level T — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group determines
whether transfer occur between levels of the fair value
hierarchy for assets and liabilities which are measured at fair
value on recurring basis by reviewing their respective fair value
measurement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

HE_Z—

4.

—FRAZTHLEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’'s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised and disclosures made in the
consolidated financial statements.

Oownership of buildings

Despite the Group has paid the full purchase consideration as
detailed in note 17, certificates of ownership of the Group’s
certain buildings were not yet granted from the relevant
government authorities. Despite the fact that the Group has
not obtained the certificates of ownership, the directors of the
Company determine to recognise these land and buildings on
the ground that they expect the certificates of ownership being
obtained in the future should have no major difficulties and the
Group is in substance controlling these buildings. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the absence of formal title to
these buildings does not impair the value of the relevant assets
to the Group.

Principal versus agent consideration

The Group engages in general trading of which involved trading
of goods. The Group assessed whether the Group should
recognise revenue on net basis based on the requirements
in HKFRS 15. The Group concluded that the Group acts as
the agent for such transactions as it does not control the
specified goods before it is transferred to the customer after
taking into consideration indicators such as the Group is not
primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise, and not exposed
to inventory risk. When the Group satisfies the performance
obligation, the Group recognises revenue on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costs less
accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group is required to estimate
the recoverable value, representing the higher of the asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The Group
has to exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in
assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators
that may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in
the case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied
in estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the assets belong.

The future cash flow is estimated based on past performance
and expectation for market development. As the current
environment is uncertain, the estimated cash flows and discount
rate are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainty.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the discount
rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 30 June 2023, the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment, amounted to approximately HK$14,447,000
(2022: HK$6,795,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$12,901,000 (2022: HK$18,635,000). Details of
impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment are
disclosed in note 17.
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R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

HE_Z—

4.

—FRAZTHLEFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of trade receivables and loan receivables

The impairment assessment for trade receivables and loan
receivables are based on assumptions about ECL. The Group
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the number
of days that an individual receivable is outstanding as well as
the Group's historical credit loss experience, existing market
conditions and forward-looking information at the end of the
reporting period. Changes in these assumptions and estimates
could materially affect the result of the assessment and it
may be necessary to make additional impairment charge to
profit or loss. As at 30 June 2023, the carrying amounts of
trade receivables and loan receivables were approximately
HK$138,959,000 (2022: HK$47,724,000) and HK$74,788,000 (2022:
HK$82,980,000) respectively, net of accumulated impairment
losses of trade receivables and loan receivables of approximately
HK$1,673,000 (2022: HK$8,676,000) and HK$15,922,000 (2022:
HK$25,184,000) respectively.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (which
includes amount due to a former noteholder, other borrowing,
net of bank balances and cash) and equity attributable to owners
of the Company (comprising issued share capital and reserves).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and issue of
new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

6.

REVENUE 6. W
Revenue represents revenue arising on services rendered and Wi ERBREEERFTEEZ R
sale of goods, net of discounts and sales related taxes, where (BEHBRBIRRHEEBRIE @A) o &
applicable. An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as ERERAFEEZWEZDMWMT !
follows:
2023 2022
—E-= B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with customers KESBHBIRESEN
within the scope of HKFRS 15 BB BES
BH 7 W
— Trading of fresh produce and —4SHERERERES
agricultural products 5,016,381 610,585
- General trading (Note) ——RE 5 (zH) 6,254 -
— Provision of excavation works —IRHIZE T 58,451 46,105
— Provision of construction works —IRHEETRE 68,622 31,722
— Provision of heating supply services — IR HEBEARTS 6,081 6,393
5,155,789 694,805
Revenue from other source kB MR 2 W
- Interest income from money lending —EEREZFEWA
business 6,052 10,236
5,161,841 705,041

Note: Revenue from general trading is recognised on a net basis.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers by timing of recognition

MizE : RE—REH W LB RmER -

BESFHESZRERENZBEES

2023 2022
== TEC 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Timing of revenue recognition Wi 2 e 0 B

At a point of time SIS 5,028,716 616,978
Over time 198 RF 127,073 77,827

Total revenue from contracts with HEE S WmiREE
customers 5,155,789 694,805
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

6. REVENUE (continued) 6. WxIE &
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from MR ESIAEEREEEMBRESEAES
contracts with customers within the scope of HKFRS 15: REEANZHEEA SN ZWRmMD
Trading of
fresh produce Coal
and agricultural mining and Heating
products and  construction supply
general trading services services Total
95
RERES yott 1k
UE—HRES BER R R st
For the year ended 30 June 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEZ-=F,/"B=1HLEE TERT TERT THET THET
Revenue from services: RERE 2 WS
Trading of fresh produce and tENEERES
agricultural products 5,016,381 - - 5,016,381
General trading —RE 6,254 - - 6,254
Provision of excavation works RUEZEIRE - 58,451 - 58,451
Provision of construction works RHEETRE - 68,622 - 68,622
Provision of heating supply services RIEMBRARE - - 6,081 6,081
5,022,635 127,073 6,081 5,155,789

Revenue from the geographical market: 2R B i IR AU

The PRC ] 5,022,635 127,073 6,081 5,155,789
Trading Coal
of fresh mining and Heating
produce construction supply
products services services Total
EIERE R
tHERES BER HRRS st
For the year ended 30 June 2022 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEZZFAA=THILEFE TET TET TET TET
Revenue from services: RERBEZ W
Trading of fresh produce products YHERES 610,585 - - 610,585
Provision of excavation works RIEZEIRE - 46,105 - 46,105
Provision of construction works RIEEETR - 31,722 - 31,722
Provision of heating supply services RIEHER - - 6,393 6,393
610,585 77827 6,393 694,805

Revenue from the geographical market; 28 B #ig 5 AL S
The PRC th 610,585 77827 6,393 694,805
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R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

6.

REVENUE (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers

As at 30 June 2023, the aggregate amount of transaction price
allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied
(or partially unsatisfied) is approximately HK$50,426,000 (2022:
nil) which represents revenue expected to be recognised in the
future from provision of construction works..

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the other service contracts are with
an original expected duration of one year or less. Accordingly, the
Group has elected the practical expedient and has not disclosed
the amount of transaction price allocated to the performance
obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially satisfied) as of the
end of the reporting period.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company;,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of services provided. The CODM
has chosen to organise the Group around differences in services.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

° Trading of fresh produce and agricultural products
and general trading — Provision of trading of fruit and
agricultural products and general trading

o Coal mining and construction services — Provision of
excavation works and construction works

° Money lending — Provision of money lending services in
Hong Kong and the PRC

° Heating supply services — Provision of heating supply
services

= &
ARFEESHNFBBHEINRSER

A TECZEARB=Z+TH HEEEBNE
EHRERIBDRERNT ZEENS
50,426,000 (ZEZZF 1 &) > BTEHEHE
RHEMRRHBEIEEINKES -

ACEBC=SERCE-_HXA=+HH
MIRF SN RATBEBRA—FHURN-
At XAEBBEZEBATEE S E R
REBRRTHEDEERZERAZBDIEEMN
BHBENR 5B

SEEH
MERDEARFEDBBREMB QTN
TEEZ EREEERRE (BFEERR
1)) 2EBRNER ERRPATRERFBIE
BleBFEEBRREEZRSEIRARB A=
RERFEFE -EREAEBZOIZRDE
Ko BREERREMZEEDRITEE
LEHZ REBEEBUBREENB &~&
B 2MEEEDENT ¢

s LEBMARERBEZUR—REZ IR
HAKRERRERBZUR—RES
s REFAHEAERERT -RHEEIR

RERIRE

o RME-NEBEBRTEEHBKERS

o HEZHRF IR M MHBRRTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 7. FEBEH®
Segment revenue and results DEWNERES
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by UTFAXRERRAIZHRELCED B ING K&
reportable and operating segments. EBEZ Do
Segment revenue Segment results
SRR DEEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
—ECCE S —ECCE S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAET FAT
Trading of fresh produce and YENBEREZ UK
agricultural products and —mES
general trading 5,022,635 610,585 4,104 (1,518)
Coal mining and construction services  ERERR R K R R AR 127,073 77,827 (8,138) 13,662
Money lending W& 6,052 10,236 8,362 (8,312)
Heating supply services HERIRT 6,081 6,393 (3,650) (10,010)
Total 1Bt 5,161,841 705,041 678 6,178)
Certain other income AFEMBA 1,518 981
Other gains Hitnl s 6,306 1,322
Certain finance costs HTREMRAK (738) (1,357)
Central administrative costs HRITERX (10,214) (8,933)
Loss before taxation BrHAIE1E (2,450) (14,165)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are same as BENB 7 Gt RFEE NIz AE
the Group's accounting policies described in note 3. Segment T ERER - D EEEISTEDEMES
results represent the profit (loss) incurred by each segment ZmH (B8 wRkokE THMKRANE
without allocation of certain other income, other gains, certain MK F - BETHEMAN R RITERES o IL
finance costs and central administrative costs. This is the TBERTFTARNBDESFTUREDEE R &I G
measure reported to the directors of the Company for the KIEZHR o

purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 7. SHEEMN @
Segment assets and liabilities NEEERER
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by B 2R ERENBEIZAEBEERE
reportable and operating segment. BAMUTeo
2023 2022
—ZT”= B _&F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Segment assets TREE
Trading of fresh produce and TEHRERERES
agricultural products and Mk—E5
general trading 175,962 95,971
Coal mining and construction services IR R R AR TS 74,481 79,323
Money lending BE 75,696 85,076
Heating supply services HBRARTS 40 457
Total segment assets WHBEE 326,179 260,827
Unallocated P ANy 154,113 194,621
Consolidated assets REEE 480,292 455,448
Segment liabilities b=
Trading of fresh produce and agricultural 4 #MEEREZUR—RKRE
products and general trading 38,240 3,678
Coal mining and construction services IRTERR R RRTS 78,095 44,532
Money lending & 1,033 1,879
Heating supply services HBRARTS 140 142
Total segment liabilities moBaR 117,508 50,231
Unallocated F Aty 10,535 52,183
Consolidated liabilities = 128,043 102,414

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

RERDBRBRIEDEEZER

- All assets are allocated to reportable segments other —
than unallocated assets (mainly comprising certain
property, plant and equipment, certain right-of-use assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets at FVTPL, certain
other receivables, pledged time deposits, restricted time
deposits, and bank balances and cash); and

BRARDEEE (EEZVREETYE K
ER&FE - ETHERBREE ELERIEA
BE - KBEEREATEARZERE
E-ETHMEBRRE ERFERF
P RIRFIE AR U R IRITAE AR R IR
) PREEEHDETRIERDEE,;
i

- All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other —
than unallocated liabilities (mainly comprising certain lease
liabilities, income tax payables, amount due to a former
noteholder and certain other payables).

BRokKER (ETEQEETHES
B EBRER BN —UNRERE
ARERETHMEMNRE) 5 A
BEPENETEEDE-
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 7. AEEH®

Other segment information HithpEEN
Coal mining and Trading of fresh produce
construction services Money lending Heating supply services and agricultural products Unallocated Total
BRI REERS R B EHRRERESR 7R @t
2023 202 2023 02 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 202
Z$IZ§ C"TCCf IZBIZE “R-CF ZBIZ§ TTCCF IZBIZ§ CIZCCE IBIZE “TCCf IZBIZE T3CC

HK$'000  HKSO00  HK$'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKSOO0  HK§'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000
TR TER TR TEn TiEn FER T#En TER TR TER TEn TR

Amounts included in the FARBREANE
measure of segment profitor BEHEZ$HE

loss or segment assets
Depreciation of property, plantand - #1% - BE R EITE

equipment 2918 2183 82 212 - 1,855 - - 85 81 3,085 4331
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  ERIEEEITE - - 960 1215 - - 170 - 479 518 1,609 1733
Additions to non-curent assets  REIERBEE

(note) (HizE) 14,007 2733 867 3156 = = 1,363 - 1,099 " 17,336 5900
Loss on disposal/write-off of property &,/ #iss¥%  BE &

plant and equipment REGER 1,705 4 - - - - - - - - 1,705 4
Finance costs EEGES 673 161 72 - = - 77 131 738 1,357 1,560 1,649

Impairment loss recognised in AL BERERERDZ
respect of property, plant and AEEE

equipment = - = - - 5918 - - = - - 5918
Impairment loss (reversed) HERREMBERTE

recognised in respect of trade and ~ (E[al) B EfE

other receivables (6,943) (21,640) = - = - 431 297) 6 1 (6,506) (21,936)
Impairment loss (reversed) RERED (B0 B2 AESE

recognised in respect of loan

receivables - 62 (8,062) 11399 - - - - - - (8,062) 11461
Impairment loss (reserved) HRENEE (BR) Bz

recognised in respect of contract  H{ERSHE

assets (3,134) 957 - - = - = - o - (3,134) 957

Amounts regularly provided — EHIREFEBARERE
to the CODM but not BRAADBREHEZ
included in the measure of E1)
segment profit or loss
Bank interest income SRATRIBHA - - - - - - = - (973) (257) (973) (257)

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred tax assets. i

=

Jof : FRBEETORESRTAREERERE
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 7. DEEN@®
Geographical information MEE R
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC. REEZKETHUNREARFE-
The Group’s revenue from external customers is presented SEBRBEIBETL ZINETDIEE P LE M
based on the location of the operations of customers. &2 - BARAERFRBHEEZERTHZ
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented BEMEMERZ5 -

based on the geographical location of the assets.

Hong Kong The PRC Consolidated
54 HE ]
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—%-= S : - “EIZE  IZBI= Ik
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TER TET TET FT#ET FTAET
Revenue from external customers RENIEEZ WA 540 1,782 5,161,301 703,259 5,161,841 705,041
Non-current assets (note) FRBEE () 1,241 704 16,122 8,354 17,363 9,058
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets. et . ERBEEFACFRILERBEE
Information about major customers EREFrERENENM
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years HEBBAERBARRIONZ KRBT E Z W HE
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as RIEEFEENT :
follows:
2023 2022
—E—-= —EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFAT
Customer A’ ZEA 1,527,807 161,872
Customer F’ BRF 702,535 N/A 78 F3?
Customer G EAG 558,287 N/A T3E B2
Customer B' EAB N/A F3E F2 76,946
Customer C' gl N/A A3 2 76,802
Customer D ZED! N/A FR3E 2 76,042
Customer E! BAE N/A 7 3E F2 74,581
1 Revenue from trading of fresh produce and agricultural products and i REEHKREREBSUR—REZDEZWHE
general trading segment
2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total revenue 2 R AR AR B G AERRREEN
of the Group for the respective period 10% U &
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BHECZTT—FA=1HIEFE
8. OTHER INCOME 8. HMKA
2023 2022
B4 et -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Interest income on bank deposits IRITERFI S WA 973 257
Government grants (note) B D (M) 4,517 3,856
Handling income on packing coal IERBEFEEUA 168 3,549
Dividend income from equity securities A 5 A B WA 449 639
Gain on termination of lease (note 18) RIEEA W (FEE18) 41 -
Sundry income HEISWA 511 32
6,659 8,333
Note: MIEE -

Various local government grants were granted to subsidiaries of the Group for
subsidising the operations in the PRC during the years ended 30 June 2023 and

2022.

In addition, during the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recognised
government grants of HK$112,000 (2022: nil) in respect of COVID-19-related
subsidies related to Employment Support Scheme provided by the Government of
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under the Anti-Epidemic Fund.

There is no unfulfilled condition in relation to the recognition of the subsidy income
and therefore the full amount was recognised as income during the years ended 30

RBEE_F_=Fr-ZF__FAXB=+HLEFE &
EENBABDERSEM S BUNFAEBUENN DR &

o

NV RBE_BR _=ZF=ZRA=1+—HBLEFE -££H
MEMEBRITHRERNREREES T RHHNRF
72 5t BIBICOVID-1948 A 478 Al 7 SR BURT 475 B0112,0008 7T

=z D) o

—_= nr

WA BB WA B SR 2 AR i R A FIE 2 BB S 2R
RBEZSZ_=ZGR-F__FRA=THLEERSR

June 2023 and 2022. ABUTA °
9. OTHER GAINS 9. Hthlkz=
2023 2022
—E=H B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—RiE sz am - 1,007
Fair value changes on financial assets KERREATFEAKRZ

at FVTPL THMEBEZATFTEE 6,306 321
6,306 1,322
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. REE M A
2023 2022
—E=H B THF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interest expenses on discounted bills BIRERFISRX 50 14
Interest on amount due to a former FE— (LA ZIRIF A AFUE
noteholder (note 28) ZH B (15E28) 713 1,322
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaEN Sz 171 313
Interest expenses on other borrowings HanfEZz FEMX 626 -
1,560 1,649
11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 11. FRERESZ (K%)
2023 2022
== A
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Hong Kong Profits Tax EHHBFER
Under-provision in prior years FEBETE - 319
PRC Enterprise Income Tax MR 1 2EFR1STR
Current year KEE 755 1,375
Qver-provision in prior years FEBRERE A (552) -
Deferred tax (note 30): EICFRIE (F3E30) -
Current year KEE 2,026 (3,344)
2,229 (1,650)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 30 June 2023.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for the year ended 30 June 2023
(2022: 25%). Certain subsidiaries were subject to EIT at a rate of
5% for RMB3 million of profits, as they were classified as a small
and low profit enterprise during the year ended 30 June 2023
and 2022.

BE_E_=—FA=+HLFE BARXXKX
EERTEGHERR N AT BERS
MBBRERASHRE B SRR

RIFPEEERERE (REMESRE) &
EMEBREIBERBER  PENBRASDNE
EE_—FEXNA=Z1+THILEEMNRXS
25% (ZB - 125%) o HE_E =

TECCFB=tHIEEE ETHB
NEBAFARIEIE BTG F E5%H iR =
WP ERER REAEWDEA/NEMY
o
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (continued) 11.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates

FRSAX (E%R) @

HiB ZReNMNARREAME ZEERIR

prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. TRESE-
The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be reconciled to REEZERBEY B%R) BEa8BmRY
the loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit BRIRIEIEZ HARWT ¢
or loss as follows:
2023 2022
—E°= TETTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHEx
Loss before taxation PRI AIES1E (2,450) (14,165)
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% 2 & EF 12 F16.5%
(2022: 16.5%) (T4 1165%)
SFERIRIA (404) (2,337)
Tax effect of income not taxable BEFRBANREZE
for tax purpose (3,682) (9,716)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BENR T HIVR B &
for tax purpose 821 3,110
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRBEEENREEE 9,514 8,168
(Over-) under-provision in prior years T (BEEEE) BB LR (552) 319
Effect on different tax rate resulting from  MBATZBEREKEE
an entitlement of preferential tax rate of HABMREWNEE
a subsidiary (1,420) (542)
Effect of different tax rates of the group REBLIINENEE S E
entities operating in jurisdictions other SEEBTRERNENEE
than Hong Kong (2,048) (652)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year AEEFEREX (%) 2,229 (1,650)

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 30.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

12. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

12. ZFEFE

2023 2022
—E°= TETTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAET
Loss for the year has been arrived at AFEBEBNRFRTYIIER !
after charging:
Employee benefits expenses: EERHNHAY
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) EEMNE (H5213) 2,423 2,865
Other staffs’ salaries, wages and other HtETI#Hs TEREMEH
benefits 74,696 59,639
Other staffs’ retirement benefits Hh 8 TIRIKEF] 5T 2R
scheme contributions 3,745 2,874
Total employee benefits expenses BRERAERRE 80,864 65,378
Auditor’s remuneration TZEEMBN & 1,430 1,300
Depreciation of property, M- BB KRR EITE
plant and equipment 3,085 4,331
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEEINE 1,609 1,733
Loss on disposal/write-off of property, HE MIEYZE - R &
plant and equipment REZ B 1,705 4
Cost of inventories recognised as HEERSZ 2 FERAN GtAHES
expenses (included in cost of goods o K R AR S Bl A)
sold and services rendered) 5,004,501 607,662
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

13. DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE 13. EFRTHRAERME
OFFICER'S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2022: 9) ZEENTEMIORE CEI_F 9% ES
directors and the chief executive officer (“CEQ") were as follows: RATEARE (TTTEAEEL) NS0T ¢
Mr. Cai Da Mr. Li
(Chairman) Xianghong Mr. Li Mr. Wang
(Note i) (Note i) Wai Hung Tong Tong Total
Bk
(€37:9) FHBEE
(P =) (Pt 5) ZRERE FEERE R
Year ended 30 June 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEZZ-=EXB=1HLEE TER TER FERT TERT TERT
A.  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: A BTESE:
Emoluments paid or receivable in REZREATEAAE R
respect of director's other services HEREADEBEMNEMRS
in connection with the management [lEESTEY 3P4
of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiary undertakings
Salaries and allowances HeRkE 1,180 120 390 418 2,108
Contributions to retirement BRI EIE
benefit schemes 4 - 18 37 59
Sub-total emoluments BE\ 1,184 120 408 455 2,167
Mr. Wang Ms. Feng Ms.Lei M. Huang
Zhixiang ~ Ms. Wong Jibei Mr. Chen Ming Tianhua
(note i) Na Na (note ii) Xier (note iii) (note iii) Total
EEHELE BRERL BByt =EXERE
(iskil) SRR L (Mizki)  BRAREE (PfsHiii) (Fe s R
Year ended 30 June 2023 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HECZ-=EXB=1+HLEE TER TERT TER TER TERT TER TERT
B.  INDEPENDENT NON- B. BUERTES:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Emoluments paid or receivable RZALTHRIES
in respect of a person’s MEAZARETzZHE
services as a director
Fees s 25 60 25 60 48 38 256
Total emoluments Fal 2,423
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

13. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’'S EMOLUMENTS (continued)

13. EFERITHESMHE @

Mr Li Mr. Chen
Mr. Cai Da Xianghong Youhua Mr.Li Mr. Wang
(Co-chairman)  (Co-chairman) (note v) Wai Hung Tong Tong Total
WEXR  BEIR (sv)  ZEBEE  TEERE ast
Year ended 30 June 2022 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEZZ-"ERB=t+HLEE TR T FAT T TAET TAL
A EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: A WHfTES:
Emoluments paid or receivable REZRENEEL DTN
in respect of director's other HNB AR EHBRNEMARE
services in connection with the MEESIRECZ#E
management of the affairs of
the Company and its Subsidiary
undertakings
Salaries and allowances HEREE 1,040 620 210 390 338 2,598
Contributions to retirement benefit  R4RAERI5HEIER
schemes - - 9 18 - 27
Sub-total emoluments Bt 1,040 620 219 408 338 2625
Mr. Wang Ms. Wong Ms. Feng Mr. Chen
Zhixiang Na Na Jibei Xier Total
IEEEE IFHz: BEELXLT BRARLE aif
Year ended 30 June 2022 HK$'000 HK$'OOO HK$'OOO HK$’OOO HK$'000
BE_Z-__EAA-1HLEE THET TET TAT AT THL
B. INDEPENDENT NON- B. BUFRITESR:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Emoluments paid or receivable RZALEREESRM
in respect of a person’s BEIARESZME
services as a director
Fees ik 60 60 60 60 240
Total emoluments T 2,865
Notes: BT -
0] On 1 January 2023, Mr. Li Xianghong was resigned as director and Co- i) R _E_=ZF—B—H FEABELHIESER
Chairman; Mr. Cai Da was re-designated from the Co-Chairman to Chairman MEERE, REREHBEREIFEATAER
(i) Resigned on 11 November 2022 as independent non-executive director (i) RIZ2ZZF+—A+—BHeEBIIERNITES
(i) Appointed on 11 November 2022 as independent non-executive director (iii) R B _F+—A+—BEZERBILIFNIT
=

(iv) Resigned on 31 December 2021 as director

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments paid
by the Group during both years. No emoluments were paid by
the Group to any of the directors as an incentive payment to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during both years.

vy RIE—F+-A=+—H8EES

MEFEARBESNEARERESTEER
NN EAME MEFEANSEBRBED
FRAEEZAME  FREMAMALRE
B R AV B N F AR HRENME-
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE
14. EEM=E

rEBLUREMENALTH —% (CF
TTF MR R/EFATESE EHMES AW

14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,

15.

one (2022: two) was director whose emoluments are included in

the note 13. The emoluments of the remaining four (2022: three) H13) R THBAL (CEZZF I =8A
individuals are as follows: ) 2T ¢
2023 2022
TET=F BT F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 2,971 2,431
Contributions to retirement BRIREFIETEHERR
benefits scheme 72 54
3,043 2,485
Their emoluments were within the following bands WEZMEMBENSEENT
2023 2022
—E-= BT THF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 221,000,000 7 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0017& 75 2 1,500,00078 75 1 1

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 30 June
2023, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period (2022: nil).
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

16. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 16. SREF (B18)
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (Ioss) per share ENBBEBENELEREANRBERF (5
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following 8B) HRUATHE®RAE
data:
2023 2022
—E-= TETTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FHET
Earnings (loss) BF (8518)

Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic AEEREAREERN (BB
and diluted earnings (loss) per share (for FrTRZ&F (B8 (A3

the year attributable to owners of the BEANELEAFERN (B518)
Ccompany) 1,459 (8,963)
Number of Number
shares of shares
ahES =] PR
‘000 ‘000
TFhE A&
(Restated)
Geg==gl))
Number of shares K& 8
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose  3tESRERREHEET (B518)
of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per FrAzZEREE
share 374,628 374,628
The number of ordinary shares for the year ended 30 June 2022 SESREARSEEBEMANEES
for the purpose of calculating basic and diluted loss per share T IHEARB=THLEFENEERHEEDH
have been adjusted for the capital reorganisation during the year HE_ZFARA=THILFENRAEAE
ended 30 June 2023. For details, please refer to note 31. ABEHAE - FBESRMEE3-
Diluted earnings (loss) per share was the same as the basic HREBEE_S =GR _F,B=1+
earnings (loss) per share as there were no potential dilutive BIEFEMEETEIZBTBEESER
ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 30 June RitESREERT (BB BESREXRT
2023 and 2022. (B518) A8[R) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ME - -BER=RE

Office
equipment,
Plant and Leasehold furniture and
Buildings machineries  improvements fixtures  Motor vehicles Total
MWAE
BER R RE
1BF e % REEEE RE EL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT AT TERT FHET FHET
Cost 7%
At 1July 2021 RIZEZ—-&FtH—H 2,199 39,922 390 1,698 1,719 45,928
Additions HE - 2547 - 197 - 2744
Disposals HE - (732) - - (300) (1,032)
Exchange realignment ERAE (57) (1,096) (1) (46) (17) (1,217)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RIEZZERA=1HK
“E-"FEtA-A 2,142 40,641 389 1,849 1,402 46423
Additions RE B 9,489 - 581 3954 14,024
Disposals/write-off HE /s - (16,59) - - - (16,59)
Exchange realignment ERHE (115) (1,425) @ 98) 91 (1,731)
At 30 June 2023 RZE_=F/B=1H 2,027 32,109 387 2,332 5,265 42,120
Accumulated depreciation RHRERAE
and impairment
At 1 July 2021 RIEZ-F+A—H 867 27,059 9 1,429 1,287 30,651
Depreciation provided for the year AEEFEZNE 85 3690 100 220 23 4,331
Impairment loss recognised BRRZRESE - 5918 - - - 5918
Eliminated on disposals R E R - (244) - - (285) (529)
Exchange realignment ERAR (25 (663) (1) (41) (13) (743)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RZEZZEXRA=+HR
“ZTTFEtE-H 927 35,760 108 1,608 1,225 39,628
Depreciation provided for the year AEEHRZITE 84 1,441 146 266 1,148 3,085
Eliminated on disposals/write-off RHE /R - (14,460) - - - (14,460)
Exchange realignment ERAE (51) (400) @) 83 43) (580)
At 30 June 2023 RIRZ=FRA=+H 960 22341 251 1,791 2330 27,673
Carrying amounts REME
At 30 June 2023 RIZZ=E A=1H 1,067 9,768 136 54 2935 14,447
At 30 June 2022 RIZEZZEXB=1H 1,215 4,881 281 21 177 6,795
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ME-BERRE @

(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are NEME-BERRBEEBER TIFER
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per BZESFINE .
annum:
Buildings 5% ’F 5%
Plant and machineries 10% — 20% R 5= o 1% 23 10%-20%
Leasehold improvements Over the K& FAEHEE20%

shorter of the lease U E A %)

term or 20%
Office equipment, furniture and fixtures 20% — 40% MNEHE
RAKEBETESE 20%-40%

Motor vehicles 25% B 25%

As at 30 June 2023, the Group has not been granted the
certificates of ownership for buildings with carrying amounts
of approximately HK$1,067,000 (2022: HK$1,215,000) from the
relevant PRC government authorities. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the absence of formal title to these
properties does not impair their values to the Group as the
Group has paid in full purchase consideration of these buildings
and the probability of being evicted on the ground of an absence
of formal title is remote.

Coal mining and construction services CGU

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, due to continual
concern on the long term sustainability of the coal mining and
construction business, the management of the Group conducted
impairment assessment on the recoverable amount of certain
property, plant and equipment. The management considered that
the fair value less costs of disposal of those assets were higher
than their value-in-use and adopted the fair value less costs of
disposal as their recoverable amounts. The management of the
Group determined that the estimated recoverable amounts of
the property, plant and equipment are higher than their carrying
amounts. No further impairment is considered necessary.

The fair value less costs of disposal was based on market
comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of
similar assets within the same industry, adjusted for differences
such as conditions and remaining useful lives. The fair value on
which the recoverable amount is based on is categorised as a
Level 3 measurement.

e

A ZFERNA=ZTRH AEETEES
Iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ?%ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁm 067,000
T (CE "4 11,215,000/ 7T) Z8F 2
EREBE-ANTEEDRL ARNAEFBEE
HEVHREZERF 2 RAEBRAXNREZE
HEERMMEZN &M Nz EYE
R ENERSHEBENAEEANEE

RERREEERFREELE M

HE_ S _ —_FA"FE_"FA=Z+HL
FE O ARFERTEBERREREREEN
RATFET AEEEEBHETWE
B KREEN WD S EETREN G -B
BERAZSEEN RAFEREERETEN
HEREBE UHRARTFEBREERNAER
HoWElEE - AEBEBEETME K
EREENGEAWESES N EREE-
THRE—THREBHE-

NFEREERETEHIGLEB AL R EF
TERUBEELREE URLIFGFRER T E
FRHRFEZRETHE - AIROZRRPIKE
WRAFEDDERF=RBRFTE-
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For the year ended 30 June 2023

HE_Z

17.

“=HFRA=tHLEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Heating supply services CGU

During the year ended 30 June 2022, in respect of the Group’s
heating supply services CGU, due to recurring operating
losses, the management of the Group concluded there was
impairment indication for impairment and conducted impairment
assessment on the recoverable amount of certain plant and
equipment under this CGU.

The recoverable amounts of plant and equipment were
determined by value-in-use calculation prepared by the
management supported by the Avista Valuation Advisory Limited,
an independent valuer not connected to the Group. The cash
flow projection is based on financial budget approved by the
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using a 3% growth rate until the
end of the expected useful lives of relevant plant and equipment.
The cash flow projection is discounted at pre-tax discount rate of
11.9% per annum which reflects the specific risks relating to this
CGU. Key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation include
future revenue, budgeted gross margin and operating cost, which
were determined based on the CGU's past performance, the
Group's business plan and management expectations for the
market development.

Based on the result of the above assessment, management of
the Group determined that the estimated recoverable amounts
of the plant and equipment are lower than their carrying
amounts. As a result, an impairment loss of HK$5,918,000 (2023:
nil) was recognised in the profit and loss which was allocated to
heating supply services segment during the year ended 30 June
2022.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, all plant and equipment
under this CGU were written-off.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

18. LEASES

(i) Right-of-use assets

Properties leased for own use

BREEYE

18. A&
(i) FHAEEE
2023
—EC-=HF
HK$'000
FHET
2,916

2022
B
HK$'000
FHET

2,263

The Group has lease arrangements for office premises,
staff quarter and mining machineries. The lease terms are
generally ranged from 2 to 5 years. The Group has also
entered into short-term leases arrangements in respect of

office premises.

(ii) Lease liabilities

AEEMREMAENE B TESRF
EEEMEI L EE 2 - HEHRRE KN
F2ESF - AEETFMEMAEY T

YREHREE R

(i HEAR

2023 2022

—E-= BT F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Non-current 1,342 725
Current 1,601 5,096
2,943 5,821
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

18. LEASES (continuead)

(i) Lease liabilities(Continued)

18. fHE @
(i) HEaE®

2023 2022
—E=H = Sl =
Analysed into payable DR EREDRIA HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Within one year —FRN 1,601 5,096
After one year but within two years ~—EBBRMER 1,342 725
2,943 5,821
Less: Amount due for settlement B+ BB NEERIEAFUE
within 12 months (shown V=N E=l)
under current liabilities) (1,601) (5,096)
Amount due for settlement after + 2 EBBEETH
12 months 1,342 725

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group entered
into new lease agreements in the respect of renting offices
and recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$3,312,000 (2022: HK$3,156,000).

(iii)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
by class of underlying asset:
— Properties leased for own use

Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(included in finance costs)

Expenses relating to short-term
leases (included in administrative
and other operating expenses)

Amounts recognised in profit or loss

% R

BTT) °
(iii) MEFEPHERHNRIE
2023
—EC=H
HK$'000
FET
BBIEREEERITE
FREEE:
—BRMEEME 1,609
HESEMNEHZ
Gt ABYE B A) 171
SRERFEERX
GtATTBURHt=EEER)
869

2022
B
HK$'000
FET

1,733

313

188

HE_Z_-_FXXA=1+HLFE>
AEERBERARRETILMEE D
FTREBEENEESE!
3,312,000 75 (Z& 4 : 3,156,000

4
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

18. LEASES (continuead)
(iv) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
consolidated statement of cash flows under cash outflows
is as follows:

18. HHE @)

(iv) HERERHBEE

§‘Jﬁfﬁ?éfﬁﬁuuii€E’\JfﬁﬁmﬁE’ﬁﬁ
BIR&REBENT

2023 2022
—E== B HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Within operating activities (payment RS RN (BEEHHES)

for short-term leases) 869 188
Within financing activities =TI 5,127 2,806
5,996 2,994

(v) Hith

(v) Others

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group terminated
a lease of office premise and derecognised right-of-asset
asset and lease liability of approximately HK$947,000 (2022:
nil) and HK$988,000 (2022: nil) respectively, resulting in a
gain on termination of lease of approximately HK$41,000
being recognised in profit or loss for the year and included
in “Other income”.

BHE_Z_—EA=tHILEE"
REBKRIE—DMBAEYENHEL
TEHREIACAREERTEES R
#947,0008 T (ZE-_—_F 1 8) &
988,000 (ZE - —&F : &) » At
FRIEFH AR IR AU 4941,00078
Too Wt ATEAUg A
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

19. GOODWILL 19. BHE
HK$'000
FHET

Cost %
At 1 July 2021 A _E_—F+tHA—H 1,764
Exchange realignment PE 2 sE 2 (45)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 N TEITFSA=+HK

“EF+HA—H 1,719
Exchange realignment PE 2 sE (92)
At 30 June 2023 N ZET=HFA="H 1,627
Accumulated impairment losses RetREEBE
At 1 July 2021 A —E_—FtH—H 1,764
Exchange realignment PE 2 sE (45)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 é:;f::fﬁ/‘—\)% =+tBK

2+ HA—H 1,719
Exchange realignment FERAE 92)
At 30 June 2023 N B _=FA=+H 1,627
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2023 A ZE_=FA=1+H -
At 30 June 2022 N ZEZTHFA=TH -

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, goodwill was allocated to the
Everbest Return Limited and its subsidiaries which are principally
engaged in the provision of coal mining and construction
services. The amount was fully impaired in prior years as the
recoverable amount was less than its carrying amount.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

20. CUSTOMER CONTRACTS 20. BB &N
HK$'000
FHET
Cost D%
At 1 July 2021 RN - —F+tH—H 326,917
Exchange realignment bE 2 EREE (8,459)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 MR- "FXA=+HX
BT "FtERA—H 318,458
Write-off 6] (305,543)
Exchange realignment PE R (12,915)
At 30 June 2023 RZE_=%,xH=+H -
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Rt KiFE
At 1 July 2021 R_E_—FtH—H 326,917
Exchange realignment PE R SR EE (8,459)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RIZEZZFABE=1+HK
22+ HA—H 318,458
Eliminated on write-off Y B 9 24 (305,543)
Exchange realignment PE A% (12,915)

At 30 June 2023 WN_E_=F,A=1H -
Carrying amounts IREE

At 30 June 2023 WN_E_=F,A=1H =
At 30 June 2022 RIZEZZFB=+H =
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

20. CUSTOMER CONTRACTS (continuea) 20. ERF A8 ®

The customer contracts have finite useful lives and are amortised
on a straight-line basis over 8-18 years.

In January 2020, the Group received notices from a major
customer (“Major Customer”) that in order to comply with
the Entrusted Management Measures (the “Measure”) which
was issued by the State Administration of Coal Mine Safety
on 6 December 2019, the Major Customer had requested the
Group to terminate all services offered in relation to the coal
mines owned by the Major Customer pursuant to the customer
contract. Details of which were set out in the Company's
announcement dated 16 January 2020.

The Major Customer had not renewed the coal mining services
agreements with the Group after their respective expiration on
31 December 2019. Other than the Major Customer, the Group
has also rendered coal mining services to another customer
(“Remaining Customer”). The relevant coal mining service
agreement with the Remaining Customer originally would be
expired in June 2021 (“Existing Agreement”). On 17 June 2020,
the Group and the Remaining Customer has entered into a
termination agreement (“Termination Agreement”) to terminate
the Existing Agreement with immediate effect in order to comply
with the Measure. Upon signing the Termination Agreement,
the Group was no longer offer coal production services to its
customers. Details of which were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 17 June 2020. In view of these, the carrying
amount of customer contracts was fully impaired and an
impairment loss of HK$65,220,000 was recognised in the profit or
loss during the year ended 30 June 2020.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the directors of the
Company considered the probability of renewal of the customer
contracts were remote. The amounts were written-off.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

21. INVENTORIES 21. &
2023 2022
—E_= B HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHEx
Finished goods held for resale FIEEENRM S 2,330 6,128

22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BHRWRIE BIREBREMEUR

15
2023 2022
—E-= s %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade receivables B Z R IE 140,632 56,400
Less: allowance for impairment of B B EWEIERE RS
trade receivables (1,673) (8,676)
138,959 47,724
Bills receivables FEUL Z= 4% 1,108 13,347
Receivables arising from dealing BE MBS MES 2 EWRIE
in listed securities 3,066 261
Prepayments SEANE /R 44,180 57,529
Amount due from non-controlling interests  FEUTIEIZE Rtz 2018 (MiEr)
(Note) 17,821 -
Other deposits paid, net of allowance for ~ EfB T > NREERE
impairment 14,859 17,534
Other receivables, net of allowance for HanpEU s > {0R R E R B
impairment 2,520 87
222,513 136,482
As at 30 June 2023, the gross amount of trade and bills A _E_—ERBZTH BREHNE
receivables arising from contracts with customers amounting to S EBSERREREREZEREEBLNS
approximately HK$141,740,000 (2022: HK$69,747,000). 141,740,00078 70 (Z & — —4F : 69,747,0007
JT) °©
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. &5 REURIE « FEULTR R T H {th FE LR

(Continued)

All the bills receivables are aged within 180 days (2022: 180
days).

Note:

The amount due from non-controlling interest represented a sum
of approximately HK$17,821,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB16,084,000) committed to be contributed by the non-
controlling interest as capital reserve to the non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company pursuant to the terms of the
cooperation agreement dated 23 November 2021 entered into
between the non-controlling interest and the Group (as amended
and supplemented by the supplemental agreement).

The Group grants a credit period of 30 days to its customers. No
interest is charged on overdue trade receivables. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of accumulated
impairment loss, presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period:

8 #®)

FrERKRERZIREHABBISOR (ZE
— T 1 180K) °

By aE

BUWOrERED MBS FEREDREH
BAEEMIUARS T _—F+—8
“+H=HEFHE EHRTRRETT hME
7)) MIEREAEREABIFE2ENB RS T
BEFmBEAHERRIEA17,821,000% 7T (18
BN ANR16,084,0007T) ©

AEERTHERFNRIRAA30XK - AHR
B BUBGRIEL AT R o NIREG AR > 12
RHEYZEZRERBCHFRTRERS
BZIREDHTWT

2023 2022

—E=8 BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH5T FHET

0-30 days 0E30k 95,494 37,427
31-60 days 31E60K 13,822 3,402
61-90 days 61E90K 27,449 118
91-180 days 91ZE180K 2,059 -
181-365 days 181E 365K 135 -
Over 1 year HiE1E - 6,777
138,959 47,724

The Group measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables
are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past
default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtors’
current financial positions adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry
in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the
current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date. There has been no change in the estimation
technigues or significant assumptions made during the current
period.
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R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. B 5 RUGRIE  FRULR R R H th FE LR

(Continued)

Except for gross amounts of nil as at 30 June 2023 and
HK$13,356,000 as at 30 June 2022, the Group's trade receivables
as at 30 June 2022 are related to customers with common risk
characteristics and the Group's historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns within each
operating segment, the 10ss allowance based on past due date is
not further distinguished between the Group's different customer
bases. The aforesaid trade receivables with gross carrying
amounts of approximately HK$13,356,000 (2023: nil) as at 30
June 2022 were considered as credit-impaired and assessed
individually..

The following tables provide information which is assessed

based on provision matrix.

I8 @)

BN ZEZ=ZF"A=+tHWNRBEAZT RN
—E T HESRB =1+ HMAEREA13,356,000
B KEBR _Z-_FB=+HH
B EWHIELER— KRR '-’F—H?.E’]%ﬁﬁ
FRBEAERNEFLEESBLR
EﬁiﬁZ%ﬁé&EEﬂéB@’I%iﬂﬂﬁm%ﬁ%%ﬁ’
FILEREAR B A EEREER R E—
TEOFANEREB RN _E - _F <A
=+ HERME4B(EA913,356,000/8 T (CE - =
FE )2 BFREFTBHEEASEHIR
EERERBETHER TG

TREHRER G EREFEER -

Weighted
average Gross
expected carrying Loss
As at 30 June 2023 RZEZ=F/xA=+H loss rate amount allowance
MEFH
FRHARS IR IREAE iR E
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
Trading of fresh produce and agricultural FENEERER UK
products and general trading segment —REZNE
Collectively 1
Current (not past due) 2a1 (KA 0.52% 82,113 413
31-60 days past due BWEEOK 0.53% 27,594 145
91-180 days past due AHA91E 180K 0.74% 136 1
109,843 559
Weighted
average Gross
expected carrying Loss
As at 30 June 2023 RZEZ=F/xA=1+H loss rate amount allowance
MEFH
FHEEE IREAE iRk E
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
Coal mining and construction BRI ERRENE
services segment
Collectively [
Current (not past due) 2a1 Raf) 1.60% 14,018 224
Within 30 days past due A 0K A 5.30% 14,596 774
61-90 days past due HAH61E0R 5.29% 2,174 115
30,789 1,114
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BEEWRIE  FEKNEE K H BT
(Continuead) I8 )
Weighted
average Gross
expected carrying Loss
As at 30 June 2022 AR "&ERB=1H loss rate amount allowance
IEFH
BHEEX REAE BiaEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
Tradiing of fresh produce and agricultural TEREERESZURK
products and general trading segment —REZNE
Collectively #HF
Current (not past due) 2 (R 0.82% 32,751 270
Within 30 days past due HHEA30R A 0.82% 3430 28
61-90 days past due HHERGIEOR 0.84% 119 1
36,300 299
Weighted
average Gross
expected carrying Loss
As at 30 June 2022 RZEZ-&-B=1+H loss rate amount allowance
MEFH
R REAE BiEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT
Coal mining and construction BRI R ERRE DS
services segment
Collectively #EF
Current (not past due) 21 Ra) 11.25% 5,573 627
181-365 days past due HH181E 365K 71.82% 1,171 841
6,744 1,468
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. E5RUGRIE  FRULR R R H th FE LR

(Continuead) I8 )
The movements in the allowance for impairment of trade BoRWHRIBREREB ZEHWT
receivables are set out below:
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(collectively (individually
and individually assessed,
assessed)  credit-impaired) Total
2HATEH ZHATEHR
FEBE =EEE
(&R (1815 T4
185 3T 1) EERE) M
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER
At 1 July 2021 AZE-—E+F—H 29,243 3,222 32,465
Impairment loss (reversed) recognised (?é*@) BR2ZRERE (27,575) 7,142 (20,433)
Amounts written off as uncollectible MEARITRE 2 &% - (3,222) (3,222)
Exchange realignment ERRE 99 (233) (134)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RIZZZFRA=+THK
"2 "FtA-H 1,767 6,909 8,676
Impairment loss recognised (reversed) BHE (B[R] 2 RESE 1 (6,629) (6,628)
Exchange realignment ERAE (95) (280) (375)
At 30 June 2023 RIEZ=F/-B=1H 1,673 - 1,673

HREMENRERAMBWRIE ZAFH
EFKERBEEELH BEERURE
BREMEN (GEBENRELEER A
PR L EETRIE AR

For other deposits paid and other receivables, the directors
of the Company determined the expected credit losses based
on individual assessment after taken into account historical
settlement records, past experience, and also quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information.

The movements in the allowance for impairment of other HEME s hEMtERTRIBRERE &

deposits paid and other receivables are set out below: U -
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 July 2021 A —E_—FtH—H 6,912
Impairment loss reversed B#E 2 RERE (1,503)
Exchange realignment PE R A% (132)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 ‘T:E::fﬁ/\ﬁ =+BK&
“EFtHA—H 5877
Impairment loss recognised B2 R EEIE 122
Exchange realignment PR (285)
At 30 June 2023 e e = = = S H{E 5,114
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For the year ended 30 June 2023

BE_E_=—HFB=THLEE
22. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 22. BREIRIE - RN E S KR H MU
(Continued) I8 @)
For amount due from non-controlling interests, the directors of MEWIEERETRIBEMES > XABESIR
the Company determined the expected credit losses based on BEAFGECHEBEEEER EREEE
individual assessment after taken into account credit ratings, EEIR - BEROKCBRUKREERELE
historical default experience and also quantitative and qualitative B (GEEENAEEER) -HBHNEKRE
information that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking B EREREEE R I &EEEIE N R
information. It has low risk of default or has no significant BRI ERE
increase in credit risk since recognition and no impairment loss is
recognised.
23. LOAN RECEIVABLES 23. EKER
2023 2022
—E= BT _&F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Loans & 90,710 108,164
Less: impairment losses recognised B BRERZIRERSE (15,922) (25,184)
74,788 82,980
At 30 June 2023, other than a loan to a third party with RZEZ=FRA=+H BREHA92,742,000

an aggregate principal and accrued interest amounting to
approximately HK$2,742,000 (2022: HK$2,380,000) is secured by a
second charge of a property, all other loans to third parties with
an aggregate principal and accrued interest of approximately
HK$72,046,000 (2022: HK$80,600,000) are unsecured, bear fixed
interest ranging from 6% to 18% (2022: 5% to 18%) per annum
and are repayable within one year and thus classified as current
assets. Loan receivables of HK$28,714,000 (2022: HK$37,465,000)
are guaranteed by guarantors.

The loan receivables are repayable based on the repayment
schedule specified in the respective loan agreements.

In determining the ECL for loan receivables, the directors
of the Company have taken into account the historical data
together with other external available information and they are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made during the current reporting period
in assessing the loss allowance for loan receivables.

176 SikRoad Energy Services Group Limited
AR AE

RIRFZEEBRAE

B (CZ 4 12,380,000 7T0) BT —48
B=hHZ—EERARSNNESFTFER—BEY
EETIEMEEREN MEEMERELY
72,046,000/ 7t (ZZ Z 24 : 80,600,000/
T EBFEZRAZERASNEASNEASE
BRI EEEFROHEIS% (T _F
5%E18%) st ERBR—FRNEE OB
AR EEBE 28,714,000 (ZEZ 4 .
37,465,000/ 7T) 2 FEWE R HERAER-

ZIEWE TR AERE E
RFE-

ERMRIECZEBERHE

RE RN SR EREEEER AAT
2 O 5 R S WA R B SN SR
b 3 17 5 2 L Bk 72 B A7 TR R O BB R A
M A o

RAEBRSHARN > SHEBRERNERERN
HMERMREABRILARFELEC



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. BIRER @
Movements in the impairment loss of loan receivables are as FEWERZ BEBEEESHINT !
follows:
Lifetime
ECL -
12 month Lifetime credit-
ECL ECL impaired Total
2 HATEH
1218 B T8 HA 2HTE (EEBE-
58S 818 EERE 4zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2021 RZE-—F+tH—H 419 2,555 11,469 14,443
Impairment loss (reversed) recognised R Z<ERE (BE[a)) FEER
during the year, net ZHERIE P (370) 8,881 2,950 11,461
Exchange alignment BRI - (322) (398) (720)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RIEZZHEXRA=1HK
“ETTFER—H 49 11,114 14,021 25,184
Impairment loss (reversed) recognised MR Z<ERE (HBi[a)) R
during the year, net ZRBEEE 258 46 (5,800) (2,308) (8,062)
Exchange alignment B aHE 3) (476) (721) (1,200)
At 30 June 2023 R_E_=F,B=1+H 92 4,838 10,992 15,922
24. CONTRACT ASSETS 24. EHNEE
2023 2022
—EB=F B CHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Retention receivables of PR TR2EWRE S FXE
excavation works, net (note a) (FF5Fa) 14,238 31,191
Less impairment loss recognised BB 2 RERE (228) (3,507)
14,010 27,684

Annual Report 2023 177

20235



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

24. CONTRACT ASSETS (continued) 24. EHNEE ®

Notes: B 5E

(@  For certain excavation works, the Group agrees to one year defect liability @ METEREIEMS £5£ERE—FNREBR
period for 5% to 25% of the contract value. The amount is included in AGHBEMSNELY R BEEUENRGNEE
contract assets until the end of the defect liability period as the Group's N BEREHERAL ERARERNREN
entitlement to final payment is conditional on the satisfaction of the service REF AR ERESNREN —ERBEARNE
quality by the customers over a certain period as stipulated in the contracts. REERNMEREE B SRI A S EREGE
The contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights EHNEERBEESRURE - BERRBZ SN
become unconditional. The due dates for retention receivables are usually AR EERBANZREIRTR BN —F-

one year after the completion of related excavation works.

The Group classifies these contract assets under current AEBRBZECHNEEDBERD éf‘lﬁ
assets because the Group expects to realise them in its normal TrERANEERHENH R EHRK
operation cycle. BINBAEE-
The Group has applied the simplified approach permitted by AEBCOERSBMEREEDFEISE Y
HKFRS 9 to measure the allowance for credit losses at lifetime NS IbR#stE=E2HBEHEEGHE T E
ECL. As at 30 June 2023, the weighted average expected loss EEEEREE RN _E-_=F,<"BA=+H E
rate applied to contract assets was approximately 1.60% (2022: AR SN BEENNETETHEHEBEXRYA
11.24%). 1.60% (ZE -5 11.24%) ©
During the year ended 30 June 2023, HK$3,134,000 (2022: ai:g:_i/\ﬁ +HILEFEE> B
provision of HK$957,000) was recognised as reversal of provision AN ENEECTBIREERIERERD S
for ECL on contract assets. 3,134,000 7T (Z2 =24 | 957,000
JT) °
Movements in the impairment loss of contract assets are as EREEZREBEBEZSSHUNT
follows:
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 July 2021 N _E_—F+HA—H 2,649
Impairment loss recognised Bz RERSE 957
Exchange realignment bE R EAEE 99)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 N2 ZFRA=1+HK
B FtEHA—H 3,507
Impairment loss reversed B E 2 R ER B (3,134)
Exchange realignment PE R sEEE (145)
At 30 June 2023 A ZEZ=F,"A=1H 228
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

25.

26.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

25.

REmREATEARZEHMEE

2023 2022
—EB=F BT F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REELTIRARES
at market value BmE 33,697 22,401
Equity securities listed in the PRC, AR R AN EE S5
at market value BmhE - 3,216
Equity securities listed in the REE RV AEESS
United States, at market value EmE 634 4,901
34,331 30,518

The fair values of these investments are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

Deposits amounting to approximately HK$5,540,000 (2022: nil)
have been pledged to secure bills payables and are therefore
classified as current assets. The pledged bank deposits carried
interest rate of 0.1% and will be released upon settlement of
relevant bills payables.

Restricted bank deposits represented deposits required and
restricted by banks in respect of the issue of customs guarantee
to PRC customs department, of approximately HK$554,000 (2022:
nil) and therefore are classified as current assets. The restricted
bank deposits carried interest rates of 1.5% per annum and will
be released upon the completion of the respective transactions.

Bank balances and cash included demand deposits and short-
term bank deposits for the purpose of meeting the Group’s short
term cash commitment, which carried interest at rates ranging
from 0.01% to 4.5% (2022: 0.01% t0 1.2%) per annum.

Details of impairment assessment of bank balances and cash are
set out in note 35.

26.

ZEREZRATFENDSEMKRZTHEAE
HEE -

ERMIRITERRRHEWBITER
IRITHEBRAREE

F0495,540,0008 T (ZE - —F . #) BfF
- UBEBEMNER A2 8EARHE
EoBIRFIRITERIZARHFA XS E I
BB RN 2R R R o

ZIRGIIRITFE I IRIT R M P &5 BA &6 T
EHEMERMERKRBRHNGEI A5
554,000 (ZE - _F : #) » @At o8
ATRBEE -ZREIIBITERIRENE1.5%
B MR R IR 5 STl & #RBR o

RTEGRRREEERARBITAEEEHEIR
SEAENETHTERREHRTER EER
ENF0.01%E4.5% (ZFEZZF : 0.01%=E
1.2%) ©

IRITHERR IR 2 R EFTAEF BB &
g ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

27. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

28. EFEMAME BERBEREMEN

1A

2023 2022
—EB=F =B
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH5T FHET
Trade payables B 5 S TUIE 68,148 6,224
Bills payables NE 5,540 -
Deposits received [Slesa 645 2,335

Accrued mining service costs ZIE T2 2 FESTIRIEAR 7S A A
on excavation works 211 949
Accrued staff costs FESTE TR 18,078 24,905
Other tax payables HMENRIE 6,002 9,099
Accrued expenses FESTRIZ 1,580 1,449
Other payables HAE(I = IE 3,504 1,914
103,708 46,875

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables

REZH2IEFRNNERECYREZ

based on the invoice date; ERECOATIOT ¢
2023 2022
== .-
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0-30 days 0&30Xk 44,111 2,393
31-60 days 31E60K - 1,746
61-90 days 61890K 4,207 63
Over 90 days FB3E90K 25,370 2,022
73,688 6,224

The average credit period on purchases is generally from 30 days
extending up to 90 days for major suppliers.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

28. AMOUNT DUE TO A FORMER NOTEHOLDER  28. EEff—fiaiRiEHAARE

On 31 July 2015, the Company issued unsecured promissory
notes with principal value of HK$304,000,000 in respect of
the acquisition of Everbest Return Limited and its subsidiaries
(“Everbest Return Group”). The promissory notes would mature
on 30 July 2020 and bear interest at 1% per annum. Interests are
accrued and paid annually. The Company may redeem whole
or part of the promissory notes at any time from 1 October
2016 up to the date immediately prior to the maturity date.
The promissory notes are measured at amortised costs using
effective interest rate of 6%.

As a result of the contingent consideration agreement in
respect of the acquisition of Everbest Return Group, part of the
promissory notes issued of HK$97,877,000 was written back
during the year ended 30 June 2016. There was early redemption
of promissory notes with carrying amount of HK$44,892,000
during the year ended 30 June 2017.

On 31 July 2020, a deed of settlement has been signed between
the Company and the noteholder. Pursuant to the deed,
HK$46,472,000 was paid to the noteholder during the year. The
remaining balance will be paid on or before 31 July 2021 (the
“Instalment”). The Company may pay the Instalment or any part
of the Instalment in multiple of HK$1,000,000 at any time before
the repayment date of 31 July 2021. The interest rate on the
Instalment is 3% per annum.

On 17 August 2021, a second deed of settlement has been
signed between the Company and the noteholder. Pursuant to
the second deed, HK$36 million is to be paid by the Company
within ten business days from the date of the second deed.
On 18 and 19 August 2021, RMB20 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$24 million) and RMB10 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$12 million) were paid to the noteholder
respectively. The Company shall pay the remaining outstanding
principal or any part of the outstanding principal by not less
than 1-month prior notice from the noteholder. Both parties may
mutually consent to a shorter notice period. The interest rate on
the outstanding principal is 3% per annum.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the remaining amount was
paid to the noteholder.

A TE—HEtB=+—H > ARBFWK
BEEverbest Return LimitedREMBA S
(TEverbest ReturnEE ) BT A (EES
304,000,000 Tt 2 IR A R RIE - KR E
BER -2t =1+H3H 21%2
FEMEHB - FEREFHERIZI[L AR F
AR _E—RE+E—HEEZEZRZIHH
AI—BHILEHEEAERER BRI AR
TR o KR EIR LI6% S PR F) IG5 pl A 5t

=
=°

B Uk BBEverbest ReturnE BRI ZARE R
= Eéf*ﬁm*lz 3R R E3597,877,00058 7T
g2n /\fﬁ‘/\fﬁ +HIEFEES
EENN Eizt —tENB=Z+THLEEE>
h%ﬂ,ﬁﬁ@EE@TE%M,S%,OOOEEEG7¥<’Ei§é
o

N TETTEFELA=Z+T—H FxRFHER
BRAABSTUMMBRL - REZZL 0
FRERREFA AZ46,472,0008 7T
FHeARBEBRNR _Z_—FtA=+—H=
Z2HfM (DR ~ARFARF
——FtR=+—HEMBHAEMAERENU
1,000,00078 7T A9 13 832 1 0 HA A R B 0 HA A
FEVERIER D © Z D AT MBI FEF K 53% ©

N2 —FNB+tH xAEHEHEE
BFBEABSTUE _MMMBEZYO-RIEE_
MELH > ARBEREE ZMMBEZLIE
18 & 2 5 % (736,000,000 5o R =
“—ENB+tNBRNANB+AB > DRI
ZiFAE A AR®20,000,0007T (FHE R L
24,000,0007 7T) K A R #10,000,0007T (18 &
£ 4912,000,0007T) c A AB AR ERFA
ANBEERDR—EBNELBHEZARER
REEAREHREERSNEMID o 5TH
EFREHEREREENB KEELRS
B F) ZE233% ©

BE_E_=FB=+HLFE GRELE
XAFREFE A
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

28. AMOUNT DUE TO A FORMER NOTEHOLDER

28. BA—UAREFEARE @

(Continued)
Movement of amount due to a former noteholder is as follows: R — (I ZEFE ARBZEHUNT
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 July 2021 RN_E_—Ft+tH—H 77,386
Interest expense (note 10) FERZ (fiFE10) 1,322
Repayment B (37,502)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 N ZEITHFRA=1THK
2 2F+HA—H 41,206
Interest expense (note 10) FMERMXZ (WEE10) 713
Repayment B (41,919)
At 30 June 2023 AR =—FA=+H -
29. OTHER BORROWING 29. HhfEmk
2023 2022
—E=H TE A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Other borrowings, unsecured Hanfga ik 13,296 -
Carrying amounts repayable (based on FETER M= %8 (IRIBMERI=E
scheduled repayment dates set out in FREMTEEEREE) -
the borrowing agreements):
within one year —FR 13,296 -
Amounts shown under current liabilities MBIBEIE TP EEE 13,296 -

As at 30 June 2023, unsecured other borrowings of
approximately HK$13,296,000 (equivalent to RMB12,000,000)

carried fixed rate of 5.5% per annum for financing

the Group's

operations as at 30 June 2023, and is repayable within one year.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

29. OTHER BORROWING (continued)

The exposure of the Group’s bank and other borrowings to
interest rate changes are as follows:

Fixed rate borrowings
— expiring within one year

[&] TE F FRAE R
——FREIH

29. Hthfagmk @)

AEBRIRITRAMERE RN REHE

BEUNR
2023
==
HK$'000
FHET
13,296

2022
B
HK$'000
TET

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group obtained new
other borrowings from an independent third party in the amount
of approximately HK$35,946,000 and repaid approximately

HK$22,466,000 respectively.

30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deferred tax assets

TEERIEE E

BE_Z_=-FRA=1THLFE &&H
DRB—REILE = H S MBEMERY
35,946,00078 7t 2 fE # £922,466,00078 7T ©

30. RIEFRIBEE
2023
—EC=H
HK$'000
FHET

3,782

2022
::2§:Z:ZEE
HK$'000
FABT

6,108
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BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

30. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continuea)

30. BEERBEE @

The following are the major deferred tax assets recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

UTRAEERBEFECEDBEZIEL
MEEERHEES) !

Impairment of

receivables

FEIRFRIEZ

A

HK$'000

FET

At 1 July 2021 N_E_—F+tH—H 2,944

Credit to profit or loss (note 11) RIB=ETA (MIEE11) 3,344

Exchange realignment FE R AT (180)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 N_E-"FAB=+HK

T2 FtA—H 6,108

Charge to profit or loss (note 11) A%E 2B (F5E11) (2,026)

Exchange realignment R AR (300)

At 30 June 2023 N_E - =—FB=1H 3,782

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$225,065,000 (2022:
HK$183,797,000) available for offset against future profits, out
of which HK$158,654,000 (2022: HK$149,218,000) that may be
carried forward indefinitely and the remaining tax losses of
HK$66,411,000 (2022: HK$34,579,000) will expire within five years
from the year in which the respective loss arose. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to
unpredictability of future profit streams.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. R
Number of shares Amount
Kn#E bl
HK$0.01 each HK$0.2 each
EREE0ERT EREE2ET HK$'000
TET
Authorised EE
As at 1 July 2021 and 30 June 2022 RZZZ—FtA—HK
“S-"FRA=1+H - 150,000,000,000 1,500,000
Capital reorganisation (note) EAER (130 7,500,000,000  (150,000,000,000) -
As at 30 June 2023 RS- =F,A=1H 7,500,000,000 - 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid BETRERE
As at 1 July 2021 and 30 June 2022 A ZEZ-FtA-BR
2 "ERB=1H - 7.492,562,338 74,926
Capital reorganisation (note) R RE4R (M50 374,628,116 (7,492,562,338) -
As at 30 June 2023 R_ZE_=F,B=+H 374,628,116 - 74,926

Note: As part of a capital reorganisation exercise implemented by the Company,
the number of shares of the Company was consolidated on the basis that
every twenty authorised and issued existing share of HK$0.01 each in the
share capital of the Company be consolidated into one share of HK$0.2
each.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year.

Mt FREARBETRAZHEIN -0 £RF
ROBERAERBDREAFES - +REREE0.O
BTHEERERTRERNEHAS —RERE
BE02BTHRMONEEETSH -

EATIMBADMERENBE  HERE

Bl A BERRKRD
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32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 32. ZAFMBRRR
THE COMPANY

2023 2022
TET=F = i =
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E FHET FHET
Non-current asset ERBNEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries RB AR Z
JFLEHEKE 1 1
Current assets TMENE E
Prepayments, deposits and other BNRIE N EE &
receivables HhEWIa 136 131
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS IR B AR A (@) 334,077 364,456
Bank balances and cash IRITERARIRS 17,567 32,664
351,780 397,251
Current liabilities mENEE
Accrued expenses FESTRIZ 1,430 1,300
Amount due to a former noteholder FES — IR 245
B AMIE 28 - 41,206
1,430 42,506
Net current assets MENEEFE 350,350 354,745
Net assets BEFE 350,351 354,746
Capital and reserves B EE
Share capital & 31 74,926 74,926
Reserves EE (b) 275,425 279,820
Total equity HEmAR%ER 350,351 354,746

186 Silk Road Energy Services Group Limited
M SERIRBEERRAE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE

Notes:

@

COMPANY (continuea)

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand. During the year ended 30 June 2023, the
directors of the Company have performed an impairment assessment
based on the expected credit loss model. As at 30 June 2023, the carrying
amount of amounts due from subsidiaries was HK$334,077,000 (2022:
HK$364,456,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of HK$453,171,000
(2022: HK$547,332,000).

32. ZABRMBRARRKR @

MIE -

@

FEWMI B AR REBEAEIER REREEREE-
REBEE_ZS_ZFAB=1tHLEEE - s T&E
EEREBEEHREEFBENETRETSGE R
EI=FXNA=Z1+H BRWNBATNREREE
#334,077,0008 7T (ZF — — 4 : 364,456,000
7o) (BB Rt REE38453,171,0008 T (ZF
T T4 1 547,332,000 7T) ) ©

Reserves by  HEE
Distributable = Accumulated
reserve losses Total
Al RS RetiE a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET
At 1 July 2021 RZE-—F+tH—H 288,469 (3,055) 285,414
Loss and total comprehensive AEEFEBEREEmERT
expense for the year - (5,594) (5,594)
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RIEZZTEXRB=1+HK
- "F#tHA—H 288,469 (8,649) 279,820
Loss and total comprehensive AEFEEBEREEERS
expense for the year - (4,395) (4,395)
At 30 June 2023 RIE_=F,"B=+H 288,469 (13,044) 275,425
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HE_Z

33.

34.

“=HFRA=tHLEFE

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the plans
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits schemes (“Schemes”)
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to
the Schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the Schemes is to make the required
contributions under the Schemes.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of approximately
HK$3,804,000 (2022: HK$2,901,000) represents contributions
payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the plans.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Share option scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 12 December 2014 for the purpose
of provide incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's reparations.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

34. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)
Share option scheme (Continued)

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) may, at its
discretion, invite any employees, directors, advisors, consultants,
shareholders, contractors, distributors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners and services providers of and/or
to any member of the Group whom the Board considers in its
sole discretion, to have contributed to the Group from time to
time (together “Participants”) to take up options to subscribe for
shares of the Company (“Options”).

Options granted should be accepted within 28 days from the
date of grant. Upon acceptance of the Options, the eligible
person shall pay HK$1 to the Company by way of consideration
for the grant. The Options may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during the
option period after the Options has been granted by the Board.
An option period is a period to be determined by the Board
to each eligible person as being the period during which any
Options may be exercised, such period to expire not later than
10 years after the date of grant of the Options.

The subscription price will be determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest of: (a)
the closing price of the shares at stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which
must be a business day; and (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted or to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit").

34. UIRMAHERZARKS @

MRS B (@)

FRBEEE (EFE) JNEBFAEET
EENEISETHHAERTEMIEE
B/ SAERERREADNERNES
ES AN BB -RR-DEH D#EE-
HEE REABR EBBHRRBHE
B EI2EE) ZE20RBAR8RMH
fERere (TRERRHE)) -

R BREANRH B AEF288RF X
BEm-aBERAIREMNBREREARERR
AXIEBTERERTERENKE-B
RIEFIZBRESINFEINEFTTRURE
et 12 72 M AR 1 BA TR BB RS 17 132 o s AR 1 P
RIDHEFEEEHNRR THEFEEN

BERATBRETRZIRITE &8
RIEFELRRES QRN SBBI0FEM-

REERHEFELENBEE LETR
DRTI=ZFFNESE (@QFEER WA
MEXH) BB HE ARERMEA
RDWHE ; ROFEZRHBPMAEZEE
HE# 3P S ARERAE RN T
WHE ; ROKRKEE-

REBRESEER DA RHEFHRITE
PR A BB EITERM A AEETHIRMN &
BERBETATRFEMERESZAHNE
LITRABI10% (TETEIIRERER) ©
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HE_Z

34.

“=HFRA=tHLEFE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The Company may refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit at any
time subject to prior shareholders of the Company’s approval.
No Participants shall be granted an options which, if exercised
in full, would result in such Participants becoming entitled to
subscribe for such number of shares as, when aggregated with
the total number of shares already issued under all the options
previously granted to him or her which have been exercised, and,
issuable under all outstanding options previously granted to him
or her which are for the time being subsisting and unexercised,
would exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue in any
12-month period up to the date of grant of the Options. Share
options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess
if HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders” approval in advance in a general meeting.

Unless early terminated in accordance with the terms therein,
the Share Option Scheme will remain valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on 12 December 2014.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends or
to vote at the shareholder’s meeting.

No share options had been granted or exercised during the years
ended 30 June 2022 and 2023. As at 30 June 2022 and 2023, no
option remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. EfIT A
Categories of financial instruments R TRV
2023 2022
—EC=HF TETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET
Financial assets ERMEE
At amortised cost (including HEIHR A (BIRIRTEGRKRIRS)
bank balances and cash) 364,296 318,423
Financial assets at FVTPL KIBmIRRATEARZSHBEE 34,331 30,518
Financial liabilities ERIEE
At amortised cost I A AN 111,002 78,982

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade, bills and
other receivables, loan receivables, financial assets at FVTPL,
pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, trade, bills and other payables, other borrowing, and
amount due to a former noteholder. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

The Group has exposure to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to amount due to a former noteholder and loan receivables
for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to the bank
balances for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. The Group
currently does not have a formal interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise. The management of the Group considered that
a reasonably possible change in interest rates would not have a
material impact to the Group's result.

MBERGEEEERBE

AEEC EESH T ADE DS EWEE-
FIE i B 4 e LA VR ~ M B 4S9
BERATEARZ SMEE  DERRT
R BIRGIRITER  RTERRRS B
5 R 30T ~ [ £ 32 95 R R A 49 O
3R LR BT — (AT B R A RIE o %
TSR T A HERERIN SR RE - B
LB TAANZ ARGEDEAR R
AREEMERER EEARRADE
SRR -EAREZARIBERNNT 8
BEERREEZEAR URERBEN
0 5 8 2 1 o

15 3 %

FF R
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 35. €M IR ®

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through its
investment in listed equity securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk. In addition, the Group will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period.
If the prices of the respective equity securities have been 10%
higher/lower (2022: 10% higher/lower) with all other variables
held constant, the consolidated loss after tax for the year
would decrease/increase by approximately HK$2,867,000 (2022:
HK$2,548,000) mainly due to changes in fair values of financial
assets at FVTPL.

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2023, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade, bills and
other receivables, loan receivables, contract assets, pledged
bank deposits, restricted bank deposits, and bank balances and
cash. The carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. EMT A ®w
Financial risk management objectives and policies BHEEREEBEREE &
(Continued)

credit risk (Continued)

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the l0ss
allowance for impairment at lifetime ECL. The Group determines
the ECL for customers collectively by using a provision matrix,
estimated based on historical credit loss experience, as well
as the general economic conditions of the industries in which
debtors operate. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Management considered that the risk of default in respect of bills
receivables to be low credit risk when there is no information
indicating that they had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition and thus the allowance for impairment
recognised during the year was limited to 12-month ECL. As at
30 June 2023 and 2022, the identified impairment loss was not
significant.

For loan receivables and other receivables, the Group has
assessed whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group will measure the loss allowance
based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or with good reputation.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout the
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as
at the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information.
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For the year ended 30 June 2023

HE_Z

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERME (&)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk KEEFHZ FE R
The Group's current credit risk grading framework comprises the AEBNRBKEERBTIREREEUTS
following categories: #85 -
Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
£l Rt RIEAEEBENEE
Performing For financial assets where there has low risk of default 12-month ECL
or has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition and that are not credit-
impaired (refer to as Stage 1)
B4 MENRBEN BT EBRLREERRAEE 1282 TEAEEEE
RitEEERENEHEE (DAFE TS
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired (refer to as Stage 2)
IR BEVFERBEERBRAREMELEEEHAENT SHRIEEBE—REERE
MEE (DRE MR
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit-impaired when Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired
one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that asset have
occurred (refer to as Stage 3)
=X —ERZEEHETMAEENEHRRREESREE T HRIGEEBE—BEERE
S RFREBLTEEEERENEMEE (DRSS
=FEER)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe Amount is written off
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
s GFESBRTNEBAENBEM FRE R AER T & R

“=HFRA=tHLEFE

BRIKREIRIER B8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 35. &FEITHR @
Financial risk management objectives and policies HMERREEREREE @)
(Continued)
Credit risk (Continued) EERME (&)
The Group’s exposure to credit risk (Continued) KEFHZ EERE (#)
The table below details the credit risk exposure of the Group's TRFVAEEREETAREBEBRNE
financial assets and contract assets, which are subject to ECL NEMEERGNEENEERR !
assessment:
Gross
Internal 12-month or carrying Loss  Net carrying
30 June 2023 Notes  credit rating "fetimgg ECL amount allowance amount
12{8A2
ZEZ=FRA=TH iz AEEETR Z2PEHREESE BIREE EHERE IRERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THET
Trade receivables 22 Note a Lifetime ECL 140,632 (1,673) 138,959
B EIE fifzra LHEREERE
Bills receivables 22 Performing 12-month ECL 1,108 - 1,108
EWEHE B4 12ER EHREERE
Amount due from non-controlling 22 Performing 12-month ECL
interests 17,821 - 17,821
TEWGEERE s TR IE B4 12ERFHREERE
Other deposits paid 22 Performing 12-month ECL 18,538 (3,679) 14,859
Htne e B4 12ERFHREERE
Other receivables 22 Performing 12-month ECL 7,021 (1,435) 5,586
HithEWHIE B4 12ER BHREERE
Loan receivables 23 Performing 12-month ECL 20,054 (92) 19,962
G B4 12ER BHREERE
Loan receivables 23 Doubtful Lifetime ECL 49,047 (4,838) 44,209
&R R~ LHRBEERE
(not credit-impaired)
GEEERIE)
Loan receivables 23 Default Lifetime ECL 21,609 (10,992) 10,617
EWER EH LHRHEERE
(credit-impaired)
(BEERE)
Contract assets 24 Notea Lifetime ECL 14,238 (228) 14,010
BNEE fiika LRBEERE
Pledged bank deposits 26 Performing 12-month ECL 5,540 - 5,540
BIRARITER B4 128 FHREERE
Restricted bank deposits 26 Performing 12-month ECL 554 - 554
ZIRBIRITER 4 1288 FHREEBE
Bank balances and cash 26 Performing 12-month ECL 105,081 = 105,081
RITRBRAS 4 1288 FHREERE
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)
credit risk (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk (Continued)

Internal
30 June 2022 Notes  credit rating
ZEZZFERA=1+H izt AEEETR
Trade receivables 22 Note a
BAEWHIE fizta
Trade receivables 22 Note a
BREWRIE fiizta
Bills receivables 22 Performing
EEE B4
Other deposits paid 22 Performing
HtBE e B4
Other receivables 22 Performing
HithEW B B4
Loan receivables 23 Performing
ElER B4
Loan receivables 23 Doubtful
EWER &R
Loan receivables 23 Default
ElER BN
Contract assets 24 Note a
BHEE fiista
Bank balances and cash 26 Performing
ROEFRRS B4

35. EMT A ®w

HHERAREEBEREE @)
EERE (%)
KEEFZ EERME (8)
Gross
12-month or carrying Loss
lifetime ECL amount allowance
128 B X2 HATEHR
8B MAREE FHiaEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FTET
Lifetime ECL 43,044 (1,767)
SHREREERE
Lifetime ECL (individually 13,356 (6,909)
assessed, credit-
impaired)
%ﬁﬂﬁﬁlﬂ\%%éﬁéw \
(BRI EERE)
12-month ECL 13,347 -
ERBHEEEE
12-month ECL 21,443 (3,909)
ERBHEEEE
12-month ECL 1,716 (1,368)
ERBHEEEE
12-month ECL 21,005 (49)
ERBHEEEE
Lifetime ECL (not credlit- 61,249 (11,114)
impaired)
SHRHEERE
GEEERB)
Lifetime ECL (credit- 25,910 (14,021)
impaired)
SHREREERE
(BEEERB)
Lifetime ECL 31,191 (3,507)
SHRHEERE
12-month ECL 156,490 -
EABEHEERE

Net
carrying
amount

FREFE
HK$'000
TER

41,277

6,447

13,347

17,534

348

20,956

50,135

11,889

27,684

156,490
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 35. EMT A @

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

credit risk (Continued)

The Group'’s exposure to credit risk (Continued)

Note a: The Group has applied simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL.

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is all in the PRC which accounted for 100% (2022:
100%) of the total trade and bills receivables as at 30 June 2023
respectively.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group has concentration of credit risk as
18% (2022: 17%) of the total carrying amount of trade receivables
was due from one of the Group's largest customer while 65%
(2022: 50%) of the total carrying amount of trade receivables was
due from the Group's five largest customers.

In addition, the Group has concentration of credit risk as 9%
(2022: 8%) of the total carrying amount of loan receivables was
due from one of the Group's largest borrower while 42% (2022:
34%) of the total carrying amount of loan receivables was due
from the Group's five largest borrowers. The Group also has
concentration of credit risk on contract assets and liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings
and the Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group's policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in short term and long term.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay.

MEBERBREEZBRKREE @)

EEmEE (&)
FEFHZ FERLE #)

Mizta: FAEEEXRAEBYBREERNSIRNBES
FREPEREEREBERER-

AEMPEERREMEBENER S HEH
RAE M2 _=F\B=1+HE&%
FE U ERIE R FE R = H5 48 3509100% (&2 -
£ 1 100%) ©

RIBE_=ZFEB=-+H AEANEE
mE T IZ.%E%IT’%TH%AIEEEEMEBMS%
(ZTBEZZF 117%) RKEXERRKELRZ
—>M65% (ZZE - :50%) B9 E 5 FEUWRR
BEREREREAERRAARR

Ioh REEBNEERBEF  RAEKRE
TEREAEEM% (ZE "% 1 8%) KB XK
%fﬂt{aﬂ)\z—’ﬁmz% e CFE
34%) WEWERIR®E fﬁk@ﬁ%léﬁ
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35. &RTA @
MBEREEERREE @)

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued) EERME )
Liquidity risk (Continued) MEE TR ()
Liquidity tables (Continued) MENE R &R (&

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. TR AFEEAESEHE RS

More than
On demand 1 year but Total
or within less than undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years cash flows amount
BER Bia—F RAGIR
—FR BORmE HRERELHE IRE(E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT FET FTERx FTERT
At 30 June 2023 RZEZ=Z&XA=+H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTEEHEE
Trade, bills and other payables BEEMTE EREER
HAFEFIE 97,706 - 97,706 97,706
Other borrowing HtEx 14,037 - 14,037 13,296
Total 4zt 111,743 - 111,743 111,002
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,792 1,392 3,184 2,943
At 30 June 2022 RZEZZ&XA=+H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTETHEE
Trade and other payables B RAMENTIE 37,776 - 37776 37,776
Amount due to a former noteholder E— (g ZEEEATE 41,309 - 41,309 41,206
Total Kt 79,085 - 79,085 78,982
Lease liabilities HEafE 5210 738 5,948 5,821
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea) 35.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable in accordance to the Group’s

accounting policy.

£WMTH @®
RESHBERRIRER > ATEHSE

TREJINEBRSHPRERAFEFEZS
MIEFRZ D BAEE G BRBE
ATEIRREERAE —E=R-

2023
&=
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—k B B4R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAERT TAET TAET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL RERRRATEARZ
EREE
Listed equity securities ERAES 34,331 - - 34,331
2022
BT E
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1R E_4R g st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FTAET FAET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL RERRRATEARZ
EREE
Listed equity securities ERAES 30,518 - - 30,518

There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy in

the current and prior years.

REFERBEFE  SATERBRZEIL
BB
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)

Fair value of financial assets that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value
measurements of each financial instrument on a recurring basis
are set out below:

Financial Fair value
instruments hierarchy Fair value as at
EMIA AFEER RUATERZATE
2023 2022
gz EoCfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET
Financial assets at  Level 1 34,331 30,518
FVTPL
TIBRREATE F—&
NEZEHEE

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis (but
fair value disclosure are required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors of the Company (who
are the key management personnel of the Group) during
the year were as follows:

35.

£MTH@®
BRCHMBEENATEHEZESMEEZA
TiE
EEMTERCEMEEE Y AFEHEFRA
HEHEREABEHINNT

Valuation technique Significant unobservable
and key inputs inputs

EELEREIEBAUE EAFATRRBAUE

Quoted bid prices in active N/A

market

EENSTREAE gyl

36.

LIS EREUATFEHABZERNEE
hRTRMEaEZATE (BEAREATE

AABDEFRD FEEMBBRERPILEHENL
FIRZEMEEREMBEZREERRK
FZRFEEE

AL S
(@) FEEEASZHM

FRNEARDERE GERBETZEEA
8) Z#HmMmT :

2023 2022

—E-= B4

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Short-term benefits 2 HREH 2,364 2,838
Post-employment benefits BIREF 59 27
2,423 2,865
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37. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 37.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

financing activities.

METHEEZAEHIR

TR AEERETELEZARES
BRRERIFRTEFHF REIHFEEZE
BHEREMABIRKREMNERFNIEEGR
TRERTROESMETHFFFREEME
ZzBf&e

Non-cash change

FREEE
Finance Foreign
Financing Lease cost exchange
1/7/2022 cash flows Additions  termination incurred  movements 30/6/2023
—E-C mE FREEM ZEC=
tB—H REne #E L RE A EREH A~A=tH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FET FAT FAT FAT FAT
Amount due to a former noteholder PR —{UBiZEFH ATIE
(note 28) (Ff5£28) 41,206 (41,919) - - 713 - -
Other borrowing (note 29) HfERn (115529) - 12,854 - - 626 (184) 13,296
Lease liabilities (note 18) REBE (HH138) 5821 (5,127) 3,312 (988) 17 (246) 2,943
47,027 (34,192) 3,312 (988) 1,510 (430) 16,239
Non-cash change
KREED
Finance Foreign
Financing cost exchange

1/7/2021  cash flows Additions incurred  movements 30/6/2022
T -F & PrEER B F
tA—H ReEnE hE RRE A ERE ~NB=1H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TAT TER TET TAT

Amount due to a former ER—URZEREA
noteholder (note 28) I (PifzE28) 77,386 (37,502) = 1,322 = 41,206
Lease liabilities (note 18) HESE (f:18) 5,308 (2,806) 3,156 313 (150) 5,821
82,694 (40,308) 3,156 1,635 (150) 47,027
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38. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A

SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group had the following
change in its ownership interest in a subsidiary that did not result

in a loss of control.

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

On 14 June 2023, the Group acquired an additional 10% equity
interest of Silk Road GAS Investments Limited, increasing its
ownership interest to 100%. The carrying value of the net assets
of the net liabilities of Silk Road GAS Investments Limited and its
subsidiary was approximately HK$12,574,000. A schedule of the
effect of acquisition of additional interest is as follow:

38.

R—ERBASNEREEDED

RBEEZ_=—FA=+HLFE K&
ER—BNEARNEARREEELUTE
g WEERREIZEFE-

WE—EMEABNEIMER

TR =ZFRATHA  AEEWEHE

MRKREBRATBIEINMONKE < H
BEREEDIZMEI00% #HEMRREBFRA
ARENBABNEREFENEEFERE
B497312,574,0007 7T o U B8 SME & BI 57
BRRWT -

2023
—EC-=&
HK$'000
FHT
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest PR IE PR BV BR T = 58
acquired (1,257)
Consideration paid for acquisition of additional MBI R I E B R AR
interest in Silk Road GAS Investments Limited @ HE =
Difference recognised in other reserve REGNEMEEPEINELR
within equity (1,257)

* The amount is less than HK$1,000
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BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 39. FEMBRE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June R ZEBE_=ZFARB=1TH xR TENE
2023 are set out as follows: NEFHBEHINUWT -
Place/Country of  Paid up issued Proportion of
incorporation/ ordinary share Proportion of ownership interest voting power
Name of subsidiary operations capital held by the Company held by the Company Principal activities
B Ay BEETR FRAANEREHR FRARE
WEBARLE BEME/HR  BREZERS BEEM REREN FTEER
Directly Indirectly
E# itk
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
“E-=f _“ZT-"F -Z-zf _“T--% ZEIZE _“T__F
% % % % % %
Born Nature Investments Limited ~ The BVI Ordinary share 100 100 n/a n/a 100 100 Investment holding
EBEARES US$1 TEA TEA REER
BRRIET
Golden Brand Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
HELERRAT &5 HKS$10 TER TEBA and money lending
BERI0ET RERRRIE
Great Wall Credit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Money lending
REEEBRAT &H HK$5,000,000 TER TER &
Bk
5,000,000 7¢
FE REAERATS The PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
HiE RMB40,000,000 TEA TEH REEk
BARAARHE
40,000,0007T
REREETR The PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Provision of coal
ol RMB20,000,000 TR TER mining services
BAREARE and construction
20,000,0007T Services
REGEEERER
BERY
REEEHAMERERAT The PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 90 100 90 Provision of coal
ol HK$30,000,000 TR TER mining services
S5 LS and construction
30,000,000 services
RAERRERRER
BERY
Silk Road GAS Investments Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary shares n/a n/a 100 90 100 90 Investment holding
HRERMRREERAT &8 HK$1,000 TER TER RELR
BER1,000%7T
Everbest Return Limited The BVI Ordinary shares n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
EBEAREE Us$10 TR TBA REER
BERI0ZT
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39. XEMBAR @

Place/Country of  Paid up issued Proportion of
incorporation/ ordinary share Proportion of ownership interest voting power
Name of subsidiary operations capital held by the Company held by the Company Principal activities
B Ay BE&TR FRRANEREHR FRARE
WEAERHE BEME/HR  BREERS BEAM RERENT TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# itk
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
%= CZCCE ZBI=E CZCCF ZEC=E CECC
% % % % % %
Winner Joy Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Investment holding
BREBERAT i HK$1 TEA TEBA RERR
BERET

Smart City (Shenzhen) Investment ~ The PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Money lending
Limited# H HK$100,000,000 TR TEH W&

E2 (R REBRA BARA

100,000,000

Du Du International Trading Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary share n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Trading of fresh
("Du Du International”) &% HK$1 TEH TEH produce products

BHEAREZERAT EERIER 4EERES
(TEREREIRE)

Du Du Fresh Industry (Shenzhen) Co,, The PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 100 100 100 Trading of fresh
Ltd ('Du Du Fresh Industry')¢ h RMB5,000,000 TER TER produce products

BHEZBE (R) BRAR BARKARHE 48ERES

(pHEEEE) 5,000,007

Zhongtai Hongzhi Technology The PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 51 51 51 51 Trading of fresh
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd h RMB10,000,000 il TER produce products

REBENE (FY) BRAT BARAARE tHERES

(h&BE)* 10,000,0007%

Du Du Wan Jia Agricultural The PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 n/a 100 nfa  Trading of fresh
Development (Shenzhen) Co, Ltd* & RMB1,000,000 TER TER TER TER produce products
(Note 1) EARAARE GEERE

BHEZREEE (R 1,000,00070
BIRAF ()

Du Du Fresh Agricultural Technology ~ The PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 n/a 100 n/a  Trading of fresh
(Shenzhen) Co,, Lid* (Note ) # RMB1,000,000 TER TER TEH TER produce products

BHEZEERE (R BARKARHE 4EERES
BRAT* () 1,000,000

Du Du Fresh Food (Shenzhen) The PRC Paid-up capital n/a n/a 100 n/a 100 n/a Trading of fresh
Co, Ltd* (Note i) # RMB1,000,000 Nl TEH TER TER produce products

HHEZan (R BRAT* BARAARHE tHERES

(FizH) 1,000,007
# Being wholly foreign owned enterprises. # B EEERE.
* Being registered as a limited liability company under the PRC law. * RETEZEETLABRETAS

Note i: incorporated during the year ended 30 June 2023
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R EMIBIRRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. XEMBAR @

Except as specified above, all other subsidiaries are limited
liability companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. All the other
subsidiaries are either investment holding or inactive located in
Hong Kong, BVI and the PRC. Details of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

PR EXFRISEESN  FREHMWEB AR HE S
BREEAT -

ERINHARDESEIREIETELERF
ENEERARZAEENBAT -AAQF
EERAR I EMNB AT ESI RS
ER&e

RBREHR AT EHMEEAERB LA
EZNNEBAB -FREEMNBARARE
ERIIEER UNEB - REBHERRE
EkPE-zEMB AR ZFHERAWT

Number of subsidiaries

FEEH FEEE M MEAS#E
2023 2022
—EC=HF TETF
Investment holding Hong Kong 5 3
KEER BH
Investment holding The BVI 2 5
KEER EEETERES
Inactive The PRC 8 2
BER &
15 10
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R e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

HE_Z—

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

—FRAZTHLEFE

The tables below show details of each of the Group’s subsidiaries
that have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group,
before intragroup eliminations, during the years ended 30 June
2023 and 2022:

Silk Road GAS Investments Limited and its subsidiary

39.

FTEMRBATE @

TRIIMBE_Z_=ZFRk_

=S A=

=+THLEFE REBRRQRBEER) H
SEEEZAHAFERESD

BATS :

ZAREBEEM

MEBMRIRERRABRENEAS

2023 2022
—E=F =
Proportion of effective interests held by FERERIERERE DL
non-controlling interests N/A 10%
Voting rights held by non-controlling SRR R IF IR
interests N/A 10%
2023 2022
—E°= TETTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Loss attributable to non-controlling JEEERS R E (L 5 48
interests (953) (408)
Accumulated non-controlling interests RETIEIERER = (332)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. FEMBRE @
Silk Road GAS Investments Limited and its subsidiary HBERMRAREFRARDNKEMBAR @
(Continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s HAEEBEEZARAIFERER I AER
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to MEBARZMBENREEHINWM T Tz
the Group is set out below. The summarised financial information FHRENBENETERNASBHHEAS
below represents amounts before intra-group eliminations. e o
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
AZEZ= = ——
~NB=+H ANA=1H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Non-current assets FRBBEE N/A 5,734
Current assets mMENEE N/A 4,229
Current liabilities mENEE N/A (13,277)
Equity attributable to owners of the KA B NELER
Company N/A (2,982)
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R N/A (332)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)
Silk Road GAS Investments Limited and its subsidiary

39. XEMBAR @

MBMRIRERRABREWBAE (@

(Continued)
Period from
1 July 2022 to Year ended
14 June 2023 30 June 2022
—E”"C
tA—HZE H=E
B4 ECF
~A+MH ~A=+H
HAM IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Revenue g 6,081 6,393
Other income Hng A 4,404 3,795
Expenses sz (20,012) (14,266)
Loss for the year KEERIE (9,527) (4,078)
Other comprehensive income for the year ZAEEEMEEWE 267 103
Total comprehensive expense for the year AEE2EARR (9.260) (3,975)
Loss for the year attributable to: MU ATEIEARFERIE -
Owners of the Company KRBwEB A (8,574) (3,670)
Non-controlling interests JEEER S (953) (408)
(9,527) (4,078)
Total comprehensive expense for the year WM FATEGAEEEEERSY !
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBHEB A (8,334) (3,577)
Non-controlling interests JEPERE (926) (398)
(9,260) (3,975)
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. FEMBRTE @
Silk Road GAS Investments Limited and its subsidiary HBMRREARATKEMEB AR (@)
(Continued)
From
1 July 2022 to Year ended
14 June 2023 30 June 2022
i
tHA—HBE Bz
== BT THF
~NA+mH ANA=1+H
HARE IFFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Net cash (outflow) inflow from operating ~ &E5EENIRS CRH) RAPEE
activities (8,681) 731
Net cash inflow from investing activities KREGHIREMAFEE - 139
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEFIRERAFEE 9,070 1,573
Net cash inflow WERAPEE 389 2,443
Zhongtai Hongzhi Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd hRBERE GRI) BRAE
2023 2022
== T THF

Proportion of effective interests held by JEERERFTFER R B DL

non-controlling interests 49% 49%
Voting rights held by non-controlling IR e P 1 2
interests 49% 49%
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZS=FB=1+HLFE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 39. FEMBATE @
Zhongtai Hongzhi Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd RRBERE CRII) BRARE @)
(Continued)
2023 2022
B4 _ECF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET
Loss attributable to non-controlling JEPERE R (L E5 48
interests (5,185) (3,144)
Accumulated non-controlling interests ESEI g 6,164 (3,291)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's HAEEEEEARRIFERER AEE
subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to MEAR ZHMBERBEHINW T Tz
the Group is set out below. The summarised financial information FHEENBMENETERNASBHHEAE
below represents amounts before intra-group eliminations. EHo
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2023 2022

RIEZ=% RIZ-_-F
~"H=+H ~A=+H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Current assets MBEE 89,859 65,513

Current liabilities V=N (77,279) (72,229)
Equity attributable to owners of the KA ANEGER

Company 6,416 (3,425)

Non-controlling interests FEIER T 6,164 (3,291)
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BE_Z_=H/"A=1+HLEE

39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)
Zhongtai Hongzhi Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd

39. XEMBAT =

PRBERE CRI) BRAE @

(Continued)
Period from
For the 1 December
year ended 2021 to
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
B2
BE +—-—B—H
—E=F FEIZ_HF
~NA=+H ANA=+H
IEFE HARS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Revenue W 149,536 125,108
Other income HA A 478 69
Expenses sz (160,596) (131,593)
Loss for the year KEFEEEIE (10,582) (6,416)
Other comprehensive expense for the REEEMPERS
year (22) (300)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AFEZEARMAZ (10,604) (6,716)
Loss for the year attributable to: MTFATEEARFERSIS !
Owners of the Company ZiN/NETEZZ DN (5,397) (3,272
Non-controlling interests JEEER S (5,185) (3,144)
(10,582) (6,416)
Total comprehensive expense for the year MU TN ATEEAREESEARFRS -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBwEB A (5,408) (3,425)
Non-controlling interests JEPERE R (5,196) (3,291)
(10,604) (6,716)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

REFER BEZSMNBLARETEANE

Bl
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Five-year Financial Summary

I FMBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

AEERBERLEYHFENEEREERER
BEEHSWT :

Year ended 30 June
BHENAZ=THLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
= —B--F —T”-F —TZE —T-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAT TAT FAT

5,161,841 705,041 130,937 265,349 316,760

1,459 (8,963) (29.871) (101,204) (29,989)

480,292 455,448 498,919 545,434 686,349
128,043 102,414 133,088 178,887 204,231

RESULTS ¥5

Revenue Wz

Profit (loss) for the year attributable to ERR BB ANELEAEE
owners of the Company wA (518)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEHGHE

Total assets BEE

Total liabilities maE

Net assets BEFE

352,249 353,034 365,831 366,547 482,118
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